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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 10 MAY 2021 

CHAIRPERSON:  Good morning Mr Soni ,  good morning  

everybody.  

ADV SONI SC:   Morn ing Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning Mr Montana.   Thank you.   

Are we ready? 

ADV SONI SC:   We are ready.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r ight .   P lease admin ister  the oath 

again.  

REGISTRAR:   P lease state your  fu l l  names fo r  the record.  10 

MR MONTANA:   Tshepo Lucky Montana.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any object ion to  tak ing the  

prescr ibed oath? 

MR MONTANA:   No.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you consider  the oath b ind ing on your  

conscience? 

MR MONTANA:   I  do.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly swear that  the ev idence you 

wi l l  g ive wi l l  be the t ru th;  the who le t ru th and noth ing but  

the t ru th;  i f  so p lease ra ise your  r ight  hand and say,  so help 20 

me God.  

MR MONTANA:   So help me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   Yes we may proceed then.    

ADV SONI SC:   As you p lease Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  
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ADV SONI SC:   Chai rperson when we were last  here  a week 

ago we were going to  deal  wi th  the  proper t ies.   Now I  want  

to  adopt  a s l ight ly  d i f ferent  approach to th is  i ssue ins tead of  

deal ing wi th  Mr  Oel lermann’s repor t  I  just  want  to  put  

cer ta in  documents to  Mr Montana and ask h im to –  or  put  

the contents of  those documents th rough h im for  the 

record> 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   Most  of  the documents are annexures to  Mr  

Oel lermann’s repor t  o r  annexures to  Mr Loubser ’s  af f idavi t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now Mr Montana can I  f i rs t ly  ask in  re la t ion 

to  the Parkwood property  you have seen the re levant  par t  o f  

Mr Oel lermann ’s repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  just  want  to  say once again Mr  

Montana I  know that  were asked at  shor t  not ice to  avai l  

yoursel f  today and you agreed so  that  is  – that  is  – that  

cooperat ion is  appreciated.  

MR MONTANA:   Chai r  I  must  say  I  come as an unhappy 

wi tness today because I  thought  – I  even asked the team 20 

over  the weekend why am I  be ing ca l led because the last  

t ime the – the Chai rperson summarised the d iscussion on 

th is  mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Was that  I  qu ick ly  sor t  out  my aff idavi t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   So that  we – we can deal  wi th  these issues 

in  the fu l l  context .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Especia l ly  the fac t  that  Chai r  I  s ta ted very 

c lear ly  we are work ing on Mr Oel lermann ’s repor t  which – 

what  I  have sa id I  do not  accept  Chai r  and I  th ink i t  should 

not  even be before the commission unless he had f i led the  

proper  aff idavi t .    

You see – i t  cannot  be that  some o f  us f i le  a ff idavi ts  10 

under oath and then somebody f i les a repor t ;  a t taches 

repor ts  and other  th ings.  There is  a  context  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   And I  th ink you probably a l low me before  

we go to  the speci f ics of  the documents because I  th ink so 

that  the Chai r  can appreciate why I  am aggr ieved and the 

unfa i rness.  

CHAIRPERSON:  Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   But  I  have a lso sa id Chai r  because I  have 

been cooperat ing wi th  the commission and the team I  do not  20 

want  to  br ing admin ist rat i ve i ssues here.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MONTANA:   We wi l l  cont inue deal ing wi th  them in the 

background.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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MR MONTANA:   So that  the focus on the hear ings must  be 

on the hear ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Must  be on the real  issues ja .  

MR MONTANA:   So I  am not  go ing to  stop you Chai r  but  I  

th ink at  some stage before – be fore we even go to  the 

deta i ls  I  do not  know when but  maybe Mr Soni  wants to  

f in ish the Parkwood.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   And then I  ind ica te par t i cu lar ly  because I  

th ink Chai r  the –  the  sect ion on  my aff idavi t  on proper t ies 10 

which I  th ink I  have worked wi th  the team i t  was done and 

of  course i t  has  not  been before  the commission  as yet .  

Because I  th ink that  as we d iscuss the issues of  p roper t ies 

my aff idavi t  is  not  –  i t  is  not  here.   We are d iscussing these 

issues – I  want  the par t  o f  my aff idavi t  Chai r  to  – to  read i t  

out  –  i t  is  not  long.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   So that  –  so that  we can then – I  can – we 

can deal  wi th  th is  issue in  to ta l i t y  Chai r.   So that  – that  wi l l  

be my request  Chai r.   I  do not  know at  what  po int  you would 20 

a l low me but  that  is  my request  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Wel l  le t  me say th is  Mr Montana.   

Last  week we adjourned on the basis on which we 

adjourned but  for  some t ime I  have been t ry ing to  a l locate  

dates to  d i f ferent  wi tnesses and there are l im i ted dates – 
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days avai lab le because we are t ry ing to  f in ish a l l  ora l  

ev idence by  end of  May.   So when I  spoke to the legal  team 

and said they should t ry  and check whether  you could make 

today i t  was wi th in  that  context .  

MR MONTANA:   No I  appreciate that  one thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja but  – so that  i s  the one point .   

The second point  is  that  you – you – we know that  when we 

par ted last  t ime i t  was on the par t  o f  the basis was that  i t  

would be desi rab le to  have someth ing in  wr i t ing f rom you 

that  deals wi th  the issue of  proper t ies and you do say that  10 

your  aff idavi t  has a sect ion that  deals wi th  that  and that  you 

– you would l i ke to  read that  in to the record.    

Now even i f  your  aff idavi t  is  not  before the  

commission as yet  i f  that  sect ion  can be deal t  wi th  as a 

standalone I  do not  see a problem and assuming that  the  

issue – the problem wi th annexures does not  a ffect  i t  –  now 

of  course I  do no t  know whether  i t  does or  i t  does not .   Mr 

Soni  where – have you got  –  would you l ike to  say 

someth ing about  that?  

ADV SONI SC:   Chai rperson I  have read Mr Montana’s 20 

aff idavi t  and I  am just  set t ing out  what  the d i f fe rence is  

between the evidence that  i s  in tended to be led  and what  i s  

conta ined in  Mr Montana ’s aff idavi t  and Mr Montana can 

comment  af te r  I  have g iven my – what  my submission is  in  

regard to  those issues.  
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 Mr Montana in  h is  aff idavi t  deals wi th  a l l  the  

proper t ies that  he  owns and they are – i f  my memory serves 

me correct ly  about  e ight  proper t ies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   E ight?  

ADV SONI SC:   E ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   We deal  wi th  only four  proper t ies.   These 

are the four  proper t ies that  in  some way or  the other  based 

on the documents  that  we have Mr Montana and Mr Van Der  

Wal t  were  involved.   That  is  a l l  we in tend – that  i s  the only 10 

evidence we in tend producing to  you Chai rperson.  

 Now we do not  accept  that  Mr Montana’s ev idence 

on the other  p roper t ies is  re levant  to  the Terms of  

Reference of  the Commission  because there  is  no  

connect ion between Mr  Van Der Wal t  and Mr Montana – and 

those proper t ies.    

 So that  i s  the f i rs t  po int  o f  departure.   The second 

point  o f  departu re is  that  Mr Montana in  h is  aff idav i t  does 

not  deal  wi th  the issues as they are set  out  in  the  

annexures to  Mr  Oel le rmann’s af f idavi t  and once we get  20 

passed that  issue Chai rperson –  in  other  words i f  for  

example there is  as there is  a  – an  agreement  – an offer  to  

purchase and an acceptance of  the  offe r  there fore an  

agreement  to  purchase the proper ty  or  to  se l l  the proper ty.   

That  is  a  mat te r  that  we would l i ke Mr Montana to conf i rm 
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and in  respect  o f  each of  the proper t ies we have that .   

 We a lso have the background to how those 

agreements  arose and a lso  the method of  payment  fo r  those 

proper t ies.  

 Now those are the facts that  we submi t  ought  to  be 

p laced before you.   What  in ferences are to  be drawn f rom 

those facts – what  conclus ions on  would draw f rom them – 

whether  there i s  anyth ing improper – whether  there i s  

anyth ing i r regular  is  an ent i re ly  separate mat ter  but  we 

cannot  reach that  e i ther  in  respect  o f  what  Mr Montana says 10 

or  what  we say unless there is  agreement  on those basic 

facts.  

 And so the purpose for  th is  – a l though we do not  

have Mr Montana’s aff idavi t  the purpose was – the purpose 

is  just  to  get  the  facts before you when Mr Montana wants  

to  comment  on what  in ference is  to  drawn f rom them then 

we can deal  wi th  that  which is  conta ined in  h is  aff idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  got  the impression when last  week 

Mr Montana ta lked about  the issue of  p roper t ies that  he may 

be seeking to  say h is  involvement  in  the proper t ies that  you 20 

– you are focusing on.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Should be seen in  the context  –  should be 

seen in  a wider  context .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Of  h is  invo lvement  even in  other  

proper t ies.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  the impression I  got  tha t  he is  

saying wel l  maybe i f  you look at  those par t i cu la r  p roper t ies 

you might  get  cer ta in  impressions but  there is  a  wider  

p ic ture that  should be taken in to account  and when you take 

in to account  the wider  p ic ture you may take a d i f fe rent  v iew.   

Or that  –  I  thought  that  is  what  he  might  be wish ing  to  say.   

So I  guess that  one wi l l  on ly  take a v iew when one e i ther  10 

reads or  hears  what  he has to  say about  the other  

proper t ies how they come in  – in to the p ic ture.  

 But  in  terms of  h im reading in to the record tha t  

sect ion of  h is  aff idavi t  that  deals wi th  proper t ies subject  to  

the issue of  re levance you do not  have a problem? 

ADV SONI SC:   No,  no.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Not  a t  a l l  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Not  a t  a l l .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja so – so no that  is  f ine.   Then the next  

th ing is  just  the r ight  t ime to do tha t .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   From your s ide is  there a par t i cu lar  

t ime that  you – you would submi t  should be the r ight  t ime? 
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ADV SONI SC:   Chai rperson I  rea l ly  do not  have a problem 

wi th when i t  to  be done I  do not  want  to  be unfa i r  to  Mr 

Montana.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   I f  i t  is  to  be done at  the outset  but  there  

must  be one cond i t ion to  i t  Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   That  a f ter  Mr Montana sets out  what  he 

says are the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   The b igger  p ic ture.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   The b igger  p ic ture – what  he says is  the  

b igger  p ic ture then he must  answer the quest ions that  a re  

posed in  re la t ion to  those documents.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No he is  here to  do that .   He is  here to  do  

that  ja .   Mr Montana you are here to  do that?  

MR MONTANA:   Chai r  I  –  none of  the – I  have seen 

previously these documents.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   And I  am here Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  20 

MR MONTANA:   I  would have asked that  – I  would have 

asked for  another  month to  study the document  to  consul t .   

I  here Mr Soni .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   I  w i l l  answer.   But  Chai r  I  th ink le t  me deal  



10 MAY 2021 – DAY 391 
 

Page 12 of 179 
 

w i th  three issues – smal l  i ssues.   You see the commission 

owes me an apology Chai r.   In  fac t  i f  we were – i f  I  d id  not  

respect  the Chai r  and the commiss ion I  would have actual ly  

re fused.   Mr Soni  and Mr Oel le rmann stood and you asked 

an important  quest ion.   I  th ink i t  was on the 2n d  o f  Ju ly  

Chai r  I  cannot  recal l  you wanted to  c lar i f y  how much – how 

much – how many proper t ies and how much.    

Chai r  the response f rom Mr Soni  a t  that  t ime was 

that  Mr Montana – he corrected – he cor rected the Chai r  

and sa id Mr Montana bought  proper t ies for  R36 mi l l ion and 10 

that  is  why Chai r  the process we are going to  fo l low – 

because that  is  –  that  is  not  correct .  Okay and that  is  why 

in  my aff idavi t  I  deal  wi th  these proper t ies deal ings Chai r  

because they are  not  –  they are not  i l leg i t imate – they are 

unlawfu l .    

Why Mr Soni  set  i t  up in  the manner that  he does i t  

is  basica l l y  Chai r  and susta in ing that  fa lse narrat ive and I  

th ink i t  is  very important  Chai r  fo r  your  benef i t  –  I  am not  

saying I  am going  to  deal  wi th  that  –  broad p ic ture.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  20 

MR MONTANA:   I  am going to  deal  wi th  the speci f ics today 

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r ight .  

MR MONTANA:   So – so I  th ink  that  for  me I  ra ise two 

issues in  the 00:15:32.  
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 The f i rs t  one was what  i s  the source of  th is  th ing?  I  

th ink the commission needs to  understand why we came to  

th is  i ssue about  houses.   

 Secondly i t  then – the – and I  sa id  I  want  to  be here  

to  be accountable to  the count ry.   The commission should 

probe my deal ings on anyth ing inc lud ing on my propert ies.   

And Chai r  I  have wr i t ten over  f i f teen pages of  my aff idavi t  –  

focusses on my propert ies.   

 So (speaking in  vernacular)   I  am here to  answer i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

MR MONTANA:   And I  am going to  answer i t .   So I  th ink 

what  should happen now.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   You just  sa id you are not  funning 

away.  

MR MONTANA:   Chai r  I  am here.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   I  am here and I  th ink Mr Soni  can gr i l l  me 

the whole day (speaking in  vernacu lar)  I  am here Chai r.   But  

I  th ink i t  would be fa i r  consider ing  what  has a l ready been 

put  on record tha t  these par ts  of  my – of  my aff idavi t  I  read 20 

i t  in  –  in to record and then Mr  Soni  takes me out  on each 

and every i ssue that  he wants to  g r i l l  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja no,  no,  that  … 

MR MONTANA:   And then the other  context  o f  how we come 

here.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   And other  at tached documents.   I  w i l l  

speak wi th  the – I  wi l l  speak on them in the course of  the – 

of  the test imony Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no that  is  f ine.   As you know I  have 

asked Mr Soni  whether  he has any par t i cu la r  t ime that  he 

th inks would be appropr ia te he says he has no par t i cu lar  

t ime.  So I  th ink I  wi l l  g ive you a  chance now to put  your  

s ide of  the story on the proper t ies basica l ly  reading in to the 

record what  is  in  your  aff idavi t  that  is  not  before the 10 

commission but  i t  is  f ine to  just  read that  par t .  So a f ter  you 

have f in ished then Mr Soni  can put  quest ions to  you.  

MR MONTANA:   Thank you – thank you Chai r  I  rea l l y  

appreciate i t .  Thank you Mr Soni .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Soni  you wanted to  say someth ing.  

ADV SONI SC:   Just  –  I  am going to  deal  wi th  the contents 

of  that  in  a moment .  

CHAIRPERSON:   In  due course.  

ADV SONI SC:   In  due course.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No that  i s  f ine.  20 

ADV SONI SC:   But  what  I  would just  l ike f rom Mr Montana 

is  I  do not  know whether  the aff idavi t  he submi t ted ear l ier  is  

the same aff idavi t  because I  understand that  he has drawn 

up a new aff idavi t .   I  –  I  am not  ra is ing technica l i t ies I  just  

do not  want  there to  be a d is juncture between what  he 



10 MAY 2021 – DAY 391 
 

Page 15 of 179 
 

reads in to the record and the aff idavi t  that  may become par t  

o f  the commission .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Actual l y  what  you know what  we could do  

– now I  remember even our  d iscussion las t ime because I  

had sa id i t  would  be  bet te r  i f  one has read your  – what  you 

are going  to  say before we star t  i t  makes th ings easier.   I s  

i t  not  possib le  that  for  p resent  purposes we cou ld so to  

upl i f t  f rom his a ff idavi t  that  sect ion that  deals w i th  the 

proper t ies and then maybe we could adjourn – le t  me read – 

read i t  Mr Soni  you can get  a  chance to read i t  and then 10 

when we come back then he – he reads them into the record 

or  whatever  but  a t  least  we know what  he has to  say.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Can – is  i t  f ine i f  we do i t  that  way? 

MR MONTANA:   No,  no I  am happy Chai r  I  th ink that  – that  

would be the r ight  way.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja – Yes.  And that  sect ion  could –  

because i t  is  a  s tand-a lone could even be an Exhib i t  on i ts  

own.   I t  could be admi t ted as an Exhib i t  .  

ADV SONI SC:   As you p lease Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   You know on i ts  own.   Shal l  we just  

ad journ so that  that  can be done.   How long would that  take 

to  – to  do? 

ADV SONI SC:   Is  th is  the same as – I  am asking.  

MR MONTANA:   No,  no i t  i s  – I  have got  i t  Chai r  I  –  I  have 
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got  i t  here.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You have got  i t  here.  

MR MONTANA:   I  w i l l  g ive i t  to  the team to make copies 

quick ly  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  I t  is  a  s tand-a lone.  

MR MONTANA:   I t  is  a  stand-a lone Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   S tand-a lone okay.  

MR MONTANA:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Then – then le t  me adjourn and then 

copies can be made.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We – i t  is  f i f teen page you sa id.  I t  is  

f i f teen pages.  

MR MONTANA:   Chai r  I  th ink i t  i s  about  f i f teen pages.   I  

th ink i t  is  page 311 to – to  page – ja  I  th ink i t  is  about  

f i f teen pages Cha i r  –  I  th ink to  page 3 – 327.   I t  is  not  a  lo t  

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay we have – Ja i t  might  – I  do not  

know – I  do not… 

ADV SONI SC:   I t  cer ta in ly  would expedi te  mat te rs.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes i t  w i l l  exped i te  mat ters.   So – so le t  

us  see once I  am done or  – wel l  –  I  wi l l  le t  you know.   That  

might  take about  maybe th i r ty / fo r ty  minutes I  am not  sure.   

Depends on how – how fast  one can read.   But  le t  us – le t  

us t ry  that .  
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ADV SONI SC:   As you p lease Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So le t  me adjourn and that  copies  can be 

made then I  wi l l  be g iven a copy I  wi l l  s ta r t  reading and 

then we can resume af ter  that .    

ADV SONI SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay we adjourn.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON :    A re  we ready?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    We are  ready,  Cha i rperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   Le t  us  cont inue then.   

Wel l ,  I  saw in  the  s ta tement ,  Mr  Montana,  tha t  there  i s  a  

re ference to ,  maybe one o r  two,  annexures.   I  am not  sure .   

A re  those annexures ava i lab le?  

MR MONTANA :    Yes,  Cha i r  they  are  ava i lab le .   Jus t  to  

exp la in ,  as  d iscussed w i th  Mr  Son i .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  you w i l l  see  I  have g i ven –  I  

thought  I  had the  commiss ioned a f f idav i t  bu t  i t  w i l l  be  he re  

by  luncht ime,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    So  I  gave the  cop ies  so  tha t  we can 

proceed,  bu t  i t  is  exact ly  the  same as you have .   The 

annexures are  a lso  ava i lab le .   So we w i l l  make those 

ava i lab le .   And we have ag reed w i th  Mr  Son i  tha t  over  and  
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above tha t  we w i l l  pu l l  ou t  th is  sec t ion  w i th  the  annexures 

so  tha t  I  hand them to  the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    So  tha t  we know we are  done w i th  th is  

par t i cu la r  mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    As  you p lease.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I t  seems as i f  the  annexures are  no t  

here  a t  the  moment  bu t  Mr  Montana w i l l  make them 

ava i lab le  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wi l l  supp ly  them.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . .a t  luncht ime or  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   Okay le t  us  cont inue  then.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Mr  Montana . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Montana,  you can then read in to  the 

record  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Thank you . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . your  s ta tement .    

MR MONTANA :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   I  th ink  –  I  rea l l y  

apprec ia te  Cha i r  and I  th ink  th is  mat te r  has been,  no t  on ly  

be fore  th is  Commiss ion ,  bu t  th roughout  the  count ry  to  the  

na t ion  about  th is  p roper t ies  and every th ing .   And  tha t  i s  
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why I  wanted to  pu t  tha t  on  record  be fore  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    And you w i l l  see ,  in i t ia l l y,  Mr  Son i  

ment ioned tha t  I  am ta lk ing  about  four  p roper t ies  –  a l l  my 

proper t ies .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    And tha t  i s  fou r,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    But  th is  s ta tement  exp la ins  Cha i r,  you w i l l  

see ,  i t  exp la ins  how the  –  ac tua l l y  the  en t i re  seven 10 

proper t ies  wh ich  I  used to  have Cha i r.   I  do  no t  have them 

today.   I  th ink  i t  i s  very  impor tan t .   That  those proper t ies  

how they are  f inanced.   A l l  the  o ther  p roper t ies  tha t  we are  

re fer r i ng  to .   And  I  th ink  i t  i s  very  impor tan t  because i t  i s  

a t  the  hear t  o f  what  we do Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    You w i l l  see  tha t ,  Cha i r,  i s  –  so  i t  is  –  the  

head ing  is ,  My Proper ty  Dea l ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe,  Mr  Son i ,  we shou ld  admi t  th is  as  

an  exh ib i t .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    As  you p lease,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you have a  suggest ion  what  exh ib i t  i t  

shou ld  be?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I t  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  we shou ld  –  I  am go ing  to  wr i te  
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on  m ine . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . I  w i l l  wr i te  –  I  w i l l  s imp ly  wr i te  

Mr  Montana ’s  ve rs ion  on  the  proper t ies  as  read in to  the  

record  today.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.    

MR MONTANA :    I  th ink  they took –  tha t  a f te r  I  have 

submi t ted  w i th  the  a f f idav i t  a t  luncht ime,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  we can  admi t  i t  now because 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR MONTANA :    Now?  Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .because i t  i s  a  s tanda lone.  

MR MONTANA :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then the  annexures can come la te r.   

Mr  Montana ’s  ve rs ion  on  the  p roper t ies  as  read in to  the  

record  on  10 May 2021.   And then what  exh ib i t  shou ld  we  

make th is  to  be?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Cha i rperson,  I  was jus t  go ing  to  

make a  suggest ion  tha t  i t  wou ld  be  SS-18(b)  because i t  i s  

a  response to  Mr  Oe l le rmann ’s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Exh ib i t  SS-18(b) .   Cap i ta l  le t te r  B  or  

smal l  le t te r  B?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    We can make  i t  smal l  le t te r  B ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Smal l  le t te r.   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You conf i rm,  Mr  Montana,  tha t  th is  i s  
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your  ve rs ion?  Th is  document  conta ins  your  vers ion  on  the 

proper t ies  and tha t  i t  con tents  a re  t rue  and cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA :    Yes,  I  do  Cha i r.   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Th is  document  w i l l  there fore  be  

admi t ted  as  an  exh ib i t  and w i l l  be  marked as  Exh ib i t  Ss-

18(b) .  

WITNESS,  MR MONTANA’S STATEMENT ON PROPERTIES 

(WITNESS’S OWN VERSION)  IS SUBMITTED AND 

MARKED AS EXHIBIT  SS-18(b)  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    As  you p lease,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   Okay you can go  ahead 

then Mr  Montana.  

MR MONTANA :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Cha i r,  le t  me be 

head ing  to  the  document ,  to  tha t  document  you jus t  

admi t ted .   Th is  i s  my proper ty  dea l ings.   Cha i r,  i t  says :  

“There  is  an  a l legat ion  tha t  Montana rece ived  

gra t i f i ca t ion  in  the  fo rm o f  p roper t ies  

purchases on  h is  beha l f  o f  S iyangena 

Techno log ies .  

In  i t  so-ca l led  pre l im ina ry  repor t  on  PRASA,  20 

the  Commiss ion ’s  invest iga tor,  C l in t  

Oe l le rmann,  and  Ev idence Leader,  Advocate  

Basson,  i s  to ld  the  Cha i rperson o f  the  

Commiss ion ,  DCJ Zondo,  tha t  “Montana 

purchases proper t ies  o f  over  R 36 mi l l ion  
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w i th in  a  year.  

Th is  i s  fa lse .  

S iyangena Techno log ies  fo r  R iaan van der  

Wal t  d id  no t  purchase any p roper t y  fo r  me.  

There  are  four  p roper t ies  ment ioned in  

Mr  Oe l le rmann ’s  repor t .  

One in  Rose S t ree t ,  Waterk loo f  in  Pre tor ia ,  two 

ad jacent  p roper t ies  in  Brook lyn ,  and another  in  

Ant i re  Road,  Sandhurs t .  

Th is  were  purchased,  buy and a re  owned by  10 

Prec i se  Trade,  a  company in  wh ich  R iaan van  

der  Wal t  i s  a  so le  shareho lder  and d i rec to r.  

I  re jec t  w i th  contempt  the  suggest ion  these 

proper t ies  be long ing  to  me.  

There  are  seven proper t ies  in  my name.  

I  acqu i red  th ree  o f  the  proper t ies  be fore  I  

jo ined PRASA in  1998,  2004 and  2005 and I  

acqu i red  four  when I  was in  the  employ  o f  

PRASA.  

I  have s ince  d isposed o f f  four  p roper t ies  over  20 

the  years .  

There  was no R iaan van de r  Wal t  o f  S iyangena 

Techno log ies  who d id  no t  buy any o f  these 

proper t ies .  

I  used my proper t ies  to  genera te  pro f i t  o r  as 
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an  equ i ty (?)  in  any proper ty  deve lopment  

where  I  became par tne r.  

I  have the  fu l l  r igh t  to  g rown my p roper t y  

por t fo l io  and e lec ted  to  par tne r  w i t h  R iaan van 

der  Wal t  in  th is  regard .  

My re la t ionsh ip  w i th  R iaan van der  Wal t  was 

above board .  

I t  was a  par tnersh ip  about  mob i l i s ing  common 

resources to  deve lop  proper t ies  and make  

money.  10 

The pa r tnersh ip  we bu i l t  were  about  ident i f y ing  

oppor tun i t ies  in  t he  p roper t y  secto r  w i th  a  v iew 

to  en ter  i n to  a  jo ined  venture  par tnersh ip  

agreements  fo r  purposes o f  deve lopment  and 

u l t imate ly  sha re  in  the  pro f i t  in  each o f  the  

deve lopments .  

There  is  no th ing  i r regu lar  o r  un lawfu l  about  

th is .  

Mr  Van der  Wal t  was not  a  d i rec to r  o r  an  

employee o f  S iyangena Techno log ies ,  had not  20 

done work  fo r  PRASA nor  has he  been 

invo lved w i th  PRASA tenders ,  ou r  

E lec t r i c ian(?)  S iyangena Techno log ies .  

There  was no con f l i c t  o f  in te res t .  

There  was no case o f  a  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t .  



10 MAY 2021 – DAY 391 
 

Page 24 of 179 
 

Unfo r tunate ly,  the  par tnersh ip ,  R iaan van de r  

Wal t  and I  were  pursu ing  d id  no t  mater ia l i se  

and ended on 29 October  2015.  

A copy o f  an  emai l  f rom Riaan van der  Wal t  

te rm inat ing  our  re la t ionsh ip  i s  a t tached here to ,  

marked TLM-1160 . . . ”  

 And Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  i s  what  we w i l l  p rov ide  

there  in  the  course  o f  tha t .   I t  w i l l  show tha t  the  –  in  our  

communica t ion  tha t  we ta lk  about  tha t  par tnersh ip  or  jo in t  

ventures .  10 

“There  is  a  despera te  a t tempt  to  p resent  the  

par tnersh ip  w i th  R iaan van der  Wa l t  and I  were  

pursu ing  as  a  secre t  and l inked to  th is  to  the  

tenders  awarded to  S iyangena Techno log ies .  

Th is  i s  s imp ly  no t  t rue .  

In  i t s  p re l im ina ry  repor t  p resented to  the  

Commiss ion ,  Mr  Oe l le rmann a t tempts  to  

p resent  f inanc ia l  o r  g rand(?)  s ta tements  o f  

Loubser (?)  Van  der  Wal t  Incorpora ted ,  

managed by  R iaan van der  Wal t  as  i f  th is  20 

be longs to  Prec i se  Trade and by  ex tens ion  to  

my re la t ionsh ip  w i th  R iaan van der  Wal t . . . ”  

 So,  Cha i r,  whatever  t ransact ions tha t  took p lace 

between Loubser  Van der  Wal t  Incorpo ra ted  and TMM are  

no t  known to  me and have noth ing  to  do  w i th  me.    
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“ I  had dea l ings w i th  Prec i se  Trade wh ich  had 

noth ing  to  do  w i th  TMM or  the  proper t ies  wh ich  

Loubser  van der  Wal t  Incorpora ted  was 

manag ing .  

Th is  was conf i rmed by  Rober t . . . ”  

 I  th ink  Mat thews is  the  surname.  

“ . . . f rom Loubser  Van der  Wal t  dur ing  h is  

tes t imony here .  

“He seemed aggr ieved,  thought ,  about  the  fac t  

tha t  R iaan van der  Wal t  may have done o ther  10 

bus iness ou ts ide  the  law f i rm and the  o ther  

par tners  d id  no t  know.  

Aga in ,  th is  f igh t  among the  par tne rs  had  

noth ing  to  do  w i th  me.  

The fa lse  in fo rmat ion  about  g ra t i f i ca t ion  was  

f i rs t  leaked to  the  journa l i s t ,  Mr  Pe ter -Lynne(? )  

Myburgh when I  was s t i l l  a t  PRASA.  

The journa l i s t  requested an in te rv iew wi th  me  

on the  var ious proper t ies  I  owned a t  the  t ime.  

The in i t ia l  a l lega t ion  was tha t  the  proper t y  I  20 

owned in  10  Newpor t ,  Parkwood,  

Johannesburg  was bought  fo r  me by  A ls tom,  

the  lead company,  the  G ibe la  Ra i l  Consor t ium,  

wh ich  won the  R 53 b i l l i on  PRASA Rol l ing  

S tock  F lee t  Renewal  Programme Tender  in  
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2012.  

Mr  Myburgh had a l ready contac ted  some 

members  o f  the  G ibe la  Consor t ium to  in te rv iew 

them about  the  sa id  proper ty.  

I  g ran ted Mr  Myburgh an  in te rv iew in  

Apr i l  2015.  

I  b rought  to  the  o f f i ce  a l l  my  f i les  o f  the  

proper t ies ,  conta in ing  bank approva ls  and 

month l y  repayments  o f  the  bond fac i l i t i es .  

I  gave Mr  Myburgh the  t ime in  my o f f i ce . . . ”  10 

 He sa t  there ,  Cha i r,  to  read these  documents  i n  

the  presence o f  the  PRASA’s  spokesperson,  Mr  Moffa t (? )  

Mofokeng –  so  we are  no t  in to  peruse the  f i les .  

“ I t  became c lear  to  Mr  Myburgh tha t  he  was on 

a  goose chase  to  nowhere  and the  f i les  

ind ica ted  the  proper ty  in  quest ion  was 

acqu i red  by  me in  2008 and f inanced by  ABSA 

Bank. . . ”  

 So 2008,  the re  was a l so  no  tender,  Cha i r,  fo r  

th is  ro l l ing  s tock .   So there  was no  A ls tom invo lved in  tha t .  20 

“When the  oppor tun i ty  p resented i t se l f  –  and 

Mr  Myburgh to  in te rv iew me,  he  changed h is  

tune.  

I t  was no longer  about  p roper t ies .  

Ins tead,  the  in te rv iew focus on  the  Ro l l ing  
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S tock  F lee t  Renewal  Programme,  RSFRP,  and  

he wanted c la r i t y  on  the  d i f fe ren t  p layers  in  

th is  par t i cu la r  t ransact ion .  

He proceeded to  wr i te  a  p iece  in  t he  Rappor t ,  

a  Sunday newspaper,  about  the  ro le -p layers  

and t ry ing  to  l ink  these var ious ind iv idua ls  to  

fo rmer  Pres ident  Jacob Zuma.  

I  had issue then. . . ”  

 Cha i r,  I  want  –  I  am go ing  to  bu i ld (?)  w i th  a  la te r  

s tage when I  come back w i th  my  a f f idav i t ,  how th is  en t i re  10 

th ing  was ac tua l l y  sa id  as  to  pursue fo rmer  p res ident .   I  

w i l l  dea l  w i th  tha t  a t  the  –  a t  a  la te r  –  so  he  i s . . .   He 

in te rv iewed me about  the  house and sa id :   A ls tom bought  

you a  house.    

 But  when he wro te  and he rea l i sed,  then i t  was  

sa id :   No,  i t  i s  f inanced by  the  bank – the  Parkwood 

proper ty  tha t  Mr  Son i  w i l l  ask  me about .   He found tha t  tha t  

p roper ty  ac tua l l y  i s  f inanced by  the  bank.   And then he 

then in te rv iewed me about  who a re  the  d i f fe ren t  p layers .   I  

exp la ined to  h im and he went  to  wr i te  an  ar t i c le  fo r  20 

Rappor t  newspaper  as  we l l  as  the  C i ty  Press,  I  remember.    

 And tha t  i s  when  they t r ied  to  d rag the  name o f  

fo rmer  Pres ident  Zuma in  a l l  o f  th is .   Th i s  th ing  is  b ig ,  

Cha i r.   I  w i l l  dea l  w i th  i t  a t  the  r igh t  t ime.    

“ I  i ssued a  s ta tement  on  February  2016,  the  
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a l legat ions tha t  I  benef i ted  cor rup t ly  th rough 

my proper t ies  and I  w i l l  a t tach  here  to  you a  

copy o f  my s ta tement  marked TLM-161. . . ”  

 Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  w i l l  be  anothe r  annexure  tha t  

we w i l l  p rov ide  Cha i r.    

“As  recent  as  30  January  2018,  I  have re jec ted  

th is  a l legat ions aga in  in  my tes t imony befo re  

the  Par l iamenta ry  Inqu i ry  in to  Governance a t  

Eskom.  

I  am re jec t ing  the  fa lse  in fo rmat ion  and  10 

conc lus ion  been  made by  C l in t  Oe l le rmann,  

c la im ing tha t  I  bought  p roper t ies  to  the  va lue  

o f  ove r  R 30 mi l l ion .  

I  can conf i rm tha t  my own proper t ies  were  

f inanced by  ABSA through a  fac i l i t y  ca l led  a 

Pr iva te  One Bank Account ,  a  fac i l i t y  to  the  

tune o f  R 10.5  m i l l ion .  

I  a t tached he re to  a  copy o f  the  ABSA Pr iva te  

One Bank fac i l i t y  marked TLM-162. . . ”  

 And I  th ink  there  is  another  annexure ,  Cha i r,  tha t  20 

we w i l l  p rov ide  to  the  Commiss ion .  

“My month ly  repayments  fo r  the  fac i l i t y  a t  the 

t ime was R 95 973,00.  

A copy o f  the  emai l  f rom ABSA,  ca lcu la t ing  the  

repayments  and the  te rms o f  the  fac i l i t i es  a re 
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a t tached here to ,  marked TLM-163.  

The spec i f i c  de ta i l s  o f  the  proper t ies  covered  

by  the  Pr i va te  One fac i l i t y. . .  

F-178,  Saxonwold ,  Johannesburg ,  mor tgage 

bond in  the  cap i ta l  amount  o f  R 4  675 000,00.  

Er f  359,  Parkwood,  Johannesburg . . .  [and th is  

i s  the  one tha t  has been h igh l igh ted ,  Cha i r,  

tha t  I  so ld  i t . ]  . . .mor tgage bond in  the  cap i ta l  

amount  o f  R 2  m i l l ion .  

Remainder  ex ten t  o f  1  F 161,  Waterk loo f ,  10 

Pre tor ia ,  f i rs t  cont inu ing  cover  mor tgage bond  

in  the  cap i ta l  amount  o f  R 1  750 000,00.  

Remainder  ex ten t  o f  E r f  161,  Wate rk loo f ,  

second cont inu ing  cover ing  mor tgage bond in  

the  cap i ta l  amoun t  o f  R 270 000,00 . . . ”  

 So th is  was when I  was do ing  improvements  on  

the  proper t ies  and o f  course ,  so  you can see fo r  the  same 

proper ty  there  is  a  th i rd  cont inu ing  cover  bond  in  the  

cap i ta l  amount  o f  R 200 000,00.  

“Er f  1242,  Wate rk loo f ,  P re tor ia .    20 

F i rs t  cont inu ing  cover ing  mor tgage bond o f  

R 2  160 000,00. . . ”  

 And Cha i r,  I  p roceed,  I  say :    

“ I  so ld  one o f  the  proper t ies  in  Wate rk loo f  

wh ich  reduced the  pr inc ipa l  debt  o f  the  fac i l i t y  
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to  R 8 .3  m i l l ion .  

The month ly  repayments  were  accord ing l y  

reduced to  R 63 593,00.  

A copy o f  the  ABSA le t te r  i s  a t tached here to ,  

marked TLM-164.  

In  add i t ion  to  the  four  p roper t ies ,  I  acqu i red  in  

1998 another  p roper ty  in  Mamelod i ,  P re tor ia  

w i th  a  mor tgage bond f rom Nat iona l  Bank. . . ”  

 I  th ink  the  amoun t  was –  they d id  no t  inc lude the  

amount  there  bu t  i t  was R 116 000,00 Char.  10 

“ I  la te r  so ld  four  o f  the  proper t ies  and used the  

proceeds to  se t t le  debts  and to  invest  in  o ther  

p roper t ies . . . ”  

 And I  th ink ,  Cha i r,  th is  i s  very  impor tan t  because  

Mr  Son i  sa id  le t  us  focus on  the  fou r.   I  want  to  show the 

Commiss ion  how,  when I  so ld ,  I  go t  invo lved in  t he  fou r  

p roper t ies  tha t  he  ment ioned.   So in  each o f  these  I  have 

used my own money,  Cha i r,  f rom the  sa le  o f  o ther  

p roper t ies  tha t  I  have deve loped(? ) .  

“ I  had re l ied  on  the  proper t ies  wh ich  I  owned 20 

and the  Pr iva te  One fac i l i t y  tha t  ABSA had  

ex tended to  me,  to  e i ther  buy p roper t ies  or  

en ter  in to  par tnersh ips  or  jo in t  ventures  to  

un lock  va lue  f rom proper t ies  I  owned or  to  

invest  in  new deve lopments .  
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I  had a lso  los t  money in  some o f  the 

deve lopments ,  d id  no t  mater ia l i se  or  were  

abandoned. . . ”  

 So Cha i r,  i t  has  been made,  a  s ta tement  has 

been made tha t  I  bought  –  I  go t  invo l ved in  a l l  o f  those  

th ings.   I  d id  no t  have a  cent  to  buy and tha t  i s  so  fa lse  

Cha i r.    

“Unfor tunate ly,  ABSA cou ld  no  longer  ex tend 

the  Pr iva te  Once fac i l i t y  fu r ther  and had  

ins is ted  tha t  I  had to  d ispose o f f  o r  ren t  ou t  10 

some o f  the  proper t ies  to  remain  w i th in  the  

a f fo rdab i l i t y  se t  tha t  the  bank  before  any 

f inanc ing  cou ld  –  fea ture  f inanc ing  cou ld  be  

cons idered.  

I ,  there fo re ,  had to  se l l  some o f  the  proper t ies  

to  meet  the  bank ’s  requ i rements  to  genera te  

cash o r  pay fo r  my s take in  the  va r ious 

deve lopments ’ agreements  I  had  in tended to  

par take.  

The fa l se  a l legat ions about  g ra t i f i ca t ion  20 

emanates  f rom the  a f f idav i t s  o f  Pau l  O ’Su l l i van  

and Ph i lemon Mamabolo  who has do ing  some 

invest iga t ion  work  on  beha l f  o f  Popo Mole fe  

and Werksmans A t to rneys.  

I  p rov ide  be low fu r the r  de ta i l s  o f  each o f  the  
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seven proper t ies  I  owned. . . ”  

 And Cha i r,  tha t  is  where  I  want  to  then exp la in  

the  sa le  o f  th is  pa id  fo r  th is ,  wh ich  I  th ink  th is  

Oe l le rmann ’s  repor t  fa i led  to  unders tand.   Cha i r,  le t  me 

s tar t  w i th  the  f i rs t  one.   In  2016,  Mr  Myburgh t respassed 

on one o f  my proper t ies ,  333 Main  S t ree t ,  Wate rk loo f ,  

P re tor ia ,  c la im ing he was invest iga t ing  cor rup t ion  in  the 

manner  in  wh ich  I  had acqu i red  th is  p roper ty.    

 The sa id  proper ty  was purchased in  

December  2004  when  I  re loca ted f rom Cape Town to  s ta r t  a  10 

new job  as  Depu ty  D i rec to r  Genera l  in  the  Depar tment  o f  

Transpor t .   Now Cha i r,  I  ment ioned tha t  because i t  i s  very  

impor tan t .   I  on ly  s ta r ted  a t  PRASA in  2006.   The bank  

f inanced th is  p roper t y  in  2004 but  I  am be ing  accused tha t  

I  bought  i t  f rom cor rup t  p roceeds  f rom PRASA when I  was 

not  even work ing  fo r  PRASA a t  tha t  t ime,  Cha i r.   So i t  i s  

very  impor tan t  tha t  I  pu t  tha t  on  record .  

 The p roper t y  aga in  was f inanced by  ABSA and I  

th ink  I  ment ioned  the  de ta i l s  o f  how i t  – the  amount  o f  the 

bond.   I  deve loped the  proper ty  in to  a  modern  proper t y  in  20 

the  hear t  o f  Waterk loo f .   I t  i s  today be ing  used  as  an  

embassy a f te r  I  have so ld  i t ,  Cha i r,  fo r  about  R 8 .5  m i l l ion .   

Ja ,  R 8 .5  m i l l ion  in  la te  2016.   The bond cance l la t i on  was 

in  the  reg ion  o f  the  R 2 .2  m i l l ion  and the  res t  o f  the 

proceeds were  i nvested  in to  another  p roper ty,  Vic to r ia  
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S t ree t  in  Wate rk loo f .    

 So ,  Cha i r  –  so  th is  p roper ty  I  bought  in  2004,  

deve loped i t ,  I  was not  work ing  fo r  PRASA,  and so ld  i t  in  

2016.   Yet  the  journa l i s t  comes in to  the  house.   I  th ink  

there  was a  s to ry  tha t  I  h i t  h im wi th  a  br ick  or  someth ing  

l i ke  tha t .   I t  was in  the  newspapers .   But  Cha i r,  I  am an 

A f r i can man.   [Speak ing  vernacu lar ] .   And do as  he  w ish .   I  

w i l l  never  a l low tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    I  was say ing ,  Mr  Son i ,  tha t  as  an  A f r i can  10 

man I  w i l l  no t  a l low a  man to  t respass a t  my fa ther ’s (?)  

house and do as  he  w ishes.   Mr  Myburgh was t ry ing  to  do ,  

Cha i r,  he  t respassed.   He was the re  ins ide  my –  ins ide  my 

yard .   And th is  p roper ty,  as  you can see,  I  bought  i t  be fore  

I  worked fo r  PRASA,  Cha i r.   So tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  i ssues  

here .  

 Then there  is  another  p roper ty,  1242 Wate rk loo f .   

Cha i r,  th is  p roper ty  was purchased  in  2005 and aga in  I  was  

not  work ing  fo r  PRASA,  Cha i r.   Th is  was f inanced by  the  

bank th rough the  very  same pr iva te  one bank fac i l i t y.   20 

Cha i r,  the  impor tan t  po in t  –  two  po in ts  –  le t  me f in ish 

read ing  i t  and there  are  two impor tan t  po in ts  tha t  I  want  to  

h igh l igh t  fo r  the  Cha i r.  

“ I  had done majo r  renovat ions and ex tens ions  

to  the  proper ty.  
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The p roper t y  was va lued a t  R 8 .5  m i l l ion  in  

2013.  

However,  the  proper ty  was so ld  fo r  

R 2  750 000,00 to  a  fami ly  tha t  owned one o f  

the  proper t ies  purchased by  R iaan van der  

Wal t  in  Brook l yn . . . ”  

 So when he ta lked about  two Brook lyn  ad jacent  

p roper t ies ,  Cha i r,  you w i l l  see ,  I  w i l l  exp la in  th i s  po in t .   So 

i t  re la tes  to  the  second proper ty  tha t  they a re  no t  par t  o f  

the  four  tha t  Mr  Son i . . .   I  want  to  demonst ra te ,  Cha i r,  to  10 

you tha t  in  each and every  proper ty  dea l ings I  go t  invo lved 

I  owned a  house.   I  e i ther  so ld  or  pu t  i t  in to  a  scheme.    

“ I  have taken the  r i sk  o f  le t t ing  go  o f  the  

proper ty  a t  a  huge ly  d iscounted pr i ce .    

Th is  was to  fac i l i ta te  fo r  the  conso l ida t ion  o f  

the  proper t ies  and deve lopment  in  the  fu tu re .  

The deve lopment  wou ld  have invo lved P rec ise  

Trade and myse l f .  

P rec i se  Trade is  a  company tha t  i s  owned by  

R iaan van der  Wa l t . . . ”  20 

 So here  is  th is  fami ly,  Cha i r.   Why I  bought  –  and 

these proper t ies  are  in  t he  same s t ree t ,  by  the  way Cha i r,  

in  Waterk loo f .   When I  was Deputy  D i rec tor  Genera l  in  the 

Depar tment  o f  Transpor t ,  I  was s tay ing  in  a  house.   My  

house was a t tacked by  war lo rds  or  Inkhat i (? )  f rom the  tax i  
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indust ry  because one o f  the  p rog rammes I  was runn ing  was  

a  Tax i  Recap i ta l i sa t ion  Programme.  

 And the  S ta te  Secur i t y,  Nat iona l  In te l l igence a t  

tha t  t ime,  agency,  came and do a  secur i t y  assessment  and  

sa id :   Look,  you r  p roper ty  i s  ac tua l l y  s i t t ing  in  a  p lace  

where  i t  i s  easy tha t  you cou ld  be  a t tacked because i t  i s  

c loser  to  a  shopp ing  cent re .   Someone can moni to r  and  

movements  f rom there .   They asked tha t  I  move.   So I  d id  

no t  se l l  the  proper ty  bu t  I  moved  Cha i r  s i x  s t ree t  fu r ther  

away f rom there .   Th i s  i s  the  proper ty  tha t  I  bought .  10 

 And I  deve loped  i t  and you can  see,  Cha i r,  I  

bought  i t  be fore  I  worked fo r  PRASA in  2005.   So the  f i rs t  

one in  2004,  the  second one is  in  2005.   I  deve loped i t  

Cha i r,  bu t  i f  d isposa l  i s  very  impor tan t  because i t  re la tes  to  

the  two proper t ies  tha t  R iaan purchased,  Cha i r,  as  i t  were ,  

and th is  was not  in  Oe l le rmann ’s  repor t ,  Cha i r,  because  

those deta i l s  were  le f t  ou t .   I f  I  had been in te rv iewed,  

those deta i l s  wou ld  have been made and th is  repor t  wou ld  

no t  have come before  the  Commiss ion  because they wou ld  

have seen tha t  th is  man had put  h is  money in to  a l l  o f  th is  20 

deve lopment  Cha i r.  

 So,  I  had e f fec t i ve l y  a f te r  tha t  t ransact ion  and 

the  en t i re  th ing  was abandoned,  I  have los t  approx imate l y  

Cha i r,  i f  we look a t  the  va lues o f  the  proper t ies ,  about  

R 5 .7  m i l l ion  in  -  when I  p repared fo r  tha t  par tnersh ip .   



10 MAY 2021 – DAY 391 
 

Page 36 of 179 
 

Now th is  E r f  178 Saxonwold ,  Cha i r.   Th is  p roper ty  was  

purchased in  2008.   I  was work ing  fo r  PRASA.   Aga in ,  i t  

was f inanced by  the  bank fo r  R 4 .6  m i l l ion  and  I  jus t  

recent ly  so ld  i t  Cha i r  to  se t t le  my –  to  se t t le  the  ve ry  same 

fac i l i t y  w i th  ABSA and to  se t t led  a lso  my debt  w i th  the  

South  A f r i can Revenue Serv ices .  

 Now Er f  359 Parkwood,  Cha i r,  the  proper t y  was 

purchased in  2008.   Cha i r,  I  pa id  R 2  m i l l ion  fo r  i t .   I t  was 

f inanced by  the  bank f rom the  very  same fac i l i t y  and  i t  was 

a  comple te  wreck ,  Cha i r.   I  s t i l l  have p ic tu res  o f  then and 10 

now.   I  bought  the  proper ty  because I  have been  dea l ing  

w i th  p roper t y  Cha i r.   I  had rebu i ld  the  proper t y  and then  

tu rned i t  in to  a modern  house.   I  so ld  i t  fo r  R 6 .8  m i l l ion  to  

R iaan van der  Wa l t  in  2013,  Cha i r.  

 Mr  Lou is (?)  Myburgh c la imed in  h is  a r t i c le ,  and 

th is  you w i l l  ge t  i t  f rom the  a f f idav i t  o f  m is te r  –  the  22-page 

a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Pau l  O ’Su l l i van ,  tha t  accord ing  to  

ne ighbours  in  Parkwood,  the  p roper ty  shou ld  have been  

so ld  f o r  R 4 .8  m i l l ion .   I  in i t ia l l y  asked fo r  R 7 .2  m i l l ion  bu t  

R iaan van der  Wal t  o f fe red  me R 6 .8  m i l l ion  fo r  the 20 

proper ty  wh ich  I  accepted.   The va lua t ion  o f  the  R 3  m i l l ion 

tha t  i s  been the  abandoned(?)  Cha i r,  i t  i s  no t  known to  me 

and d id  no t  re la te  to  the  pr ice  o f  the  proper ty  a t  the  t ime o f  

the  sa le .  

 I t  has  been b rought  here  as  par t  o f  the  
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Oe l le rmann ’s  repor t ,  Cha i r,  tha t  the  proper ty  was 

va lued(?) .   I t  i s  fa lse ,  Cha i r.   There  is  no  such a  th ing .   

Th is  i s  no ise  about  the  pr ice  o f  the  proper ty  d id  no t  –  the 

no ise  about  the  proper ty  o r  the  pr ice  o f  the  proper ty  d id  

no t  come f rom ne ighbours ,  as  c la imed by  Myburgh in  h is  

a r t i c le ,  bu t  i t  came f rom Mr  Pau l  O ’Su l l i van ’s  22-page  

a f f idav i t .   And Cha i r,  I  want  to  cha l lenge the  ne ighbours .   I  

th ink  th is  Commiss ion ,  i f  i t  i s  t rue  to  what  Mr  Oe l le rmann  

says.  

 Take the  s ta tement  f rom the  ne ighbour,  they pu t  10 

i t  under  oa th  and  we cross-examine the  ne ighbours  as  we l l  

to  say :   Do you be l ieve  i t?   And ye t  have you seen 

Mr  Montana ’s  house?  Have you  l i ved  in  tha t  par t i cu la r  

house?  Mr  Son i  ra ised an issue tha t  Mr  Sa ik i (? )  

Zamchlaka(? )  who was one o f  the  CEO’s  l i ved  in  the  

house,  Cha i r.   And i t  i s  t rue .   He l ived  in  my house –  in  the 

house Cha i r  bu t  the  ins inuat ion  tha t  Mr  Zamchlaka l i ved  in  

tha t  house because he was invo lved in  a  cor rup t  scheme,  

tha t  i s  no t  t rue  Cha i r.  

 The house was  a  wreck,  I  f i xed  i t ,  I  le f t  i t ,  20 

ac tua l l y,  unoccup ied .   I t  was vanda l ised.   I  f i xed  i t  and  

Mr  Zamchlaka a t  some s tage fo r  h is  own fami ly  reasons 

wh ich  I  cannot  dea l  w i th  i t .   He was fo rced to  l i ve  in  the 

c i t y  o f  Johannesburg .   And I  sa id  to  h im:   My bro the r,  the  

gangster  in  the  c i t y  o f  Johannesburg ,  they are  go ing  to  k i l l  
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you .   I  have got  a  house.   You can l i ve  there  ren t  f ree  fo r  a  

wh i le .   And when I  so ld  the  house to  Mr  R iaan van de r  

Wal t ,  they  then agreed tha t  he  can ren t  the  p roper ty.   I  do  

no t  know how much he was pay ing  and a l l  o f  those.    

 But  I  pu t  h im there  because when  I  le f t  i t  empty 

–  so  i t  was vanda l ised,  I  f i xed  i t  aga in  a t  a  huge cost ,  

Cha i r,  bu t  –  and  then he l i ved  there .   La ter  I  so ld  the  

proper ty,  Cha i r,  as  i t  were .   Now Cha i r,  you can see –  I  

want  to  exp la in  the  R 6 .8  m i l l ion ,  how i t  was spent  bu t  le t  

me f in ish  read ings these two parag raphs f i rs t .  10 

“The journa l i s t . . .  [And tha t  i s  Mr  Myburgh]  

. . .and the  so-ca l led  ne ighbours  d id  no t  have  

deta i l s  o f  the  investment  I  had made and had  

not  been ins ide  the  house –  in to  the  house.  

D id  no t  see work  wh ich  had been done,  the  

qua l i t y  o f  f in ished or  i tems tha t  had been  

ins ta l led ,  ye t  they wanted to  de termine the  

pr ice  fo r  my p roper ty. . . ”  

 The same journa l i s t  and invest iga tors  d id  no t  

re ly  on  any independent  eva lua t ion ,  Cha i r,  to  say  you must  20 

se l l  i t  fo r  R 5  m i l l ion  or  R 3  m i l l ion .   Th i s  th ing  is  jus t . . .  

[ cough ing ] .   We a re  he re  to  d iscuss the . . .  [ cough ing ]  o f  the  

house tha t  peop le  do  not  even know how I  bought  i t ,  what  

were  the  deve lopments  and a l l  o f  those th ings.    

“Mr  Myburgh s tar ted  wr i t ing  about  the  new 
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owner,  Mr  Van der  Wal t ,  and tha t  he  had  

rep resented Mr  Mar io  Fer re i ra  in  some dea l  as  

an  a t to rney. . . :  

 There fore ,  you a re  gu i l t y  by  assoc ia t ion ,  Cha i r.   

I t  i s  no t  an  issue o f  cor rup t ion  here .   I t  i s  tha t  because 

Lucky works  w i th  R iaan van der  Wal t  and Van de r  Wal t  was  

a  d i rec to r  in  another  f i rm and tha t  f i rm had worked  w i th  –  

d id  someth ing  fo r  Mr  Fer re i ra ’s  company,  TMM.   There fo re  

we are  gu i l t y.   That  i s  a t  the  hear t  o f  th is  th ing  Cha i r  bu t  I  

w i l l  exp la in  the  under l in ing  reasons why th is  i s  done(? ) .  10 

 Le t  me go to  Er f  161,  Cha i r.    

“Th is  p roper ty  was pu rchased fo r  R 2 .2  m i l l ion  

cash f rom the  p roceeds o f  the  sa le  o f  the  

Parkwood proper ty. . . ”  

 Okay?  Now th is  anothe r  p roper ty,  Cha i r,  in  

Waterk loo f .   I t  was beh ind  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  two comma . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Two . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . twenty- f i ve  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    R  2 .25  mi l l ion ,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Now Cha i r,  jus t  fo r  you to  make the  

connect ion .   You can see tha t  I  am – the re  are  two –  th is  

remain  –  remain ing  ex ten t  o f  E r f  161 Waterk loo f  and then 

there  is  Er f  161 Waterk loo f .   You can see these are  two 
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p roper t ies .   So I  owned the  proper t ies  in  f ron t .   So the  

proper ty  has been sub-d i v ided.    

 So when I  so ld  Parkwood proper ty,  Cha i r,  I  then 

sa id  because R iaan was buy ing  the . . .   I  sa id :   No,  I  want  

par t  o f  tha t  money to  be  pu t  in to  tha t  p roper ty.   So you w i l l  

see  tha t  when you look a t  my bank  account  the re  i s  no  f low 

o f  the  payments  o f  the  R 6 .8  m i l l ion  to  me.    

 There  is  -  the  money pr imar i l y  went  to  th ree  

p laces.   I t  d id  no t  come to  my account .   And I  thought  the  

invest iga to rs ,  Cha i r,  wou ld  ask  themse lves tha t  f i rs t  10 

quest ion  and they d id  no t  because they are  no t  in te res ted  

in  the  t ru th .   R  6 .8  m i l l ion  –  the  f i rs t  payment  Cha i r  went  to  

se t t le  –  to  cance l  the  bond o f  R 2  m i l l ion .   So tha t  was –  

tha t  happened.   I t  was done by  R iaan to  ABSA for  the 

Parkwood proper ty  a f te r  i t  was t ransfer red  in  h i s  name.    

 The second R 2  m i l l ion ,  Cha i r,  i t  went  to  the  

Hur l ingham p roper ty.   You see the  Hur l ingham is  one o f  the 

four,  Cha i r.   So a f te r  I  have so ld  in  Parkwood and I  found 

the  proper t y  in  Hur l ingham,  I  pa id  the  f i rs t  depos i t .   You 

w i l l  see  tha t  in  the  o f fe r  to  se l l  th is  –  to  th is  –  a depos i t  o f  20 

R 2  m i l l ion .   I t  was pa id  by  me,  Cha i r.   Mr  Oe l le rmann. . .    

 Mr  Son i  has been say ing  here  he  d id  no t  have  

money to  pay.   Not  t rue ,  Cha i r.   The R 2  m i l l ion  depos i t  

was pa id  by  me.   I t  i s  money –  i t  i s  p roceeds f rom the  sa le  

o f  the  Parkwood proper ty  tha t  was  f inanced by  ABSA.   Why 
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wou ld  –  and Cha i r,  you see,  th is  shows the  impor tance tha t  

peop le  shou ld  do  proper  invest iga t ions.   They were  here  to  

damage my name,  to  make sure  tha t  who le  count ry  i s  to ld  

Montana is  invo l ved in  cor rup t  p roper t ies ,  okay?   

So I  pa id  the  2  m i l l ion  and then the  remainder,  

Cha i r,  o f  tha t  6 .8 ,  par t  o f  i t  i s  2  m i l l ion ,  2  m i l l ion ,  fou r,  so  

tha t  i s  4 .8  and the  2 .  –  what  i s  i t ,  where  am I ,  Cha i r,  the 

2 .25  was pa id  by  R iaan on my beha l f ,  Cha i r,  f rom the  

proceeds o f  the  sa le .   Okay?  

So,  Cha i r,  the  s to ry  tha t  Parkwood was expens ive ,  10 

tha t  I  so ld  i t  above,  i t  i s  fa lse ,  un less  i f  someone who get  a  

quant i t y  surveyor  and say ca lcu la te  a l l  the  costs  and then 

make a  market  va lue ,  a  de terminat ion  o f  the  market  va lue  

and do tha t  and then dec ide  i t  i s  so .   But  fo r  me the  bo t tom 

l ine  is  tha t  the re  is  no  s ing le  t ransact ion  are  be ing  

invo l ved where  my money was not  invo lved,  Cha i r,  and I  

th ink  tha t  the  -  you know,  I  was  s i t t ing  w i th  her  in  tha t  

cha i r,  when I  l i s tened th is  repor t  be ing  tab led  here  and you 

can see tha t  the re  was no in te res t  in  the  t ru th  except  to  

damage my reputa t ion ,  tha t  he  is  cor rup t ,  he  gave  20 

S iyangena cont rac ts  so  tha t  he  can get  p roper t ies .   I t  i s  so  

fa lse ,  Cha i r.  

Now,  Cha i r,  le t  me go to  12  Mont rose,  Hur l ingham,  

i s  the  one tha t  I  sa id  the  R2 mi l l ion ,  Cha i r,  was depos i ted .   

And le t  me exp la in ,  Cha i r,  you w i l l  see  in  the  annexures 
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tha t  w i l l  come,  I  have got  an  agreement ,  what  do  you ca l l  

i t ,  a  jo in t  venture  agreement  w i th  a  company me 

Mid townbrace.   You remember  las t  week,  Cha i r,  I  ins i s ted  

tha t  you read the  a f f idav i t  deposed by  Andre  Wagner,  the  

Commiss ion  sa id  i t  i s  i r re levant ,  okay?  Why?  Because the  

Commiss ion ’s  invest iga tors  were  t ry ing  to  deny the  fac t  

tha t  I  pu t  the  f i rs t  2  m i l l i on  and I  have entered in to  a  

t ransact ion ,  in to  a  deve lopment  fo r  th is  p roper t y  because  

we had wanted to  bu i ld  15  luxu ry  un i ts  in  the  hear t  o f  

Sandhurs t  and each one o f  them,  we were  go ing  to  se l l  i t  10 

fo r  18  m i l l ion  accord ing  to  the  p lan  tha t  we had in  2015.  

So when you get  invo lved in  p roper ty,  [speak ing  in  

the  ve rnacu lar ] ,  you are  no t  do ing  i t  fo r  char i t y.   So these 

invest iga to rs  a t  the  Commiss ion  be l ieved tha t  because I  

am CFO of  PRASA,  I  am not  en t i t led  to  ge t  invo l ved in  any  

o ther  deve lopment  because these proper t ies  do  not  conf l i c t  

w i th  PRASA,  i t  has  go t  no th ing  to  w i th  PRASA,  i t  is  a  fac t  

tha t ,  Cha i r,  every  Sunday –  you know,  Cha i r,  [ speak ing  i n  

the  ve rnacu lar ] ,  I  do  no t  d r ink ,  I  do  no t  smoke,  I  do  no t  do  

par t ies .   I  am a  CEO,  I  ge t  th is  amount  o f  money,  then I  ge t  20 

invo l ved in  p roper ty,  tha t  i s  wha t  I  have been do ing .   I f  

there  i s  one ac t iv i t y  I  do  i n  my spare  t ime,  I  go ,  I  look  fo r  

empty  land.   Tha t  i s  what  I  do .   There  is  no th ing  cor rup t ,  

there  is  no th ing  un lawfu l  and,  Cha i r,  I  w i l l  no t  even 

apo log ise  to  anyone because i f  we do not  ge t  invo lved in  
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p roper ty,  as  A f r i cans,  I  am be ing  v ic t im ised here ,  tha t  you  

shou ld  no t  ge t  i nvo lved in  p roper ty  and you have  s to len ,  

bu t  ye t  the  fac t  about  the  t ransact ions a re  de l ibera te ly  

be ing  ignored by  the  Commiss ion .   Mont rose,  Cha i r,  a  

depos i t  was pa id  by  me and le t  me  te l l  you ,  Cha i r,  I  d id  no t  

have the  money.   I  d id  no t  have the  money,  I  had R2 mi l l ion  

and I  ins t ruc ted  R iaan tha t  f rom the  proceeds o f  Parkwood  

can you pay because I  wanted to  buy t ime.    

I  was not  go ing  to  th is  p roper ty,  Cha i r,  I  went  to  

v iew a  proper ty  i n  Sandhurs t  and I  ended up in  th i s  p lace  10 

by  acc ident .   I t  was an o ld  house but  i t  was a  garden o f  

Eden,  Cha i r,  i t  was a  mass ive  proper ty,  I  th ink  tha t  i t  was 

6  600 square  met res .   The garden was amazing  and  I  sa id  I  

want  th is  p roper ty.    

That  i s  where  I  met  Lou is  Green ,  Cha i r.   So the  

a f f idav i t  o f  Lou is  Green is  no t  fa lse ,  i t  i s  t rue ,  I  met  –  I  

went  to  tha t  p roper ty  and I  sa id  no ,  I  w i l l  pay  a  depos i t  o f  2  

m i l l i on  because he to ld  me the re  are  peop le  who are  

in te res ted ,  they are  deve lopers ,  so  I  sa id  no ,  I  am a lso  a 

deve loper,  I  w i l l  pay  a  depos i t  o f  2  m i l l i on  so  tha t  I  can be 20 

g iven t ime.    

The invest iga tors  a re  t rue  to  themse lves and to  th is  

Commiss ion ,  they w i l l  a lso  say  tha t  I  was th rea tened  

because the  2  m i l l ion  was a  non- re fundab le  depos i t  I  have 

made.   They then put  me on te rms to  say you have now 
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m issed the  dead l ine ,  you are  go ing  to  fo r fe i t  the  2 m i l l ion .   

That  i s  when I  had to  f ind ,  Cha i r,  someone to  pa r tner  w i th  

me on th is  deve lopment  and tha t  i s  how I  was in t roduced to 

Mr  Andre  Wagner  and Andre  says we put  the  money – we 

put  11 .5  m i l l ion  in to  th is  and tha t  you w i l l  then a l so  match  

our  investment  to  11 .5 .   So I  had a l ready put  2  m i l l ion ,  I  

have a l ready pu t  the  depos i t  money –  o r  ra ther,  the  

t ransfer  cos ts  and every th ing  and  then I  had to  ra ise  the  

o ther  money,  Cha i r.  

Cha i r,  I  want  to  FNB in  Pre tor ia ,  p r iva te  one,  there  10 

is  a  lady  who f inanced my proper t ies  f rom ABSA but  had 

moved to  FNB in  Pre tor ia .   I  went  –  she was based in  Cape  

Town,  I  went  to  her  and say I  need money,  I  have got  th is  

p roper ty,  I  have got  par tners  and  I  need to  pu t  –  can you  

g ive  me 10 mi l l ion  to  pu t  in to  th is  p roper ty?   But  they were  

very  honest  w i th  me because a t  tha t  t ime the  s to r ies  were  

made –  they to ld  me I  am a  po l i t i ca l l y  exposed person,  

Cha i r,  and tha t  i s  why we had a  prob lem because the  cost  

o f  deve lopment  was go ing  to  come f rom me.   So I  pu t  tha t  

in  an  annexure  and I  pu t  a l l  those deta i l s ,  Cha i r,  in  tha t  20 

par t i cu la r  regard .  

Now,  Cha i r,  the  Mamelod i  p roper ty,  I  do  no t  want  to  

ta lk  much,  i t  was in  fac t  our  fami ly  home,  Cha i r,  bu t  

because o f  a  lega l  d ispute  the  proper ty  was auct ioned and 

I  went  to  the  auc t ion ,  I  was the  –  I  made as  the  w inner  in  
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tha t  b id  and tha t  th is  was f inanced by  F i rs t  Nat iona l  Bank 

fo r  160,  i t  i s  a  fami ly  home.   Even  though i t  i s  my name but  

i t  i s  one o f  ou r  fami ly  homes in  Mamelod i ,  Cha i r.   So I  am 

s t i l l  a  p roper ty  owner.   No one can say I  le f t  Mamelod i ,  I  

am s t i l l  there ,  I  s t i l l  have a  proper ty.   I  am a  ra te  payer  in  

Mamelod i ,  Cha i r,  so  peop le  cannot  exc lude me there  

because I  need a  base,  [speak ing  in  the  ve rnacu lar ] ,  Cha i r.  

Then le t  me dea l  f ina l l y,  Cha i r,  w i t h  Prec ise  Trad ing  

in  Brook lyn .   And  you see,  Cha i r,  I  have been s i len t  on  two 

proper t ies  de l ibe ra te ly.   I  touched them a t  the  beg inn ing ,  10 

the  Waterk loo f  p roper ty  in  Rose S t ree t  and the  proper ty  in  

Sandhurs t ,  desp i te  my invo lvement  in  those proper t ies .   

There  is  no  doub ts ,  I  ment ion  –  I  conf i rm here  tha t  R iaan  

and I  were  invo l ved in  a  par tnersh ip .   So I  have been 

invo lved.  

What  I  heard  a t  th is  Commiss ion ,  Cha i r,  was in  fac t  

someth ing  tha t  –  somebody,  Ms de Beer  comes here ,  Mr  

Montana came to  fe tch  the  keys.   I r re levant  th ings.    

I f  –  you are  no t  he lp ing  the  Commiss ion  un less  you  

can c la r i f y  how each o f  these proper t ies  were  f inanced.   By  20 

the  fac t  tha t  I  was there  or  the  keys were  fe tched,  i t  does  

not  he lp  th is  Commiss ion .   Was i t  go ing  to  do?   

I f  I  am invo lved  in  par tnersh ip  w i th  R iaan sure l y  

tha t  I  w i l l  be  there ,  Cha i r,  and I  th ink  tha t  the  po in t  i s  

be ing  m issed he re  because the  rea l  i ssue is  to  t ry  to  
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p ro jec t  me in  th is  negat ive  l igh t .  

Now,  Cha i r,  le t  exp la in  to  you the  Prec i se  Trade ’s  

Brook lyn  proper t ies  because I  have heard  aga in  some ve ry  

in te res t ing  s to r ies ,  be ing  ment ioned  by  Mr  Oe l l e rmann.   

Mamabolo  the  guy f rom PRASA who deposed  o f  an  

a f f idav i t ,  c la ims –  and I  have a t tached h i s  a f f idav i t ,  as  we l l  

as  O ’Su l l i van ’s  a f f idav i t ,  I  have  a t tached both  o f  them,  

Cha i r.   C la ims in  h is  a f f idav i t  tha t  R iaan van der  Walk  

bought  a  p roper ty  fo r  me in  Brook lyn  as  par t  o f  

g ra t i f i ca t ion  by  S iyangena.    10 

Mamabolo  and O’Su l l i van  were  so  de termined to  

ta rn ish  my image  and qu ick ly  p i led  the  fa l se  in fo rmat ion  to  

P ie ter -Lou is  Myburgh who wro te  another  a r t i c le  in  the  

A f r i kaner  Sunday newspaper  Rappor t  and i t s  s is te r  

pub l i ca t ion  C i ty  P ress.   Had they done proper  invest iga t ion  

they wou ld  have come across the  fo l low ing fac t s .  

The f i rs t  one was tha t  R iaan bought  two ad jacent  

p roper t ies  in  Brook l yn  and reg is te red th i s  in  the  name o f  

h is  company,  Prec ise  Trade.   Not  lucky  Montana,  Prec i se  

Trade.  20 

I  had so ld  one o f  my proper t ies  in  Waterk loo f  and,  

Cha i r ,  th is  p roper ty  i s  one I  re fe r red  to  e r f  1242,  the  one  

tha t  I  moved in to  a f te r  the  tax i  peop le  chased me.    

Cha i r ,  I  had so ld  one o f  my proper t ies  in  Waterk loo f  

–  the  fami ly  was s tay ing  in  one o f  the  proper t ies  bought  by  
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R iaan.   So he bought  those two proper t ies .  

Now th is  p roper ty ,  my proper t y  was R8.5  m i l l ion  a t  

tha t  t ime.   I  deve loped,  Cha i r ,  I  doub led  the  s ize  o f  the  

proper ty ,  so  I  g ive  th is  p roper ty ,  so  we then agreed tha t  I  

w i l l  se l l  my p roper ty  to  th is  fami l y  to  match  the  p r ice  o f  

the i r  own house tha t  they were  se l l ing  because they were  – 

in  rea l  te rms,  tha t  fami ly  was not  se l l ing  the  house ,  Cha i r ,  

bu t  because –  i f  you  were  do  –  these proper t ies  i s  two 

proper t ies  tha t  have been subd iv ided.    

You w i l l  no t  do  a  deve lopment  i f  they  are  no t  10 

conso l ida ted ,  so  tha t  fami ly  was incent iv i sed to  move f rom 

Brook lyn  to  move  in to  my proper ty  in  Waterk loo f  and then  

we –  bas i ca l l y  there  was no money exchanged,  Cha i r .   So 

my bond –  I  sa id  as  long as  we can cance l  my bond  w i th  a  

bank,  wh ich  was done and the  fam i ly  moved tha t  th ing  and  

the  two proper t ies .   Now unt i l  tha t  s tage I  d id  no t  have any 

ro le  because we then ag reed tha t  once the  proper t i es  had 

been conso l ida ted  in to  one I  w i l l  then –  we w i l l  then be 

ab le  to  do  a  jo in t  deve lopment  on to  tha t  p roper ty .  

So i t  i s  bus iness,  Cha i r ,  I  pu t  my proper ty  w i th  20 

h igher  va lue  prec ise ly  because I  know tha t  the  

deve lopment  wou ld  be  very  impor tan t  and I  had a lso  

rendered tha t  –  tha t  i s  one o f  the  proper t ies ,  Cha i r ,  used  

by  my aunt  who  was runn ing  a  ca te r ing  bus iness,  Cha i r .   

So tha t  p roper t y  was used there  in  tha t  p rocess.  
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So  O ’Su l l i van  and Mamabolo   do  no t  know 

these fac t s ,  they  are  no t  in  Oe l le rmann ’s  repor t  because 

they are  no t  in te res ted  in  the  t ru th ,  they were  there  to  say 

pursue Montana because a f te r  they invest iga ted  co r rup t ion  

a t  PRASA they cou ld  no t  l ink  me to  any cor rup t ion ,  Cha i r .   

What  d id  they do?  They say he  is  a  p roper ty  man,  then  

they have damaged me,  Cha i r ,  I  have los t  a  lo t  o f  money.   I  

have los t  a  lo t  o f  assets .   That  some o f  these p roper t ies ,  I  

have got  –  the  Hur l ingham proper ty ,  I  had to  abandon i t ,  

Cha i r ,  I  cou ld  no t  do  the  deve lopment  p rec ise ly  because 10 

even the  banks say we cannot  touch you,  Montana,  w i th  a l l  

these repor t s  tha t  a re  there .   I  th ink  they have succeeded 

in  what  they are  t ry ing  to  do ,  Cha i r .  

The deve lopment  po ten t ia l  o f  the  two Brook lyn  

proper t ies  was huge,  Cha i r ,  and not  on ly  tha t ,  when you 

look a t  the  Rose proper t ies ,  by  the  way,  the  one owned by  

Ms Sa l ly  de  Beer .   Why were  we in te res ted  in  tha t  

p roper ty ,  Cha i r?    Because  -  and  she d id  no t  say  i t  here ,  

the  proper ty  had bus iness r igh t s .    

So you can ca l l  me a  b lack  Jew,  Cha i r ,  when i t  20 

comes to  mak ing  money  and p roper t ies ,  i t  i s  a  th ing  tha t  I  

do  and w i l l  no t  come to  the  Commiss ion  and apo log ise .   

You know,  i f  there  i s  someth ing  tha t  we have –  so  here  we  

are  f igh t ing  about  in fe rences about  these p roper t ies ,  Cha i r .  

Now,  Cha i r ,  you can see tha t  Parkwood,  the  
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p roper ty  tha t  was there  in  Parkwood,  bought  by  R iaan,  i t  

was bought  a f te r  I  had done a  lo t  o f  work .   You can see 

tha t  the  proceeds o f  the  sa le  o f  tha t  p roper t y  went  in to 

Hur l ingham,  i t  went  in to  my o ther  Wate rk loo f  p roper ty  tha t  I  

s t i l l  own to  th is  very  day,  Cha i r .   You can see,  Cha i r ,  tha t  

the  fami ly  tha t  moved –  i t  moved in to  my own p roper ty ,  

Cha i r ,  p rec ise ly  because the  deve lopment  po ten t ia l  was  

huge.  

Cha i r ,  I  worked w i th  R iaan.   R iaan van der  Wal t  i s  

such a  man o f  in tegr i t y  and,  you know,  i t  saddened me to  10 

see a  man who was a  key pe rson,  he  was p lay ing  a  majo r  

ro le  in  h i s  church ,  he  was one o f  the  church  e lders ,  the  

s to ry  about  the  proper t ies  had dest royed h im,  Cha i r ,  a  

g reat  lega l  m ind and I  know a  commi t ted  South  A f r i can,  an  

A f r i kaner  who was commi t ted  to  th is  count ry  who was  

invo lved in  bus inesses,  Cha i r .   And le t  me say  f ina l l y ,  

cont rary  to  what  you have been to ld ,  Cha i r ,  because the  

Commiss ion  and  Oel le rmann,  ge t t ing  the  s to ry  f rom 

O’Su l l i van ,  he  is  say ing  bu t  Mon tana was invo lved w i th  

R iaan,  never  den ied  tha t ,  Cha i r ,  and he says i t  means  20 

R iaan ’s  p roper t ies  are  Montana ’s  p roper t ies .   Why wou ld  –  

I  bought  o ther  p roper t ies  tha t  a re  reg is te red in  my  name,  

why wou ld  p roper t ies  tha t  a re  bought  by  Prec i se  Trade be  

Montana ’s  p roper t ies?   That  i s  what  they are  t ry ing  to  say,  

tha t  i s  the  in fe rence tha t  no ,  R iaan was buy ing  them f rom 
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Montana.   But ,  Cha i r ,  I  s ince  got  in fo rmat ion  about  the  

l iqu ida t ion  o f  P rec ise  Trade and,  you know,  to  my surp r ise  

I  found tha t  they are  in  fac t  –  and I  th ink  th is  i s  very  

impor tan t  tha t  the  Commiss ion  ge t  the  l iqu ida tors  o f  

P rec i se  Trade because I  am to ld  they have approached  the  

o ther  investors  in  Prec ise  Trade to  o f fe r  them these  th ings.   

That  i s  what  the  in fo rmat ion  I  go t .   They never  approached  

me.   

In  pub l i c  I  am to ld  the  proper t ies  be long to  me but  

when they are  so ld ,  the  investors ,  there  a re  two investors  10 

in to  –  the  one tha t  R iaan worked w i th  and I  th ink  in  Rober t  

Neeth l ing ’s  a f f idav i t  he  ment ioned the  peop le  who invested  

in to  Prec ise  Trade.   I  was not  even one o f  them but  I  had a  

par tnersh ip  w i th  Mr  R iaan van de r  Wal t ,  wh ich  was  pub l i c ,  

wh ich  was known,  and I  was p roud,  Cha i r,  i f  another  

oppor tun i ty  were  to  a r ise ,  fo r  me to  work  w i th  Mr  R iaan van 

der  Wal t  because  R iaan does not  work  fo r  –  you know,  you  

get  a  sense tha t  R iaan is  a  d i rec tor  o f  S iyangena  or  i s  a  

lawyer  o r  in te rna l  lawyer  o f  –  no ,  Cha i r,  R iaan is  a  person 

there  bu t  what  has happened is  tha t  the  peop le  –  the  group  20 

tha t  i s  gu ided not  by  fac ts  bu t  by  connect ing  the  do ts .   

That  i s  a l l .   Mon tana works  w i th  Van der  Wal t .   Van de r  

Wal t  has go t  some re la t ionsh ip  w i th  a  law f i rm tha t  works  

w i th  –  tha t  d id  work  fo r  what  i s  i t  ca l led ,  TMM or  

S iyangena.   So they are  say ing  they are  t ied ,  i t  i s  one 
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th ing ,  i t  i s  a  cor rup t  scheme.   I t  i s  so  fa lse ,  Cha i r.  

Now le t  me conc lude,  Cha i r,  my  submiss ion  by  –  

how d id  you get  to  th is  po in t?   Because,  I  th ink  tha t ,  Cha i r,  

i t  i s  very  impor tan t  to  unders tand tha t .   How d id  you get  to  

th is  po in t  be ing  tu rned around?  I t  s ta r ts  w i th  one Mr  Pau l  

O ’Su l l i van  and O ’Su l l i van  and in  a  d i f fe ren t  sec t ion  o f  my 

a f f idav i t  I  dea l  w i th  tha t  a t  length ,  Cha i r.  

Immedia te l y  a f te r  I  have le f t  PRASA in  2015 I  was  

approached by  peop le  who wanted to  he lp  me.   I  la te r  

learned tha t  these peop le  are  Pau l  O ’Su l l i van ’s  peop le .   10 

They to ld  me,  Cha i r,  tha t  –  they  met  me a t  the  DaVinc i  

Hote l  in  Sandton .   I  go t  a  ca l l  f rom someone f rom Cape 

Town in  the  ANC who sa id  the re  are  peop le  who want  to  

he lp  you because a l ready the  no ise  has s ta r ted .   I  sa id   I  

w i l l  w i th  them,  I  went  to  Sandton.  

So these peop le  came and when  I  a r r i ved there  I  

rea l i sed there  is  a  p rob lem but  I  met  w i th  the  chaps.   They 

to ld  me someth ing  and I  th ink  th is  was about  in  August  –  I  

th ink  i t  shou ld  have been in  la te  Ju ly,  beg inn ing  o f  August  

2015.    20 

They sa id  to  me Mr  Montana,  we want  to  he lp  you.   

I  say  how do you  want  to  he lp  me?  They say we work  w i th  

the  Hawks,  we work  w i th  the  NPA.   You are  regarded as  the  

leader  o f  the  b iggest  c r im ina l  synd ica te  tha t  has de f rauded  

the  s ta te  o f  R3.6  b i l l i on .   [speak ing  in  the  vernacu lar ] ,  i f  
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you  can pack i t  on  the  ground here ,  jus t  to  say th is ,  Cha i r,  

i s  3 .6 ,  do  you th ink  I  w i l l  be  on  these shores,  Cha i r,  I  

wou ld  be  here  in  South  A f r i ca?  I  wou ld  p robab ly  be  s i t t ing  

on  a  yacht  somewhere ,  i s  i t  no t ,  in  the  m idd le  o f  the 

Med i te r ranean en joy ing  tha t  money.   There  is  a  R3.6  b i l l i on  

Montana took,  he  used d i f fe ren t  cont rac ts ,  Swi fambo,  

S iyangena and s to le  th is  money.    

So I  sa id  so  why do they no t  charge me?  They sa id  

no ,  we a re  work ing  w i th  them,  we  want  to  he lp  you.   So I  

say  how am I  go ing  to  he lp  you?  They say I  must  pass par t  10 

o f  tha t  money to  them,  they w i l l  he lp  me.   I  th ink  a t  tha t  

t ime they wanted  500 mi l l ion .   Cha i r,  you can see in  my 

face,  I  mean,  I  am 500 mi l l ion  myse l f ,  maybe tha t  i s  my 

va lue .   They wanted 500 mi l l ion .  

Do you know wha t  was my response,  Cha i r?   I  sa id  I  

am very  happy to  work  w i th  you but  can you p lease go –  

why do  you not  ident i f y  and te l l  me where  th is  money,  th is  

loo t  i s  s tashed?  Those are  my exact  words.   Show i t  to  

me,  once you guys can show i t  to  me,  you a re  go ing  to  ge t  

even more  than what  you had asked fo r.   They have never  20 

come back to  me.  

Cha i r,  I  thought  tha t  was the  end,  okay?  They  

approached some o f  the  compan ies  tha t  a re  ment ioned,  

tha t  a re  sa id  to  be  invo l ved in  a  cor rup t  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  

me.   They then  demanded money and these compan ies  
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ca l led  me and say man,  we have been approached .   I  w i l l  

no t  ment ioned the i r  names,  Cha i r,  because I  th ink  i t  wou ld  

be  unfa i r,  bu t  I  do  no t  want  to  pu t  the i r  l i ves  a t  r i sk .  

So they were  approached to  say pay some money.   I  

b locked i t .   They say no ,  O ’Su l l i van w i l l  so lve  your  

p rob lems.   I  b locked i t ,  Cha i r,  and  I  to ld  them –  le t  me use 

my words,  O ’Su l l i van  must  go  to  he l l .   He has in t im ida ted a 

lo t  o f  peop le .  

Now what  O ’Su l l i van  does,  Cha i r,  i f  you  want  to  

unders tand h i s  a f f idav i t ,  I  have re fused to  pay.   I  say  in  10 

South  A f r i ca ,  I  do  no t  pay anybody,  in  South  A f r i ca  I  never  

pay anybody.   I f  the  law enforcement  be l ieve  tha t  they  

have got  a  case aga ins t  me,  le t  me be put  –  le t  me go to  

cour t .  

Now,  Cha i r,  what  has happened i s  tha t  –  and th is  

modus operand i  i s  no t  i so la ted ,  Cha i r.   I  know Mr  

O ’Su l l i van  has sa id  in  response to  my a f f idav i t  tha t  he  is  

w i l l i ng  to  c ross-examine me,  Cha i r.   L ike  Werksmans,  I  am 

more  than happy,  Cha i r,  I  hope he app l ies  to  c ross-

examine.   I  to ld  h im,  Cha i r,  I  ca l l  h im the  I r i sh  ex tor t ion i s t  20 

because what  Pau l  O ’Su l l i van does in  th is  count ry  –  he  has 

been pra ised as  a  c r ime f igh te r  and pra ise  h imse l f  “ I  

bought  down Jack ie  Se lebe” .    

No,  no ,  no ,  the  man is  a t  the  hear t  o f  c r im ina l  

ac t i v i t y  in  the  count ry.   Those o f  us  who know,  Cha i r,  and I  
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am say ing  because i t  i s  in  my a f f idav i t  and he has been  

not i f ied .   What  I  am say ing  here  he  knows,  Cha i r,  and tha t  

i s  why I  am inv i t ing  h im to  c ross-examine.   What  he  does,  

Cha i r,  where  peop le  –  prominent  South  A f r i cans are  

invo l ved,  a re  hav ing  prob lems wi th  SARS or  the  law,  Pau l  

O ’Su l l i van  come in  and say I  w i l l  he lp  you and he co l lec ts  

money and le t  me  say,  Cha i r,  I  have even seen s ta tements ,  

f inanc ia l  s ta tements  –  and you remember  in  my a f f idav i t  I  

have ca l led  fo r  th is  Commiss ion  to  subpoena the  

compan ies  and  the  f inanc ia l  s ta tements  and bank  10 

s ta tements  o f  a l l  compan ies  tha t  be long to  Pau l  O ’Su l l i van .   

You w i l l  ac tua l l y  see,  Cha i r,  tha t  the  modus operand i  i s  

very  s imp le .   I f  you  a re  in  t roub le ,  Pau l  a r r i ves .   He  got  h is  

en force rs  and these enforcers  came f rom Cape Town.   I  

have come face to  face  w i th  them a t  the  DaVinc i  Ho te l  and,  

Cha i r,  they  ins is t  you must  pay them and there fore  they 

w i l l  sor t  ou t  the  case.   They a l so  pay on  the  o ther  s ide  a t  

SARS.   Cha i r,  you cannot  te l l  me about  SARS,  one  o f  the 

most  co r rup t  o rgan isa t ions tha t  we have,  okay?  And I  am 

s t i l l  go ing  to  – Cha i r,  I  am say ing  these peop le  because I  20 

want ,  Cha i r  –  fo r  me,  I  want  th is  Commiss ion  on  what  i t  

shou ld  focus on ,  the  rea l  captu re .    

And when you move beyond O’Su l l i van ,  Cha i r,  so  

they go  to  SARS and the  po l i ce ,  he  send me ema i ls  and 

say Montana –  I  th ink  i t  was in  2018 –  Montana,  go t  good  
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news fo r  you,  you are  go ing  to  be  ar res ted  before  

Chr is tmas.   I  say  I  am happy fo r  you,  Mr  O ’Su l l i van ,  Happy  

New Year,  I  w i l l  see  you in  January  in  2019.  

So he t r ied  to  in t im ida te  me,  Cha i r,  and I  to ld  h im 

tha t  he  is  one o f  the  most   -  the  number  one c r im ina l  in  the  

count ry  and the  b iggest  c rook.   The in te l l igence serv i ces ,  

the  law enforcement  agents  are  a f ra id  to  dea l  w i th  Mr  Pau l  

O ’Su l l i van  and  because they are  a f ra id  o f  h im 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  want  to  l im i t  you now because  we are  10 

dea l ing  w i th  the  p roper t ies  bu t  I  wanted  you to  

…[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    Yes,  Cha i r,  bu t  le t  me …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Show the  connec t ion ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Sure ,  Cha i r.   The issue I  am say ing  is  

tha t  a l l  these l ies  about  my proper t ies ,  they come f rom a  

cr im ina l  gang tha t  wanted to  ex tor t  money f rom me and  

o ther  peop le  and  then they went  to  wr i te  –  a f te rwards tha t  

i s  when th is  22  a f f idav i t  came and  accused me o f  a l l  sor ts  

o f  th ings and tha t  i s  why I  wan t  Mr  O ’Su l l i van,  I  want  20 

Werksmans he re .   And you know i t  i s  go ing  to  be  very  

in te res t ing ,  Cha i r,  because I  want  to  use tha t  c ross-

examinat ion  to  expose the  rea l  c r im ina ls .   But  I  w i l l  no t  

end there ,  I  ac tua l l y  want  to  show how they l ink  to  the  

s t ruc ture  o f  power  in  our  count ry  and,  Cha i r,  I  have made 
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up  my mind,  I  am one o f  the  peop le  who are  go ing  to  

spearhead the  f igh t  aga ins t  the  s t ruc ture  o f  power  tha t  

ac tua l l y  use  c r im ina l  –  i nc lud ing  [ ind is t inc t ] ,  Cha i r,  so  I  am 

inv i t ing  them to  app ly  to  the  Commiss ion  and say want  to  

c ross-examine Montana,  I  w i l l  be  here  to  engage w i th  

them,  Cha i r,  to  ass i s t  th is  Commiss ion  to  unders tand.    

That  i s  why,  Cha i r,  le t  me read,  as  my conc lus ion ,  

what  I  sa id  in  the  conc lus ion  to  my s ta tement  to  th is  

Commiss ion .   I  th ink  i t  i s  very  impor tan t ,  Cha i r,  tha t  I  do 

tha t .   I  sa id  –  I  thank you,  Cha i r,  in  th is  s ta tement  bu t  I  say  10 

here  tha t  –  and I  quote ,  Cha i r :  

“The work  o f  th is  Commiss ion  w i l l  be  incomple te 

w i thout  look ing  deep ly  in to  the  ac t iv i t ies  o f  th is  

ne twork  and i t s  un lawfu l  surve i l lance ac t iv i t ies  a t  

PRASA and beyond.   I t  has  appropr ia ted  to  i t se l f  

key  funct ions o f  the  South  A f r i can s ta te . ”  

So,  Cha i r,  th is  Commiss ion ,  in  my v iew,  the  proper ty  th ing  

looks l i ke  Lucky Montana is  say ing  there  is  some cor rup t  

th ing .   I t  i s  a  b ig  th ing ,  Cha i r,  and I  ho ld  tha t  be fore  May,  

Cha i r,  when you c lose  the  work  o f  th is  Commiss ion  and I  20 

know,  they chase me,  Cha i r,  because they have  got  the  

peop le  armed and every th ing ,  bu t  I  come here ,  Cha i r,  and I  

am go ing  to  ass is t  th is  –  Cha i r,  one th ing ,  you asked me to  

come and ass i s t  th is  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  you …[ in te rvenes]  
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MR MONTANA:    I  am go ing  to  ass is t  you w i th  the  rea l  

c r im ina ls ,  Cha i r,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Now a t  leas t  you got  

a  chance to  pu t  your  s ide  o f  the  s to ry  and now Mr  Son i  can  

beg in  the  quest ion ing .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Mr  Montana …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  do  no t  know what  your  approach i s  

go ing  to  be ,  Mr  Son i ,  bu t  in  the  l igh t  o f  the  var ious  10 

exp lanat ions tha t  Mr  Montana i s  g iv ing  in  regard  to  the 

proper t ies  and I  th ink  some o f  them,  the  exp lanat ions  

a f fec t  d i f fe ren t  p roper t ies  and a re  in te rwoven.   I t  may be  

tha t  i t  wou ld  be  he lp fu l  to  take  one  proper ty  a t  a  t ime.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And move f rom one to  the  next .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rpe rson,  I  am p lac ing  on  record  I  

am on ly  go ing  on  the  proper t ies  we  have invest iga ted .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja ,  no ,  no ,  no ,  obv ious l y  those are  

the  on ly  ones tha t  you w i l l  quest ion  h im on.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now,  Mr  Montana,  in  the  f i rs t  

parag raph o f  the  s ta tement  you read th is  morn ing ,  tha t  i s  

SS18B,  you say i n  the  second sentence:  
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“ I t  i t s  so-ca l led  pre l im inary  repor t  on  PRASA the  

Commiss ion ’s  invest iga to r,  C l in t  Oe l le rmann and  

ev idence leader  Son i  to ld  the  Cha i rperson o f  the  

Commiss ion  tha t…”  

And you quote :  

“Montana purchased proper t ies  o f  ove r  R36 mi l l ion  

w i th in  a  year. ”  

That  i s  the  a l lega t ion  you made.  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  Cha i r,  I  am not  mak ing  a l legat ion ,  

th is  i s  what  you answered the  Cha i r.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  jus t  want  to  –  can I  …[ in te rvenes]  

MR MONTANA:    I t  i s  a  s ta tement  o f  fac t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Wel l ,  le t  me –  you d id  no t  on ly   say  I  

sa id  i t ,  you  sa id  Mr  Oe l le rmann sa id  i t  as  we l l .  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  the  Cha i r  –  the  Cha i r  asked fo r  

conf i rmat ion  and asked you,  Mr  Son i ,  and you a re  the  one  

who answered to  say no ,  he  bought  p roper t ies  fo r  R36 

mi l l ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Mr  Montana,  I  do  no t  want  us  to  go  to  

and f ro ,  I  d id  no t  in te r rup t  you.   I  am go ing  to  ask  you a  20 

quest ion .   I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  p lease look a t  paragraph 4  o f  

Mr  Oe l le rmann ’s  repor t  wh ich  is  bund le ,  H,  SS18 and page 

4  and I  w i l l  j us t  read  the  re levant  par t s  o f  tha t  paragraph,  

i t  says :  

“Between August  2014 …[ in tervenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Son i ,  when I  came here  

th is  f i l e  was opened on a  cer ta in  page and tha t  i s  no t  the  

page you are  on .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Oh,  sor ry,  Cha i rperson,  i t  i s  a  

d i f fe ren t  page,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  i s  page 4 ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We wi l l  be  us ing  bund le  H.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bund le  H.  

CHAIRPERSON :    PRASA bund le  H and to  what  page must  10 

I  go?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Page 4 ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Page 4 ,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.   I  jus t  want  to  se t  the  reco rd  

s t ra igh t  on  someth ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    We need not  have a  debate ,  i f  there  

i s  someth ing ,  i t  w i l l  come up . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  th is  i s  what  Mr  Oe l le rmann says 20 

between August  2014 and August  –  October  2014 Mr  

Montana was invo lved in  a r rangements  fo r  the  pu rpose o f  

th ree  proper t ies  fo r  a  to ta l  o f  more  than R36mi l l ion .    

Nowhere  in  h is  repor t ,  and you have made tha t  a l legat ion  

prev ious ly,  I  looked a t  the  repor t  over  and  over  aga in ,  tha t  
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a l legat ion  tha t  you purchased proper t ies  o f  over  R36mi l l ion  

w i th in  a  year  i s  no t  conta ined in  h is  repor t ,  I ’m put t ing  tha t  

to  you,  Mr  Montana.  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  can we p lay  a  c l ip ,  I ’ ve  go t  a  c l ip ,  

Cha i r,  you ask  a  quest ion ,  Mr  Son i  doesn ’ t  answer  –  he ’s  

ac tua l l y  dea l ing  w i th  i t  d i f fe ren t ly.   I  sa id  the  Cha i r  asked  

the  quest ion  and you sa id ,  how many –  you even sa id ,  i s  i t  

R30mi l l ion ,  Mr  Son i  sa id  he  bought   p roper t ies  fo r  

R36mi l l ion .   Now,  he ’s  read ing  a  d i f fe ren t  th ing ,  he ’s  no t  

te l l ing  me about  what  I ’m  re fer r ing  to .   I  sa id ,  what  Mr  Son i  10 

sa id ,  in  response to  you Cha i r,  he  sa id ,  ac tua l l y  he  had  

even a  smi le  tha t  Mr  Montana bought  –  and I  b rought  the  

c l ip  so  tha t  we can p lay  i t…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  tha t ’s  f ine…[ in tervenes] .  

MR MONTANA:    And then we don ’ t  have the  d ispute  about  

tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink ,  Mr  Son i  hasn ’ t  reached the  po in t  

where  he  is  ta lk ing  about  what  he  may have sa id ,  he ’s  

s imp ly  look ing  a t  what  Mr  Oe l le rmann sa id  in  h is  repor t  

because the  second sentence o f  the  f i rs t  paragraph o f  your  20 

document  says,   

“ In  i t s  so-ca l led  pre l im inary  repor t  on  PRASA the 

Commiss ion ’s  invest iga to r,  C l in t  Oe l le rmann and 

ev idence leader  Advocate  Vas  Son i  to ld  the  

Cha i rperson o f  the  Commiss ion  b lah ,  b lah ,  b lah ” ,  
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 So ,  in  o ther  words,  I  th ink  the  unders tand ing  is  tha t  

you are  say ing  bo th  Mr  Son i  and Mr  Oe l le rmann –  and in  

regard  to  Mr  Oe l le rmann in  h i s  repor t ,  p re l im inary  repor t  

th is  i s  what  he  sa id ,  and I  th ink  tha t  i s  what  Mr  Son i  i s  

t ry ing  to  c lear  up .   So –  and he ’s  do ing  so  by  go ing  to  the  

repor t  because your  sentence says,  “ in  the  pre l im inary  

repor t ” ,  you unders tand?  He ’s  s t i l l  go ing  to  come to  the  

quest ion  o f  wha t  he  may have sa id  as  opposed  to  Mr  

Oe l le rmann…[ in tervenes] .  

MR MONTANA:    Yes Cha i r,  bu t  I  was re fe r r ing  to ,  10 

spec i f i ca l l y,  what  he  had sa id  to  you,  Mr  Oe l le rmann was in  

fu l l  agreement ,  he  was nodd ing  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  why I  say  

tha t  –  you reca l l ,  in i t ia l l y  I  sa id ,  the  Commiss ion  owes me 

an apo logy.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:    I t  w i l l  be  ear l ie r  on ,  so  Cha i r,  I ’m 

re fer r i ng  to  tha t  and Mr  Son i  …[ ind is t inc t ]  the  i ssues.  I  see  

the  pa ragraph tha t  he ’s  read ing  there  bu t  I ’m  say ing  tha t ,   

you enqu i red  f rom them,  they con f i rmed to  you they d idn ’ t  

even g i ve  th is…[ ind is t inc t ]  and i t  was even l i ke  a  joke ,  no  20 

he bought  p roper t ies  fo r  R36mi l l ion  …[ ind i s t inc t ] ,  so  tha t  

was the  s ta tement ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  the  quest ion ,  I  th ink  i s ,  le t  me put  i t  

th is  way.   I s  your  s ta tement  in  the  f i rs t  paragraph  o f  the 

document  tha t  Mr  Oe l le rmann sa id  in  the  p re l im inary  
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repor t ,  tha t  you purchased proper t ies  o f  over  R36mi l l ion  

w i th in  a  year,  cor rec t ,  i s  your  s ta tement  cor rec t  inso far  as  

i t  re fe rs  to  h im and the  repor t?  

MR MONTANA:    Yes,  Cha i r,  he ’s  say ing  in  the  repor t  in  

parag raph four  tha t  we jus t  read he says –  th is  i s  d i f fe ren t  

Cha i r,   

“Mr  Montana was  invo lved in  a r rangements  fo r  the  

purchase o f  th ree  proper t ies  fo r  a  to ta l  o f  more  than 

R36mi l l ion” .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  10 

MR MONTANA:    Cor rec t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  w i th in  a  year?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r  i t  doesn ’ t  say  w i th in  a  year.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    What  I ’m  re fer r i ng  to ,  i s  what  they were  

say ing ,  they were  no t  say ing  I ’m  invo lved in  a r rangement  

fo r  p roper t ies  o f  R36mi l l ion ,  i s  tha t  I  bought  p roper t ies  fo r  

R36mi l l ion  Cha i r  and tha t  i s  fac tua l l y  inco r rec t ,  tha t ’s  what  

I ’m  cha l leng ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  I  th ink ,  Mr  Son i  wants  you to  20 

make i t  c lear  whether  you are  s t i ck ing  to  the  s ta tement  in  

te rms o f  wh ich  you a t t r ibu te  to  Mr  Oe l le rmann ’s  repor t ,  

p re l im inary  repor t ,  the  s ta tement  tha t  you purchased 

proper t ies  o f  over  R36mi l l ion  w i th in  a  year,  whether  you  

s t i ck  to  tha t  o r  you say…[ in te rvenes] .  
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MR MONTANA:    No,  no  Cha i r,  I  s t i ck  to  tha t ,  tha t  i s  why  

I ’m…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That ’s  d i f fe ren t .  

MR MONTANA:    Sor ry  Cha i r,  sor ry  fo r  in te r rup t ing  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no ,  no  so  I ’m  say ing ,  I  th ink  he  

wants  to  see whe ther  you ’ re  s t i ck ing  to  tha t  o r  whether  you 

accept  tha t ,  tha t  doesn ’ t  accura te ly  re f lec t  what  was sa id  

in  the  repor t  and then take  i t  f rom there .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no  Cha i r,  I  th ink  my s ta tement  in  my 

–  the  one tha t  I  submi t ted  as  par t  o f  my ev idence –  o f  my  10 

a f f idav i t  i s  ac tua l l y  a  co r rec t  s ta tement ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  remember  we ’ re  ta lk ing  about  -we ’ re  

look ing   a t  th is  one tha t  you have – tha t  we,  a t  leas t ,  I  

have seen tha t ’s  the  one tha t  you read in to  the  record .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no  I  see i t  Cha i r  bu t  I ’m  say ing  tha t  

we a re  –  we seem to  be  confus ing  issues here .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:   Le t  me c la r i f y  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:    I  d idn ’ t  say,  Mr  Oe l le rmann,  in  h is  20 

s ta tement ,  I  ment ioned the  repor t .   I ’m  say ing  Cha i r  tha t ,  

in  i t s  so-ca l led  pre l im inary  repor t  on  PRASA the  

Commiss ion ’s  invest iga tor,  Oe l le rmann and ev idence  

leader  Advocate  Son i  has to ld  the  Cha i rperson okay and I  

c la r i f ied  dur ing  the  tes t imony you asked a  speci f i c  quest ion  
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Cha i r,  and tha t  response is  no t  cons i s ten t  –  con t rad ic t s  

number  fou r.   You see number  four  says,  Cha i r,  I  was  

invo l ved in  a r rangements  fo r  the  purchase o f  th ree 

proper t ies ,  tha t  I  accept ,  i t ’s  cor rec t  Cha i r.   The s ta tement  

tha t  was g iven to  you Cha i r,  was tha t  I  Tshepo Lucky  

Montana bought  p roper t ies  fo r  R36mi l l ion .  You know,  

th roughout ,  I ’ ve  exp la ined Cha i r,  in  my s ta tement  tha t  I ’ ve  

worked w i th  peop le ,  you can say you were  invo lved in  when 

tha t  p roper ty  was  bought ,  Cha i r,  I  w i l l  admi t  tha t  bu t  i f  you  

say,  Montana bought  p roper t ies  fo r  R36mi l l ion ,  I  d idn ’ t  buy 10 

proper t ies  fo r  R36mi l l ion…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  hang on,  Mr  Montana,  in  o rde r  fo r  us  

to  make progress ,  th is  i s  impor tan t .   I s  my unders tand ing  

o f  the  second sentence o f  paragraph one o f  the  document  

you ’ve  read in to  the  record ,  incor rec t?   Namely,  tha t  i t  says  

–  i t  says ,  among  o ther  th ings,  Mr  Oe l le rmann sa id  in  h is  

p re l im inary  repor t  on  PRASA tha t  you purchased proper t ies  

o f  over  R36mi l l ion  w i th in  a  year,  i s  my unders tand ing  o f  

tha t  sentence cor rec t ,  a t  leas t  in  par t?  

MR MONTANA:    A re  you read ing  mine or  Oe l l e rmann ’s  20 

s ta tement  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m  read ing  yours ,  no  your  document .  

MR MONTANA:    My document?  

CHAIRPERSON:    The f i rs t  paragraph,  the  second  

sentence.  
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MR MONTANA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  my s ta tement  there  is  cor rec t ,  I ’m 

s t i ck ing  to  tha t  s ta tement  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  a l r i gh t .   Okay,  now I  th ink 

what  Mr  Son i  i s  go ing  to  say i t ,  can  you he lp  us  –  show us,  

where  in  the  pre l im inary  repor t ,  Mr  Oe l le rmann sa id  tha t ,  

sa id  what  i s  wr i t ten  in  tha t  sentence?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  10 

MR MONTANA:    I  th ink ,  i t  shou ldn ’ t  be  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    The ev idence leader  i s  supposed  –  when  

we were  d iscuss ing  tha t ,  the  quest ion  to  –  the  quest ion  you  

asked was the  p roper t ies  I  bought .  You see,  I ’m  say ing  

number  four  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r,  I  mark  i t ,  I  agree w i th  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    I  was invo l ved in  even more  p roper t ies  

than th is ,  I  don ’ t  have a  p rob lem w i th  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  when you asked the  quest ion  Cha i r,  

okay,  they even  sa id  –  they even moved beyond tha t  

s ta tement  –  so  th is  s ta tement  was changed so  in  wr i t ing  

they say th is  bu t  to  you,  Cha i r,  there  was a  mass ive  

m isrepresenta t ion .   F i rs t l y,  Montana bought  p roper t ies  fo r  
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R36mi l l ion ,  second ly  he  d idn ’ t  have the  money to  buy 

those proper t ies .   Th is  i s  what  bo th  o f  them sa id  i n  

the…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  remember,  remember  now I  don ’ t  

know whether  the  quest ion  you say I  asked,  I  asked wh i le  

Mr  Oe l le rmann was g i v ing  ev idence,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  he  say the  same th ing  as  we l l ,  

because I  don ’ t  know whethe r  I  was ask ing  h im or  ask ing  

Mr  Son i  on  tha t  i ssue when tha t  response was g i ven?  10 

MR MONTANA:    You were  ask ing  Mr  Oe l le rmann.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Mr  Son i  answered on  h is  beha l f ,  he  came 

in  to  c la r i f y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    He nodded,  he  agreed,  Cha i r  and tha t  i s  

why Cha i r…[ ind i s t inc t ]  so  we can c lose  th is  th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  bu t  tha t ’s  f ine .   So,  tha t  was not  

in  h is  wr i t ten  repor t ,  tha t  was in  h i s  o ra l  ev idence? 

MR MONTANA:    Yes,  no ,  Cha i r,  dur ing  tha t  –  I  th ink  i t  was 20 

–  you asked in  the  course  o f  h im p resent ing  h is  repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    That ’s  what  I ’m  re fer r ing  to  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    In  o the r  words,  you accept ,  do  you not ,  

tha t  i f  one goes to  h is  wr i t ten  repor t ,  one w i l l  no t  f ind  tha t  

sentence to  tha t  e f fec t?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  I  agree except  tha t  we know 

tha t  we ’ l l  take  th is  and we ’ l l  a lso  take  the  t ranscr ip t  i sn ’ t  

i t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  no  the  t ranscr ip t  i s  a  d i f fe ren t  

mat te r.   I f  you  say,  look  I ’m  not  say ing  he  sa id  tha t  in  the  

repor t  –  in  the  wr i t ten  repor t  bu t  he  sa id  in  h is  o ra l  

ev idence and tha t  w i l l  be  in  the  t ranscr ip t ,  tha t  can be  10 

checked i f  necessary.  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I ’m  happy w i th  number  fou r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    Because i t ’s  say ing  Montana was invo lved  

w i th  peop le ,  tha t ’s  f ine .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  tha t  i s  d i f fe ren t  f rom say ing  Montana 

bought  p roper t ies  fo r  th is  amoun t  o f  money,  tha t  I  re jec t  

Cha i r,  and tha t  i s  why I  wanted to  read my s ta tement  in  the  

beg inn ing  so  tha t  you can see tha t  th is  i s  no t  one and the  20 

same th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink ,  where  we are ,  and I ’m say ing  

th is  so  tha t  you can te l l  me i f  I ’ ve  m isunders tood  you,  I  

th ink  where  we are  w i th  regard  to  Mr  Son i ’s  quest ion ,  i s  

th is .   One,  you accept  tha t  in  the  p re l im inary  –  wr i t ten  
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p re l im inary  repor t  Mr  Oe l le rmann  d id  no t  say  tha t  you  

purchased proper t ies  o f  ove r  R36mi l l ion  w i th in  a  year  bu t  

you are  say ing  tha t ,  in  h is  o ra l  ev idence,  he  d id  say tha t ,  

i s  my unders tand ing  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no  Cha i r.   I  th ink  number  four,  I ’m 

happy tha t ’s  what  he ’s  say ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    When we go –  i t ’s  jus t  tha t  I  d idn ’ t  mark  i t  

Cha i r,  as  we have the  d iscuss ion  dur ing  the  course  – I ’ l l  

d raw i t  to  your  a t ten t ion .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Where  he  ac tua l l y  even move away f rom 

four  and I  th ink  tha t  cou ld  be…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  says  what  you are  say ing  

here…[ in te rvenes ] .  

MR MONTANA:    I t ’s  say ing  what  I  am say ing  Cha i r,  and  

when you asked Cha i r,  because you wanted c la r i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    They then,  bo th  o f  them conf i rmed Cha i r,  

and tha t  i s  why I ’m say ing ,  p robab ly  Mr  Son i  w i l l  l ook  a t  20 

the  c l ip  a t  tha t  t ime,  the  team can he lp  h im get  tha t  c l ip  

and ask  your  quest ion ,  you ’ l l  see  Cha i r,  they  a re  say ing ,  I  

bought  p roper t ies  and I  take  an except ion  to  tha t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  tha t ’s  f ine  bu t  as  you answer  the  

quest ions jus t  bear  in  m ind,  o r  t ry  to  make a  d i s t inc t ion  
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whethe r  i t ’s  someth ing  tha t  was in  a  wr i t ten  documents ,  

such as  the  repor t  o r  i t ’s  someth ing  tha t  was sa id  dur ing  

ora l  ev idence because I  th ink  pa r t  o f  Mr  Son i ’s  quest ion  

was to  say,  here  you ta lk  about  the  wr i t ten  repor t .   Okay  

but  you have sa id  there  is  somewhere  in  the  wr i t ten  repor t ,  

where  he  says what  you say?  

MR MONTANA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  okay,  Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay,  Mr  Montana,  you ’ re  go ing  to  

come back some t ime.   I ’m  go ing  to  cha l lenge you now,  10 

and I ’m cha l leng ing  you pub l i c ly  and o f f i c ia l l y,  I  want  you  

to  show the  Cha i rperson,  on  a  d i f fe ren t  occas ion ,  when you  

come back where  tha t  i s  conta ined  in  h is  repor t .  

MR MONTANA:    I ’ l l  do  tha t  Cha i r,  I ’m  more  than happy to  

do  tha t ,  I ’m  g lad  tha t  we a re  go ing  to  be  robust  today and  

dea l  w i th  these issues,  Cha i r,  I ’m  happy.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No,  Mr  Montana I  want  to  a lso  say 

th is  to  you,  the  purpose o f  ask ing  you quest ions about  

these mat te rs  i s  to  g ive  you an oppor tun i ty  to  respond to  20 

a l legat ions tha t  a re  conta ined in  documents  and  so  on .   

Now,  you e i ther  meet  those a l l egat ions head-on or  you 

avo id  them.   I f  you  re fuse to  meet  them head-on,  a t  the 

end I  w i l l  a rgue to  the  Cha i rperson tha t  those a l l egat ions 

s tand unanswered because you have not  met  them head-
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on .   I ’m  on ly  mak ing  you aware  o f  the  approach I  am go ing  

to  adopt…[ in tervenes] .  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  can I  ob jec t  to  tha t  very  s t rong ly?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  h im f in ish  f i rs t ,  f in ish ,  a re  you done 

Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  can I  ob jec t  to  tha t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:    You know,   Mr  Son i  has to ld  me about  the  10 

repor t  tha t  he ’s  b r ing ing  to  you ,  I ’m  not  here  fo r  tha t ,  

Cha i r.   Mr  Son i  can wr i te  whatever  he  wants  to  wr i te  and 

present  to  you,  the  Cha i r  w i l l  app ly  h is  m ind.   I  –  Mr  Son i  

wr i te  whatever  you want  to  wr i te .   I ’m  not  here  to  conv ince 

the  Commiss ion  to  take  my ve rs ion ,  I ’m here  to  ass is t  the  

Commiss ion  and  present  ev idence.   Cha i r,  Mr  Son i  was  

wrong,  okay.  Le t  me ta lk  about  your  ro le ,  Mr  Son i ,  i s  to  

ass is t  the  Commiss ion  to  reach the  t ru th ,  to  f ind  the  t ru th .  

I t ’s  no t  to  pursue or  to  push a  par t i cu la r  v iew.   Cha i r,  in  

tha t  par t i cu la r  ins tance –  and tha t  is  why I ’ ve  kept  over  20 ,  20 

over  20 ,  Cha i r,  o f  the  c l ips  where  Mr  Son i  was ta l k ing  to  Mr 

Oe l le rmann,  here  when he was lead ing  h im in  the  ev idence 

and Mr  Son i  fo rge ts ,  he ’s  s t i l l  has  to  lead my ev idence 

here ,  okay,  i t ’s  go ing  to  be  very  in te res t ing .   Cha i r  you 

must  a l so  see those c l ips  and say,  le t ’s  go  back,  Mr  Son i  
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was not  fac i l i ta t ing  fo r  Mr  Oe l le rmann to  te l l  h is  s to ry  he  

was mak ing  asser t ions ,  h is  own asser t ions  okay,  there  are  

so  many.   So,  Cha i r,  you have inv i ted  me here ,  and  le t  me 

put  i t  very  c lea r  because I ’m not  one pe rson who  comes 

and want  to  p lease the  Cha i r  so  tha t  a  favourab le  –  I ’m  not  

ask ing  you fo r  a  favourab le  repor t .   I ’ ve  jus t  read my  

s ta tement  and my  s ta tement  p roves beyond any reasonab le  

doubt ,  okay Cha i r,  he ’s  go ing  to  ask  me,  tha t  the  s to ry  

p resented to  th is  Commiss ion ,  tha t  I  bought  p roper t ies  I  

d idn ’ t  have money,  some peop le  –  i t ’s  a l l  fa lse ,  i t ’s  no t  10 

backed up by  ev idence.   I ’ ve  g i ven –  and I  hope he ’s  go ing  

to  ask  me Cha i r,  about  the  breakdown tha t  I ’ ve  g iven to  

h im about  –  because you see,  he  wanted to  dea l  w i th  four  

p roper t ies ,  ye t  he  knows the  o ther  p roper t ies  I ’ ve  so ld  

were  ac tua l l y  the  bas i s  o f  my invo lvement  o r  poss ib le  

par tnersh ips  in  these o the r  four  p roper t ies .   He wants  to  

res t r i c t  you there ,  tha t  i s  why I  ins is ted  on  coming so  tha t ,  

Cha i r,  you unders tand the  contex t .   So,  Mr  Son i  cannot  

th rea ten me Cha i r,  I  can  never  be  th rea tened,  I ’m  one 

person who can  never  be  th rea tened.   So,  Mr  Son i  can  20 

wr i te ,  I  mean even where  I  p roved,  p rev ious ly  in  my o ther  

tes t imony where  he  sa id  th ings  –  you can see  on the  

ev idence o f  Mar tha  Ngoye and the  th ing ,  he  sa id ,  I ’m  go ing  

to  wr i te .   Mr  Son i  le t  me face  you and not  face  the  

Cha i r…[ in te rvenes] .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    You must  face  the  Cha i r,  p lease.  

MR MONTANA:    No,  bu t  I  want  to  say i t  to  h im in  h is  face ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  face  me.  

MR MONTANA:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  le t  me –  I  want  to  say someth ing 

ja…[ in tervenes] .  

MR MONTANA:    My las t  sentence,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  you know,  when I  wro te  to  you in  10 

2019,  Ju l y  2016,  I  sa id  in  my le t te r  I  want  to  –  be fore  i t  

became fash ionab le  I  want  to  ass i s t  the  Commiss ion ’s  work  

and  I  want  to  demonst ra te  tha t  those tha t  make a l l egat ions 

o f  cor rup t ion  aga ins t  some o f  us  are ,  in  fac t ,  the  most  

cor rup t  and they are  invo l ved in  wrongdo ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:    I  be l ieve  th is  Commiss ion  is  very  

impor tan t  fo r  the  fu tu re  o f  our  count ry.   So,  i f  Mr  Son i ,  as  

he  has shown,  demonst ra ted  th roughout  tha t  he  serves a  

par t i cu la r  v iew,  a  par t i cu la r  nar ra t i ve  and he th rea tens he ’s  20 

go ing  to  –  le t  h im wr i te  Cha i r,  because u l t imate l y  these 

th ings w i l l  be  tes ted  in  Cour t ,  w i l l  be  contes ted ,  I ’m  not  

here ,  Cha i r,  to  guy the  Cha i r ’s  face ,  I ’m  here  to  ass i s t  the 

–  tha t  i s  why I ’ ve  been f igh t ing  to  come here .   So,  fo r  me  

to  be  to ld  tha t  I ’m  go ing  to  wr i te  th is  th ing ,  so  he ’s  go ing  to  
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–  Cha i r,  why don ’ t  we s top  th is  sess ion  because what  he ’s  

say ing ,  i s  tha t  desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  I  to ld  h im tha t  I  pu t  

R2mi l l ion  there ,  R2mi l l ion  there ,  I  go t  th is  fac i l i t y  f rom the  

bank,  he ’s  say ing  I ’m s t i l l  go ing  to  wr i te  so  tha t  I  can –  so  

we ’ re  go ing  to  f igh t  today Cha i r,  I ’m  ready fo r  th i s  f igh t ,  I ’m 

ready fo r  th is  f igh t ,  bu t  I ’m  s t i l l  go ing  to  ass is t  you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No le t  me exp la in  why he was  say ing  

what  he  was say ing ,  Mr  Mon tana.   You know the  

Commiss ion ,  you  know,  cer ta in  th ings in  a  Commiss ion  

happen in  the  same way they happen in  a  Cour t  o f  Law,  10 

whethe r  i t ’s  a  c r im ina l  case o r  c iv i l  case but  o f  course  

there  are  cer ta in  d i f fe rences but  a lso  we – I ’m  a  Judge,  

he ’s  a  lawyer,  most  o f  the  t ime we spend ou r  l i ves i n  

Cour ts  and we –  tha t ’s  where  we spend most  o f  our  

work ing  l i ves .   Now,  one o f  the  –  one o f  the  ru les  o f  

fa i rness tha t  I  th ink  I  wou ld  ra ther  ca l l  i t  tha t ,  ru les  o f  

fa i rness in  a  Cour t  o f  Law is  tha t  i f  you  are  quest ion ing  a  

w i tness,  and you ,  la te r  on ,  a rgue  in  a  cer ta in  way,  i f  you  

d idn ’ t  do  cer ta in  th ings and you  d idn ’ t   exp la in  cer ta in  

th ings to  the  w i tness you might  be  he ld  to  have been unfa i r  20 

to  the  w i tness.   So,  to  avo id  be ing  sa id  to  be  un fa i r  you 

want  to  exp la in  those th ings.   So,  I  th ink  what  Mr Son i  i s  

do ing ,  he  is  say ing ,  I  w i l l  be  ask ing  you quest ions,  I  adv ise  

you to  dea l  w i th  them head-on bu t  i f  you  don ’ t  dea l  head-

on w i th  cer ta in  a l legat ions I  may have to  a rgue la te r  on  to  
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the  Cha i rperson  tha t ,  you were  avo id ing  them,  or  

someth ing  l i ke  tha t  bu t  what  he ’s  do ing  is ,  he  wants  to  

make sure  tha t  i f  you  dec ide  no t  to  dea l  head-on w i th  

cer ta in  a l legat ions you must  know tha t  there  m ight  be  th is  

r i sk  so  tha t  i t  can ’ t  be  a  s i tua t ion  where  he ’s  seen  maybe,  

to  take  advantage o f  the  fac t  tha t  you might  no t  have  

known tha t ,  you might  have exp la ined th ings in  a  cer ta in  

way and th is  i s  par t i cu la r l y  more  impor tan t  when you are  

no t  lega l l y  represented because somet imes when you are 

lega l l y  rep resented one can assume tha t  your  lawyer  wou ld  10 

have exp la ined cer ta in  th ings and  so  on .   So,  tha t ’s  the 

contex t ,  so  robustness is  no t  a  p rob lem and so  on  but  I  

th ink  tha t ’s  the  contex t  in  wh ich  he  was ask ing .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  I  accept  tha t ,  Cha i r  I  made a  

commi tment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    You see,  I  d idn ’ t  …[ ind is t inc t ]  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Because I ’m not  tha t  k ind  o f  a  person.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  20 

MR MONTANA:    I ’m  here ,  Mr  Son i  can tea r  me apar t  and 

he must  accept  my response.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t ,  Cha i r,  I  make i t  very  c lea r,  I  can ’ t  be  

th rea tened.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no ,  no  I  don ’ t  th ink  he ’s  th rea ten ing 

you,  I  th ink  tha t ’s  jus t  what  he  –  tha t ’s  the  contex t  o f  what  

he  was say ing .   I  see  we are  a t  f i ve  to .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    F ive  to ,  Cha i rpe rson be fore  we 

ad journ .   You pe rhaps,  pu t  i t  a  b i t  more  e loquent l y  as  to  

what  my duty  i s  to  Mr  Montana.   I t  was never  meant  as  a  

th rea t ,  you wou ld  no t  a l low me to  th rea ten a  w i tness .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And I  wou ld  no t  th rea ten a  w i tness  

bu t  a t  the  end o f  the  day,  Cha i rperson,  we have a  l im i ted 10 

t ime ava i lab le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And i f ,  fo r  example  –  and I  mean 

tha t ’s  a l l  I  was t ry ing  to  do ,  i s  to  say to  Mr  Montana I ’m 

go ing  to  re fe r  you to  cer ta in  documents  and you must  

exp la in  what  those documents  mean to  you and I  w i l l  te l l  

you  what  I  be l ieve  they mean and tha t ’s  the  who le  purpose  

o f  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And to  the  ex ten t ,  Mr  Montana th inks  20 

I ’ ve  a l ready made  up my mind.   I  wou ld  no t  ask  Mr  Montana 

quest ions i f  I ’d  a l ready made up my mind because the  idea  

is  to  ge t  h is  vers ion ,  so  tha t  you can look a t  i t .   I t ’s  no t  me 

who ’s  go ing  to  look  a t  i t ,  i t ’s  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  maybe a lso  to  jus t  ment ion  to  add  
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th is ,  Mr  Montana,  you see the  best  way to  p re jud i ce  you,  i f  

an  ev idence leader  wanted to  p re jud ice  you wou ld  be ,  no t  

to  exp la in  what  Mr  Son i  has exp la ined to  you and ask  

quest ions and then you don ’ t  dea l  w i th  a l legat ions  head-

on,  he  moves on next  quest ion ,  next  quest ion ,  next  

quest ion  then we are  done then  you go then when he 

presents  argument  he  says,  you see,  he  was not  answer ing  

quest ions he  was  avo id ing .   I  asked h im quest ions  he  was 

te l l ing  me o the r  s to r ies  and so  on  but  when he exp la ins  i t  

l i ke  th is ,  you are  ab le  to  say,  okay,  I ’m go ing  to  be  a l i ve  to  10 

whatever  a l legat ion  and I ’m go ing  to  make sure  tha t  I  don ’ t  

have the  s i tua t ion  where ,  I  leave  i t  w i thout  answer ing  i t  

head-on.   So,  I  th ink ,  le t ’s  ad journ  on  tha t  bas is  and then  

le t ’s  take  lunch and then we ’ l l  come back a t  2  o ’ c lock .  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  accep t  your  gu idance on th is  

i ssue,  my po in t  has been made,  I ’ l l  come back a f te r  lunch  

to  come and answer  th is  quest ion  Cha i r,  thank you ve ry  

much.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  tha t ’s  f ine ,  we ad journ .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease.  20 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay let  us cont inue.  

ADV SONI SC:   As please Chai rperson.   Chai rperson I  have 

explained to Mr Montana what I  am going to do now is in  
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respect  of  each of  the propert ies forget  the report  because I  

understand Mr Montana’s concerns about the repor t  we just  

want to  look at  the support ing documents in respect  of  these 

propert ies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja no that  is f ine.   In the meant ime, did 

you get  those annexures that  we talked about Mr Montana? 

MR MONTANA:   Chair  I  have then bu… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Did you get  them during lunch? 

MR MONTANA:   Chair  I  have received everything but  I  have 

since been told  that  I  submit  them af ter  th is  when I  meet wi th  10 

the – wi th Ms Rangata.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What is the posi t ion Mr Soni  do you know 

what is happening in regard to th is part icular document as 

opposed to in  regard to  the aff idavi t?   Because I  thought  

that  the ones that  are ment ioned in the document that  he 

read into the record we could get  those admit ted together 

wi th – admit ted so that  we are done with that  part .  

ADV SONI SC:   Done with that  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja and then – the rest  they can deal  wi th 

in terms of  the process.  20 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   I  was not  aware that  there was that  

dist inct ion Chai rperson so i t  is not  something I  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  dur ing the lunch – before lunch you 

remember – before he read into the record.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   I  – I  ra ised the issue.   I  said something 

along the l ines that  hopeful ly there are no annexures 

re levant  to – to th is.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink Mr Montana – I  got  the impression 

he was nodding at  the t ime but  af ter  I  read i t  I  saw that  there 

were references to annexures.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So before – when we came back f rom the 

adjournment I  sa id I  not iced that  there are two references or 10 

so to annexures and I  th ink he sa id dur ing lunch he could 

br ing them – or af ter lunch or something.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So what I  had in mind is that  those that  are 

referred to here.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Those could be handed up and al l  the 

others that  relate to the rest  of  the aff idavi t  can be deal t  wi th  

in terms of  the process that  has previously agreed.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is what – that  was my – what my 

understanding was.  

ADV SONI SC:   I  – I  accept  that  Chai rperson i t  is not  

something I  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  
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ADV SONI SC:   Sought out  independent ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Simply because we are al ready 

admit ted th is.  

ADV SONI SC:   No sure.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Therefore whatever is referred to here we 

should t ry and admit  i f  we can.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And so that  th is is  complete.  

ADV SONI SC:   Chairperson may I  – may I  suggest  a way 

forward and that  is we… 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Or we can deal  wi th i t  dur ing tea break.  

ADV SONI SC:   We could deal  wi th th is and then as soon 

as… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   The quest ioning is f in ished on this.  

CHAIRPERSON:   They are done. 

ADV SONI SC:   Mr Montana can hand those to Ms 00:03:28.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  i t  is not  a  quest ion of  him handing 

them to her – those that  – the annexures that  relate to the 

document – this document he can hand them to you.   I  want  20 

them to be handed up.   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   So there – those should not  be 

subject  to that  process that  has been agreed on.  

ADV SONI SC:   To that  process yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So – but  what we can do is let  us cont inue.   

Ei ther when you are done or dur ing the tea break.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Then i t  can be at tended to.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  al r ight .  

ADV SONI SC:   Mr Montana we would be able to  get  – they 

are at  the end of  your aff idavi t  so we wi l l  be able to take 10 

them out  as a pi le  – those annexures.  

MR MONTANA:   No,  no Chair  I  have got  everything – they 

are here.   I  just  asked the team at  lunch t ime in l ine wi th 

your instruct ion but  they said no,  no i t  is f ine we wi l l  deal  

wi th i t  later.   So I  just  put  them back safe ly in the car  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No that  is f ine.  

MR MONTANA:   But  I  wi l l  g ive them to the team then.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  can be sorted out  ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Al r ight .    20 

ADV SONI SC:   Now Mr Montana in regard to the Parkwood 

property  you wi l l  see that  there are certain annexures 

referred to OR – Annexure OR1 to Mr Oel lermann’s aff idavi t .   

I  just  want to refer to the annexures.  

 Annexure PP1 is a ser ies of  emai ls  and I  just  want to 
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refer you to two emai ls.  I f  you could please turn to page 44 

and 45.   You wi l l  see at  the bot tom of  page 44 there is an 

emai l  f rom you dated the 21s t  of  August  2012,  do you see 

that  – r ight  at  the bot tom at  page 44? 

MR MONTANA:   I  am on page 45 sorry Chai r.   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh the one dated 21.  

MR MONTANA:   I  am on page 44 ja.   I  see that .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   August  2012.  

ADV SONI SC:   2012 yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Al r ight .  

ADV SONI SC:   And you wi l l  see on the next  page at  page 

45 i t  is addressed to Ms Wi l l is  – Ursula Wi l l is  who I  

understand was your personal  banker,  is that  correct?  Sorry 

Mr Montana i f  you could… 

MR MONTANA:   That  is correct  ja.   Sorry,  sorry.  

ADV SONI SC:   And then you wi l l  see at  page 45 in the 

second paragraph you say to her:  

“Would you be so kind and also send me 

latest  updates or rather balances on each of  20 

the propert ies.   This is important  in 

determining the propert ies to be disposed of  

under current  economic concerns. ”  

And then you wi l l  see her reply in… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on Mr Soni .  I t  wi l l  be convenient  as 
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we deal  wi th each aff i  – emai l  just  to state who i t  is f rom, 

who i t  is to – what  date i t  is.  

ADV SONI SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What the subject  matter is i f  possible 

before reading that  wi l l  just  he lp.  Whoever reads the 

t ranscr ipts.  

ADV SONI SC:   Is  reading yes.   As you please Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   So the one you are looking at  now is at  page 

45 is i t  the one that  says:  10 

“Dear – is i t  Ursula”  

ADV SONI SC:   Ursula yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh how do you pronounce that? 

ADV SONI SC:   Ursula.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV SONI SC:   Ursula.  

MR MONTANA:   Ursula.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ursula.  Okay al r ight .   Okay that  is the one 

you are ta lk ing about ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   That  is the one.    20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay al r ight .   And you have just  read the 

second of  two paragraphs in the emai l?  

ADV SONI SC:   That  is so Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   Then Mr Montana can I  ask you to  turn to 
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page 42.  

CHAIRPERSON:   At  th is stage Mr Soni  we are not  deal ing 

wi th any speci f ic property or are we? 

ADV SONI SC:   We deal ing wi th Parkwood. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh that  is what I  wanted.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Parkwood.  

ADV SONI SC:   Parkwood.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .   Okay cont inue.  

ADV SONI SC:   A t  the bot tom of  page 42 you wi l l  see there 10 

is an emai l  f rom Ursula Wi l l is also dated the 21s t  August  

about  45 minutes af ter your emai l  to her and i t  is addressed 

to you,  is that  correct  Mr Montana? 

MR MONTANA:   I  see that  Chai r.  

ADV SONI SC:   Okay and then i f  you look at  page 43.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry that  is a let ter f rom – that  is an 

emai l  f rom Ursula 

ADV SONI SC:   Ursula Wi l l is.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wi l l  – Wi l l is dated 30 October 2012.  

ADV SONI SC:   No,  no r ight  at  the bot tom Chairperson 21s t  20 

August .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh are you going back to the one we deal t  

wi th ear l ier? 

ADV SONI SC:   No,  no.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or is i t  another one? 
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ADV SONI SC:   This is the reply at  page 42.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   I  am sorry.   Oh page – at  page 

42.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes r ight  at  the bot tom.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   You wi l l  see i t  is sent  21s t  of  August  2012.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   At  9:43 pm.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And the subject  is Pr ivate – Private 1 

Securi ty.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   Pr ivate 1 Securi ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Held.  

ADV SONI SC:   Held 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  Ja you can cont inue.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   And this  is in  answer to your  emai l  Mr 

Montana and about in the middle of  the page next  to the 

number 3 i t  is deal ing wi th  ERF 359 Parkwood 

Johannesburg.   Do you accept  that? 

MR MONTANA:   I  accept  that  Chai r.  

ADV SONI SC:   And she gives the address as 10 Newport  20 

Road, that  was the address of  the Parkwood property,  is that  

correct? 

MR MONTANA:   That  is correct .  

ADV SONI SC:   And then she says:  

“The valuat ion amount is R3.5 mi l l ion.”  
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MR MONTANA:   Is that  on page 42? 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   I t  is just  under the physical  address 

you wi l l  see valuat ion amount R3.5 mi l l ion.  

MR MONTANA:   That  is correct .  

ADV SONI SC:   Right .   And then of  course this ref lects as 

per your request  she ref lects the amount of  the bond – I  

th ink i t  is between – oh sorry for R2 mi l l ion.   Saying – just  

under valuat ion amount.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am st ruggl ing to  – to see where you are 

Mr Soni .   Are you st i l l  at  page 42? 10 

ADV SONI SC:   No 43 Chairperson.   This is the – the 

substance of  the emai l  f rom Ms Wil l is to Mr Montana.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   R ight  at  the top she says:  

“Hi  Lucky.   Here is  the informat ion you 

requested. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  can see that .  

ADV SONI SC:   And then she deals wi th the informat ion in 

regard to one of  the propert ies in Waterkloof  or two of  the 

propert ies in Waterk loof  and then number 3 she deals wi th 20 

ERF359 Parkwood. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay you see I  was looking a sentence 

that  says something l ike here is or something l ike that .  

ADV SONI SC:   Oh.   Sorry 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay that  was.  



10 MAY 2021 – DAY 391 
 

Page 86 of 179 
 

ADV SONI SC:   That  is r ight  at  the top.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Valuat ion amount R3.5 mi l l ion.   

Right .  

ADV SONI SC:   That  is so.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bond amount is i t  R2 mi l l ion,  is that  r ight?  

The bond was R2 mi l l ion.  

ADV SONI SC:   R2 mi l l ion yes.   That  is correct  Mr Montana? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Is that  correct? 

MR MONTANA:   No I  am happy – I  am happy wi th  th is Mr 

Soni .  10 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   A lr ight  then I  just  want to ask you then to  

look at  PP2 which is page 40 – starts at  page 46 – this is the 

offer by Precise Trade – wel l  perhaps I  should just  descr ibe 

what the document is.    

 I t  – the t i t le of  the document is Offer to Purchase Ful l  

Ti t le,  is that  correct  at  page 46? 

MR MONTANA:    I  see that  Chair  ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   And i t  is a document which is a – an offer by 20 

Precise Trade to purchase f rom you the property which is 10 

Newport  Road, Parkwood.  And that  you wi l l  f ind at  page – 

oh sorry 1.  – paragraph 1.2.   Is that  correct? 

MR MONTANA:   That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV SONI SC:   Right .   And then i t  is  the Terms of  the 
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Agreement are the purchase pr ice is R6.8 mi l l ion.  That  is 

what you said al ready.   And the payment was going to be 

way of  a deposi t  of  R2.5mi l l ion to be paid wi thin 30 days – 

that  is at  paragraph 2.2 and at  2.3 the balance of  the 

purchase pr ice to be paid to Loubser Van der Walt  

Incorporated Trust  Account wi th in 90 days af ter the 

signature.   Is that  correct? 

MR MONTANA:   That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV SONI SC:   Okay.   And they say at  paragraph 2.4:  

“Loubser Van Der Walt  Incorporated wi l l  10 

issue acceptable guarantees against  th is  

purchase pr ice. ”  

Is that  correct? 

MR MONTANA:   That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now Loubser Van Der Walt  is obviously Mr 

Van Der Walt ’s legal  f i rm – I  mean he was a partner  in that  

legal  f i rm.  

MR MONTANA:   He was a partner indeed.  He was a partner.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   Wel l  now can I  just  ask you quickly I  

want to come back to PP2 but  I  just  want to get  th is over  20 

wi th.   I f  you look at  PP3 which is at  page 53 – i t  s tarts at  

page 53.   This is the Deed Of Transfer in respect  to that  

property,  is that  correct?  Page 53 Mr Montana and you wi l l  

see r ight  in the middle of  that  page i t  is a Deed of  Transfer.  

MR MONTANA:   Ja.  



10 MAY 2021 – DAY 391 
 

Page 88 of 179 
 

ADV SONI SC:   A lr ight  and you wi l l  see at  page 56 the 

property was t ransferred on the 20t h of  February 20015.  

MR MONTANA:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Is that  correct?  Now Mr Van Der Walt  has 

given an explanat ion of  the payments made in regard to th is  

property.   I t  is contained in Mr Loubser ’s aff idavi t .   Can I  ask 

you then to please turn to Bundle G – Annexure SS16 which 

is Mr Loubser ’s aff idavi t .   And can I  ask you to please look at  

page 198.   This is  the black numbers now – page 198.    

MR MONTANA:   198.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   198.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink the 198 on my one is wri t ten by 

hand.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is i t?  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja so look for one that  is  wri t ten by hand 

Mr Montana.    

ADV SONI SC:   Have you got  i t  there? 

MR MONTANA:   Ja is th is the one wi th the amounts in 20 

Afr ikaans? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   I t  is dated the 28t h of  January 2016.  

MR MONTANA:   I  have got  i t  Chair  ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   I  wi l l  just  te l l  you what th is is.   This is  the 
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evidence given by Mr Loubser.   He says af ter the – af ter  

art ic les were wri t ten about the property  deals they asked Mr 

Van Der Walt  certain quest ions about the deals and he wrote 

to them.  This is a  second let ter  he wrote to them on the 28t h  

of  January explaining al l  the t ransfers – or al l  the payments 

that  were made in respect  of  the di fferent  propert ies.   We 

are only deal ing wi th four of  them.   

 Now at  paragraph 2.2 of  page 198 of  the let ter of  the 

28t h of  January he says in his let ter  that  the purchase pr ice 

of  R6.8 mi l l ion th is is in respect  o f  Parkwood property was 10 

paid as fol lows and he sets out  the date of  payment  and the 

amount on each of  – the amounts paid on each of  those 

dates.    

 Now can I  ask – wel l  can I  a lso ask… 

MR MONTANA:   What page is that? 

ADV SONI SC:   Sorry i t  st i l l  page 198.  

MR MONTANA:   We st i l l  on page 198.  

ADV SONI SC:   Paragraph 2.2.   He says:  

CHAIRPERSON:   One second.  Mr Montana how is  your  

Afr ikaans? 20 

MR MONTANA:   Not  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is good enough for th is.  

MR MONTANA:   Ek praat  net  kombuis Afr ikaans DCJ so.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MONTANA:   So –  part icular ly I  see here – I  th ink i t  
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would be – but  I  t rust  the commission’s – I  have read th is 

aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   But  not  th is part icular let ter.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

MR MONTANA:   So I  do not  know – I  do not  know but  i t  is 

f ine Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay I  th ink – I  th ink Mr Soni  wi l l  te l l  you 

what i t  – what i t  says but  I  th ink what the legal  team should 

obtain is an Engl ish t ranslat ion.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   We wi l l  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  the let ter ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV SONI SC:   So i t  says at  paragraph 2.2 the purchase 

pr ice of  R6.8 mi l l ion was paid as fol lows:   And then he 

isolates – I  mean then he i temises each payment .   Now I  

want you Mr Montana i f  you could please assist  as wel l  – i f  

you could keep your hand on that  page and also turn to page 

190 ear l ier page 190 and that  is  – I  have got  to  te l l  you 20 

again that  is  the evidence given by Mr Loubser that  th is is  

one of  the documents that  Mr Van Der Walt  handed to him at  

the t ime he wrote the let ter and this – the document at  page 

190 Mr Van Der Walt  sa id was the bank account – the 

t ransact ion h istory of  the bank account relat ing to Precise 
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Trade’s Property deals.   You understand that  that  is  what i t  

is.  

MR MONTANA:   Wel l  I  hear Chai r.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   Wel l  that  is the evidence I  –  you know 

i t  is not .  

MR MONTANA:   I  accept  that  ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now I  – why I  want you to look at  th is is I  

want  us to  compare what is  sa id by Mr – in  that  let ter wi th  

entr ies in the bank account.    

 So i f  you look at  2 .2.1 he says:  10 

“On the 18t h of  June 2014 an amount of  

R2 258 000.00 was paid. ”  

MR MONTANA:   Where – are you st i l l  on 19? 

ADV SONI SC:   Oh sorry on 198.  

MR MONTANA:   On 198 ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   A lr ight  so we can just  concentrate on that .   

Now i f  we look at  an entry in the bank account which is  at  

page 1… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on I  was a lso st i l l  t ry ing to go back 

to 198.   Which i tem? 20 

ADV SONI SC:   2.2.1 Chai rperson.   The 18t h of  June.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Al r ight .  

ADV SONI SC:   2014.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   And the amount ref lected as being paid is 
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R2 250 000.00.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   A lr ight .   Now Mr Montana can – and 

Chairperson can I  ask now we turn to page 190 and you wi l l  

see the thi rd ent ry on the bank account  is for  the 18t h of  

June 2014 and i t  is ref lected as a wi thdrawal f rom Precise or 

by Precise Riaan Loan.  You see that  Mr Montana? The thi rd 

entry on page 190 Chairperson.  

MR MONTANA:   I  am on 190 Chai r.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.    10 

MR MONTANA:   Ja,  okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   You see i t  says wi thdrawal value date 18t h 

June and Precise /  Riaan loan.   That  is the descr ipt ion given 

to that  entry.   Do you see that? 

MR MONTANA:   Yes I  see that .  

ADV SONI SC:   Right .   And the amount there is  R1 250 

mi l l ion?  Mr Montana.  At  page 190.    

MR MONTANA:   Chair  I  see – I  see the – I  th ink that  the 

above 4 I  see R350 400 l inked to Montana.   Oh I  see at  the 

bot tom R2 250 I  see that  Chair  18t h June.  20 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   We are going to deal  wi th each of  them 

Mr Montana.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay.  
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ADV SONI SC:   A lr ight  and according to Mr Loubser the 

word guarantee was wri t ten by Mr Van Der Walt  at  the t ime 

the document was given to Mr Loubser.  

MR MONTANA:   But  th is – so this is  a guarantee given to the 

bank – to ABSA. 

ADV SONI SC:   No,  no,  no this is  a Debi t  in the account.   I  

am just  t ry ing to draw a l ink between what he says at  page 

198.  

MR MONTANA:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   And what is ref lected in the bank account.  10 

MR MONTANA:   In the statement ja  okay sure.  

ADV SONI SC:   Okay.  

MR MONTANA:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   So I  am just  saying he says that  amount was 

paid on the 18t h of  June and when you look at  the account  

you wi l l  see that  that  account – that  amount was debi ted to 

the Precise Trade account on that  day.  

MR MONTANA:    Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   Okay.   Now I  just  want to alert  you to two – 

the two earl ier ent r ies of  the 18t h of  June.   There is a deposi t  20 

– the f i rst  ent ry is a deposi t  of  R1 850 mi l l ion.   Do you see 

that? 

MR MONTANA:   I  see that .  

ADV SONI SC:   And then there is another deposi t  of  R4 

mi l l ion.   And in h is handwr i t ing Mr Van Der Walt  wr i tes TMM 
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loan.  

MR MONTANA:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Then i f  you look at  – go back to page 198.  

MR MONTANA:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   You wi l l  see 2.2.2 on the 18t h of  July 2014 

he says a payment of  R110 800.00 was made to you.   You 

see that? 

MR MONTANA:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   And then you wi l l  see that  when you look at  

page 190 on the 18t h of  July there is a wi thdrawal of  10 

R110 800.00 and i t  is marked Montana payment.  

MR MONTANA:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Okay.   Now I  suppose I  should ask you wi th  

regard to each one.   The R2.25 mi l l ion is that  a payment that  

was made to you on the day ref lected? 

MR MONTANA:   No,  no Chai r.   I  suspect  Chair  I  do not  know 

– i t  was not  made to me but  when I  see that  I  th ink i t  is 

l inked to him set t l ing the bond with ABSA for  that  amount.  

Because that  was the – that  was the bond amount that  I  had 

so when has bought the property the f i rst  payment must  go 20 

to – i t  must  go to the bank.   So I  th ink that  is what i t  ref lects 

Chai r.  

ADV SONI SC:   No now I  understand – I  understand 

perfect ly.   A lr ight  so the f i rst  payment was – was – you 

accept  the f i rst  payment would have been made in respect  of 
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the property  but  i t  was not  made to you and when you put 

the ful l  p icture or taking the ful l  p icture into account you 

think i t  was a payment made to the bank? 

MR MONTANA:   Chair  I  th ink – look Chai r  I  – I  th ink this is 

consistent  wi th my statement that  I  have made but  I  would 

not  know what is the – because when I  saw the aff idavi t  and 

made contact  wi th Riaan to say what was this and he says 

no but  these were my statements when I  was using the 

money around. But  that  is he – he is the one who must come 

and account to – about  how he used the money at  Precise 10 

Trade.   But  when I  look at  the amount of  R2 250 I  th ink let  us 

go back to the emai l  – the emai l  f rom Ursula Wi l l is I  do not  

know how much did they say they recal l  but… 

ADV SONI SC:   Do you recal l  i t  was R2 mi l l ion.  

MR MONTANA:   Ja I  am sure.  

ADV SONI SC:   But  I  mean that  was the year  ear l ier so i t  

( ta lk ing over one another0.  

MR MONTANA:   That  was the year ear l ier.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV SONI SC:   But  Mr Montana al l  I  want  us to agree on is 20 

that  Mr Van Der Walt  says that  the payment was made – that  

payment was made in respect  of  the Parkwood property.   I  

accept  that  you say i t  was not  made to you so we must 

accept  that  i t  would have been made to the bank.  

MR MONTANA:   I t  should have been made to the bank.   
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Chair  the r isk of  course of  doing that  I  th ink Mr Soni  should – 

let  us cont inue taking me through 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   But  I  am being asked about the f inancial  

statements of  another company not  about  mine.   I  th ink i t  

would have been good i f  we had my own bank statements.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Because I  th ink i f  you look at  the R6.8 the 

bulk of  the money did not  even come to my account.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  10 

MR MONTANA:   As I  explained ear l ier  I  said pay there – pay 

there -   pay there.   But  you would record i t  as a thing.   How 

you got  the money – who shi f t  monies around.  I  would not  

have the detai ls Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No that  is f ine.  

MR MONTANA:   So I  th ink that  the – so I  th ink let  us go 

through them as you say.  

ADV SONI SC:   No sure.  

MR MONTANA:   But  I  .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Where you are able to say someth ing you 20 

wi l l  say where you are not  able to say you are not  able.  

MR MONTANA:   Absolutely Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   And – and i f  you dispute any part icular 

payment place that  on record.  
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MR MONTANA:   No,  no on this one Chai r  I  cannot because i t  

is not  my statement.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   I  do not  know them. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   I  am seeing them as they are tabled here.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.    

ADV SONI SC:   A lr ight .   Then on the 2.2.3 he says same on 

the 18t h July 2014 a payment of  R350 00.00 was made and i f  

you look at  page 190 a wi thdrawal of  that  amount is made 10 

and he marks i t  Montana payment.    

MR MONTANA:   Ja I  see that  yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   You see that  – yes.   Alr ight  then at  2.2.4 on 

the 24t h of… 

CHAIRPERSON:   So I  guess – I  am sorry Mr Soni .   

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  guess the point  you are making or  part  of 

the point  you are making Mr Montana is where the statement 

might  be saying Montana payment do not  take that  as i f  i t  

means I  was paid that  amount.   You would accept  that  might  20 

have been paid in respect  of  that  t ransact ion but  you are 

making the point  that  i t  d id not  come to you.  

MR MONTANA:   No,  no Chai r  some of  them may not  have 

come to me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  
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MR MONTANA:   Part icular ly  the big amounts I  th ink that  is  

when he was – he was set t l ing the banks and al l  of  those 

things.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   So i t  is his – you can see that  he had 

wri t ten a lot  of  notes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Because he is deal ing wi th in that  statement 

he is deal ing wi th . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  10 

MR MONTANA :    . . .o r  by  the  company.   So . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    So ,  bu t  I  w i l l  take  you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    That  th is  account ing  fo r  the  s ix -hundred 

and. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . .R  46 .8  m i l l ion  when he bought  the  

proper t ies  f rom me.   Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Okay.   Then 2 .2 .4 .   Sor ry,  have we 20 

dea l t  w i th  2 .2 .3?  

MR MONTANA :    3 ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    That  i s  the  18 t h  o f  Ju ly,  the 

R 350 000,00.  

MR MONTANA :    H ’m.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And then you w i l l  see  on the 

24 t h  o f  Ju ly,  he  says R 400 000,00 and he –  there  is  a  

w i thdrawal  o f  R 200 000,00 and i t  i s  marked TLM.   Those  

are  your  in i t ia ls .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA :    So  th is  one,  i t  says  TLM,  No la(? )  

Montana.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    [ laughs]  

MR MONTANA :    So  how do you know,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   Ja .   Wel l ,  un less  there  was an  10 

ind ica t ion  in  the  ev idence tha t  TLM was unders tood or  

re fe r red  to  –  was  meant  to  be  h i s  acqu is i t ion  –  h i s  in i t ia ls .   

What  d id  the  –  Mr  Van der  Wal t ’s  par tne r  sa id  about  i t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Wel l ,  he  –  what  we need to  look  a t  

Cha i rperson is  two th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    What  –  he  says . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    What  i s  wr i t ten  in  the  le t te r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    [ Ind is t inc t ]   

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    R  400 000,00 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    On the  24 t h  o f  Ju ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And then on the  24 t h  o f  Ju ly,  there  i s  

a  w i thdrawal  o f  R  400 000,00.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Okay.   No,  I  th ink  –  I  th ink ,  

Mr  Montana,  wha t  Mr  Son i  i s  say ing  is .   What  -  the  i tems 

we are  look ing  a t  190,  tha t  he  po in ts  ou t ,  we must  read – 

we must  unders tand them in  the  contex t  o f  the  le t te r.  

MR MONTANA :    The le t te r.   No,  no  Cha i r  I  accept  that  

fu l l y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

MR MONTANA :    I  accept  tha t  fu l l y,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  th ink  the  on ly  p rob lem . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . . tha t  I  have and  I  th ink  the  numbers  are  

very  c lear  there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  do  no t  have a  prob lem wi th . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    He was exp la in ing  to  h is  par tners .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

MR MONTANA :    Now,  R iaan and I  had a  much broader  

re la t ionsh ip .   We are  dea l ing  w i th  o ther  th ings and you w i l l  

see  in  my annexure  tha t  I  a t tached where  we ended up a  

re la t ionsh ip .   He sa id  to  me:   You are  ow ing me 

R 1 .3  m i l l ion .   The ba lance between the  two o f  us  i s  
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R  1 .3  m i l l ion .   And when I  ca lcu la te  the  R 1 .3  m i l l ion ,  he  

go t  i t  f rom the  payments  tha t  we are  –  wh ich  is  ou ts ide  o f  

the  th ing .    

 So I  th ink  tha t  un less  i f  he  is  here  or  depose o f  

an  a f f idav i t  to  say :   I  pa id  tha t  amount .   I  pa id  tha t .   

Because then i f  –  and tha t  i s  why I  am say ing  the  

annexure ,  he  says to  me when we  ended the  re la t i onsh ip ,  

he  says the  payment  tha t  I  pa id  you to  in  excess o f  

R 1 .3  m i l l ion .   So you must  pay i t  back to  me.   Of  course ,  

a t  the  end,  we rea l i sed tha t  no  I  have a lso  pu t  money and 10 

i t  d id  no t . . .   So I  am not  quest i on  in  the  payments  tha t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    And in  some ins tances they a re  recorded  

as  Montana.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  in  the  –  say fo r  example ,  I  wou ld  say  

pay someone fo r  th is  work .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    Or  I  remember  when he bought  the 20 

Parkwood proper ty,  there  were  cer ta in  th ings tha t  were  no t  

done and I  sa id :   No,  you can draw them f rom the 

R 6 .8  m i l l ion  because then you pay f rom there .   You w i l l  

record  tha t  as  Montana ’s  fee  bu t  I  d id  no t  mean – 

un for tunate ly,  my  accounts  have been shut  down,  Cha i r  
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and I  do  no t  know i f  we can get  the  records  because they  

w i l l  te l l  you  and i t  p robab ly  means(?)  tha t  the  bu lk  o f  those  

amount  rea l l y  d id  no t  even. . .    

 So  we may have had the  d i scuss ion  and say pu t  

tha t  money there ,  okay?  But  we do not  know.   So i t  –  th is  

–  he  may a lso  have –  there  i s  another  poss ib i l i t y  o r  

exp lanat ion .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    Wou ld  have been tha t  a f te r  h is  par tne rs  

has quest ioned h im,  he  then went  to  the  s ta tements  and 10 

then put  every th ing  under  the  Parkwood proper ty  and  

exp la ined i t  as  such.   So tha t  i s  a  poss ib i l i t y.   But  aga in ,  I  

cannot  speak on h is  beha l f .   The issue i s  tha t  we had the  

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  R iaan van der  Wal t .   We were  invo lved in  

many deve lopments  o r  t ransact ions and so  I  th ink  I  w i l l  no t  

quest ion  the  –  whether  the  numbers  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    I t  i s  no t  in  my –  so  I  do  no t  know.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  the  number  you do not  quest ion  bu t  

the  re la t ionsh ip  be tween each payment  and fo r  example  20 

the  Parkwood proper ty  tha t  tha t  you have no prob lem wi th  

tha t?  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no  Cha i r,  the  Parkwood proper ty  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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MR MONTANA :    . . .he  pa id  me R 6 .8  m i l l ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  tha t  money,  as  I  have sa id ,  i t  d id  no t  

come to  me . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . . in  tha t  way.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    So  what  happened is  tha t ,  I  sa id :   No,  we 

have to  se t t le  the  bank f i rs t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  10 

MR MONTANA :    So  the  bank was pa id  two p lus .   And now 

tha t  i s  why I  am say ing  I  assume . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    R  2 .25  mi l l ion .  

MR MONTANA :    . . . two f i ve(? )  ze ro .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    You know,  Cha i r,  in  fac t  –  no ,  no .   In  fac t ,  

I  th ink  the  two po in t  two f i ve  ze ro  may be l inked  to the 

Waterk loo f  p roper ty  a f te r  the  sa le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    So  tha t  i s  why I  do  no t  see the  two  mi l l ion 20 

where  he  was se t t l ing  the  bank.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA :    So  I  th ink  and I  am not  sure  how many  

accounts  he  was us ing  and a l l  o f  those th ings but  I  assume 

tha t  the  two po in t  two f i ve  –  i f  you  look a t  the  pr i ce  o f  the  
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p roper ty  in  Waterk loo f ,  the  amounts  co r re la te .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA :    You remember  I  sa id  ear l ie r  on  pa id  tha t  

p roper ty  a f te r  –  f rom the  proceeds  o f  the  sa le .   And there  

are  emai ls ,  Cha i r,  by  the  way,  tha t  R iaan and I  have been  

exchang ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    And these emai l s  were  ava i lab le .   I  am 

surpr i sed tha t  they are  no t  inc luded because they have 

g iven a  proper  contex t  o f  each payment  and what  10 

happened to  the  proceeds o f  R 6 .8  m i l l ion .   So i t  d id  no t  

come to  me.   He pa id  var ious en t i t ies  and . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    . . .p rocesses.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  you have got  those emai ls  o r  you do 

not  have i t  anymore?  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no  I  do  no t  have,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

MR MONTANA :    You remember  those emai l s ,  I  wro te  them 

when I  was s t i l l  a t  PRASA.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  the  invest iga tors ,  Cha i r,  they  have 

got  those emai ls .   And you know what  happened? 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    Then they went  on  cher ry(?)  p i ck ing(? ) .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    So  a l l  my –  a l l  my emai ls  a t  PRASA were  

downloaded and  what  has happened,  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  they 

were  downloaded by  Werksmans .   From Werksmans,  o f  

course ,  la te r  on  they moved to  the  Commiss ion  th rough  

Mr  Oe l le rmann ’s  repor t .   But  you can see,  Cha i r,  my  emai ls  

in  the i r  en t i re ty  a re  no t  even prov ided –  ind ica te  he re .   And  

tha t  i s  why when  I  look  a t  my emai ls  w i th  R iaan,  I  wro te  

them whi le  I  was s t i l l  work ing  fo r  PRASA.    

 And I  say  the  re la t ionsh ip  was not  a  sec re t ,  10 

because when I  was be ing  invest iga ted  they down loaded 

the  emai ls  bu t  what  c lever ly  has been done he re  is  to  

se lec t  what  po r t ray  a  par t i cu la r  nar ra t i ve  and leave o the rs  

tha t  do  no t .   But  I  th ink ,  I  agree w i th  Mr  Son i ’s  method 

where  he  says there  i s  an  –  the re  was tes t imony,  a  par tner  

came and he sa id  here  is  a  le t te r.   That  a lso  I  canno t  Cha i r  

tha t  i f  I  had a  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Prec i se ,  okay?   

 I  unders tand when the  par tners  ask  h im about  

the  ac t i v i t ies  o f  the  f i rm,  o f  the  law f i rm but  i f  P rec i se  

wh ich  they we d id  no t  have cont ro l  ove r.   We d id  no t  even 20 

know about  i t .   So  maybe he was t ry ing  to  g ive  them 

assurance,  I  do  no t  know,  bu t  I  th ink  some o f  them do not  

cor re la te  to  me Cha i r.   But  i f  we ask  ABSA,  Cha i r.   I  was  

bank ing  w i th  ABSA.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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MR MONTANA :    Sure ly,  ABSA . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  was to ld  –  I  read the  s ta tement  in  the 

Sunday Times,  by  the  way.   Mr  Son i ,  where  the  

Commiss ion  sa id  they a re  go ing  to  subpoena my bank 

s ta tements .   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    And I  th ink ,  Cha i r,  we cou ld  go  back to  

tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    When was tha t?  10 

MR MONTANA :    I t  was in  the  Sunday Times,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Th i s  weekend?  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no  no t  the  –  I  th ink  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Somet ime back?  

MR MONTANA :    . . . i t  was ea r l ie r  in  the  year.   And I  sa id  I  

we lcome the  oppor tun i ty  fo r  the  Commiss ion  to  subpoena  

these bank s ta tements  and look a t  tha t  because then we  

can do a  th ree-way exerc i se .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    What  Van de r  Wal t  says ,  what  th is  le t te r  20 

says and what  my  bank accounts  are  te l l ing  us  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    And I  w i l l  g ive  permiss ion  to  the 

Commiss ion  to  ask  fo r  those s ta tements  f rom ABSA.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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MR MONTANA :    They shou ld  s t i l l  have my s ta tement ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  do  no t  have access to  them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Cha i rpe rson,  le t  me jus t  say.   I  know 

noth ing  about  –  there  are  two th ings . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . .and I  th ink  I  need to  se t  the  record  

s t ra igh t .   Mr  Montana says the  invest iga tors .   I  th ink  he  10 

must  make a  d i s t inc t ion  the  Commiss ion ’s  inves t iga tors  

and the  invest iga tors  who conducted the  invest iga t ion  a t  

PRASA.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Th is  i s  in  fa i rness to  the  Commiss ion .   

That  i s  the  f i rs t  th ing ,  I  th ink ,  when he is  ta lk ing  about  

invest iga t ions and invest iga tors .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Bu t  the  second th ing  is ,  Cha i rperson.   

We d id  no t  ge t  anyth ing  f rom Werksmans.   We got  -  a l l  the  20 

in fo rmat ion  conta ined in  here ,  te l l s  you what  the  source  is .   

The source  is  the  S iyangena a f f idav i t  and –  we l l ,  PRASA’s  

a f f idav i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    PRASA.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . . in  the  S iyangena mat te r  and 
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S iyangena ’s  response.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    We d id  no t  ge t  anyth ing  f rom 

Werksmans.   So to  the  ex ten t  tha t  Mr  Montana th inks  we 

may have le f t  ou t  th ings,  g ive  h im the  assurance tha t  

every th ing  tha t  was g i ven to  us  o f  re levance was inc luded  

but  we d id  no t  have any dea l ings  w i th  Werksmans  and we  

cou ld  no t ,  fo r  one reasons,  Cha i rperson.   Compla in ts  had 

been made aga ins t  Werksmans.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.   Ja ,  okay.    10 

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  no ,  I  do  no t  want  to  d ispute  what  

Mr  Son i  i s  say ing .   I  do  no t  have  a  prob lem wi th  i t .   I  am 

g lad  tha t  you are  say ing  the re  i s  tha t  re la t ionsh ip  and 

there  is  –  no te  tha t  there  i s  a  d i s t inc t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  Cha i r,  le t  me te l l  you .   When these 

documents  –  when the  Commiss ion  asked . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Cha i rperson,  sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    There  seems to  be  a  techn ica l  20 

prob lem and I  have been asked i f  we can have f i ve  m inutes  

fo r  them to  a t tend to  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Mr  Montana is  no t  me.   

MR MONTANA :    Sure .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I  jus t  want  every th ing  to  be  recorded.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .   Okay.   Le t  us  take  a  f i ve  m inutes  

ad journment  and  two,  so  tha t  they can dea l  w i th  the 

techn ica l  p rob lem.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    As  you p lease.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We ad jou rn .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS  

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay I  hope they have f i xed  the  

prob lem.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    They have,  Cha i r.  

MR MONTANA :    Okay a l r i gh t .   Le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    As  you p lease,  Cha i r.   Sor ry,  

Mr  Montana.   You  were  say ing  someth ing?  

MR MONTANA :    Yes,  Cha i r,  I  was say ing  tha t  Mr  Son i  

made the  d is t inc t ion  be tween the  Commiss ion  and the  

invest iga to rs .   I  accept  tha t .   The issue tha t  I  have  

cons is ten t ly  ra ised was the  fac t  tha t  when the  Commiss ion  

requested in fo rmat ion  on  the  documents ,  on  the  case o f  

S iyangena,  I  f i led  an  a f f idav i t  and tha t  a f f idav i t  was  20 

ignored.   That  i s  the  f i rs t  i ssue.   Okay?  The second issue 

is  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry.   I s  tha t  a f f idav i t  the  one  tha t  i s  

be ing  f i xed  in  te rms o f  the  annexures o r  there  is  another  

one?  
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MR MONTANA :    No,  no  I  am say ing  in  regard  to  

S iyangena.   I t  i s  no t  in  re la t ion  to  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  a t  the  h igh  cour t?  

MR MONTANA :    A t  the  h igh  cour t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    You remember  Mr  Son i  was say ing  the  

source  o f  the  in fo rmat ion  f rom the  Commiss ion  is  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  yes .   No,  now I  unders tand.  

MR MONTANA :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    So  you are  say ing  there  is  an  a f f idav i t  

tha t  you had f i led  –  you had a l so  f i led  in  the  h igh  cour t?  

MR MONTANA :    I  have a lso  f i led  an  a f f idav i t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA :    . . . to  ge t  a l l  the  de ta i l s  tha t  I  am today  

present ing  to  the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  a lso ,  there  is  in fo rmat ion  where  –  I  

th ink  the  a f f idav i t  o f  S iyangena,  i f  I  reca l l  we l l ,  i t  even  20 

den ied  th is  very  i ssue and say:   No,  no  bu t  no t  as  

S iyangena.   We were  no t  even re la ted  to  th is  i ssue  tha t  i s  

there .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    Now Cha i r,  i f  I  accept  tha t ,  Mr  Son i ,  bu t  i f  



10 MAY 2021 – DAY 391 
 

Page 111 of 179 
 

I  do  accept  tha t ,  there  is  no  reason Cha i r  why Mr  

Oe l le rmann -  the  very  peop le  who are  accused in  th is  th ing  

they a re  ac tua l l y  no t  even in te rv iewed.   He says he  has  

seen the  proper t ies  f rom outs ide ,  took p i c tu re  dur ing  h is  

tes t imony here  bu t  the  f i rs t  person tha t  i t  i s  a l leged the  

proper t ies  were  bought  f rom Mr  Montana.   Su re ly,  Cha i r,  

there  i s  jus t  no  reason.   So I  do  no t  want  to  f igh t  over  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  I  want  to  p lace  i t  on  reco rd .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  10 

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  one o f  the  reasons Cha i r  why I  

w i l l  no t  accept  Mr  Oe l le rmann ’s  th ing .   Now we a re  dea l ing  

w i th  the  s ta tements  and we a re  dea l ing  w i th  the  o ther  

annexures and some o f  them I  have got  p rob lems but  I  

th ink  in  the  course  o f  the  issue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    Yes,  I  am not  pu t t ing  them as one.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  i f  someone does not  in te rv iew me and  

take a l legat ions f rom the  ve ry  same peop le ,  as  I  see i t ,  20 

and put  them as  par t  o f  the  repor t (? )  o f  the  Commiss ion ,  

tha t  i s  no t  accep tab le  Cha i r  and so  tha t  i s  the  issue tha t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  an  issue fo r  you.  

MR MONTANA :    . . .bu t  I  accept  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . .do  no t  t rea t  us  one as  –  l i ke  

Werksmans . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . .and o ther  th ings.   I  respect  tha t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no  i t  i s  f ine .   The one th ing ,  though,  

tha t  I  want  to  ment ion  i s  tha t  you sa id  tha t  Werksmans,  I  

th ink  you sa id ,  has go t  a l l  your  emai ls  inc lud ing  emai ls  tha t  

you wou ld  have exchanged w i th  Mr  Van der  Wal t .  

MR MONTANA :    Indeed,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    And you say some o f  those wou ld  show 

or  suppor t  what  you say about  these proper t ies ,  you r  

dea l ings w i th  h im .  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  my dea l ings w i th  Mr  Van der  Wal t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MR MONTANA :    . . . i s  a  very  open th ing .   The issue  before  

the  Commiss ion  is  a  d i f fe ren t  mat te r,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I s  because I  have never  –  in  my 20 

s ta tement  o f  8  February  2016,  I  was respond ing  to  Mr  Popo  

Mole fe ’s  –  i t  i s  the  second annexure  in  the  document  tha t  

we have dea l t  w i th .   I  dea l t  w i th  tha t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    ja .  

MR MONTANA :    And we spoke  about  the  na ture  o f  the  
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re la t ionsh ip .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    The issue before  th is  Commiss ion  is  the 

fac t  tha t  th is  repor t ,  what  i t  does,  i t  t r ies  to  say –  and tha t  

i s  why I  say  we a re  gu i l t y  by  assoc ia t ion .   Montana  worked  

w i th  Van der  Wa l t  –  w i th  Van der  Wal t .   Van der  Wal t  i s  

pa id  by  S iyangena.   That  i s  the  issue here ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    And I  am say ing  –  and they say,  

there fo re ,  as  a  resu l t  o f  tha t  because Van der  Wal t  has go t  10 

a  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  th is .   He has pa id  fo r  Montana ’s  

p roper t ies .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  why I  then read ing  my s ta tement  

ear l y  the  –  to  say  no ,  no ,  no .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  have a  re la t i onsh ip  w i th  th is  man.   I  

have so ld  proper t ies ,   I  am in  par tnersh ip  w i th  h im,  and le t  

us  look a t  a l l  o f  them.   So one o f  the  f i rs t  t ransact ions we  

d id  was when he bought  the  proper ty  f rom me.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    But  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no  le t  tha t  i s  f ine  because you have  

made your  po in t .  

MR MONTANA :    Okay.   Thank you ,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  tha t ,  Mr  Son i ,  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  

Mr  Montana is  say ing  there  are  emai ls  a t  Werksmans or  

there  shou ld  be  emai ls  a t  Werksmans tha t  w i l l  show tha t  

h is  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Mr  Van der  Wal t  was an open one.   I  

th ink ,  one way or  anothe r,  i t  wou ld  be  good i f  those  can be  

obta ined.   Now. . .   So I  th ink  maybe you can app ly  your  

m ind to  tha t  because I  do  th ink  tha t  one o f  the  issues tha t  

a r ises  i s  whethe r  i t  was known a t  PRASA.   That  k ind  o f  

th ing .   What  a re  your  thoughts  on  tha t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Cha i rpe rson,  we can ask .   I  –  10 

perhaps I  shou ld  c lea r  someth ing  up  w i th  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Mr  Montana,  can I  ask  you?  When 

your  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Mr  Van de r  Wal t  s ta r t?  

MR MONTANA :    Shu,  Cha i r.   I  suspect  i t  was in  2012 and 

i f  I  remember  we l l ,  i t  was a t  the  –  I  was i n . . .   I t  was a  b ig  

event .   I  th ink  i t  was a t  the  Por tuguese C lub in  Pre tor ia .   

That  I  th ink  shou ld  have been 2012 ,  Cha i r.   Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Mr  Montana,  i t  has  been ra ised and I  

now need to  ra ise  i t  w i th  you d i rec t l y.   I  sa id  to  you among 20 

the  documents  tha t  we re l ied  on  were  documents  f i led  in  

the  S iyangena app l i ca t ion .   Now in  the  – in  S iyangena ’s 

answer ing  a f f idav i t  to  the  mat te rs  ra ised by  m is ter  –  by  

PRASA.  

MR MONTANA :    PRASA.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC :    One o f  the  issues they ra ised was  

your  p roper ty  –  your  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Mr  Van der  Wal t .   I s  

tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Now in  response to  tha t ,  the  person 

who f i led  the  a f f idav i t  fo r  S iyangena is  the i r  CFO,  

Mr  Dubek.   Do you know h im? 

MR MONTANA :    The CFO of  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    O f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Ja ,  Thomas Dubek,  ja .    10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  ja .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Now he f i led  an  a f f idav i t  and I  jus t  

want  to  read someth ing  to  you and te l l  me whe ther  you 

agree w i th  i t  o r  no t  because i t  may  jus t  c lea r  every th ing  up  

on th is  i ssue and I  am not  dea l ing  w i th  the  o the r  i ssues.  

MR MONTANA :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    He says a t  paragraph 176 o f  the 

answer ing  a f f idav i t :  

“Dur ing  S iyangena ’s  invo l vement  w i th  the 20 

ISAMS Phase 1 ,  Montana and Fer re i ra . . .  [ I t  i s  

obv ious ly  Mar io  Fer re i ra ]  . . .had a  d iscuss ion  in  

regard  to  Fer re i ra ’s  o the r  bus iness in te res t  

wh ich  in te r  a l ia  re la ted  to  i nvestments  in  

immovab le  proper ty  and const ruc t i on .  
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In  response,  Montana noted s im i la r ly  tha t  he  

was a lso  invo lved  in  such indust r ies .  

Montana enqu i red  as  to  whom Fer re i ra  used to 

ass is t  h im in  th i s  regard  as  he  was a lways on 

the  look ou t  to  improve h is  t eam and in  

par t i cu la r  was look ing  fo r  a  good lawyer.  

Fer re i ra  then re fer red  Montana to  Van der  

Wal t ,  who was a t  the  t ime the  a t to rney tha t  

a t tended to  t ransfers  o f  the  immovab le  

proper ty  and possess ions w i th in  Fer re i ra ’s  10 

o ther  in te res t  and who,  f rom t ime to  t ime,  

recommended and was a  par tner  in  some 

ventures  wh ich  came across h is  tab le  on  h is  

day to  day ac t iv i t ies . . . ”  

 A t  parag raph 178 ,  Mr  Dubek says:  

“Ne i ther  Fer re i ra ,  S iyangena o r  any o ther  

en t i t y  assoc ia ted  w i th  e i ther  o f  them had 

knowledge o f  subsequent  dea l ings be tween 

Mr  Montana and  Mr  Van der  Wal t  un t i l  

November  2015,  when du r ing  a  conversa t ion  20 

w i th  Van de r  Wa l t ,  Fer re i ra  became aware  o f  

these dea l ings.  

Fer re i ra ’s  request  to  Van der  Wal t  was to  

ensure  tha t  any and a l l  dea l ings w i th  Montana 

by  Van der  Wal t  were  comple te ly  above board  
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and comple te l y  t ransparent .  

Mr  Van de r  Wal t  heed ing  Fer re i ra ’s  request  

and a f te r  request ing  Montana  on var ious  

occas ions to  depos i t  money in to  h is  t rus t  

account  to  cont inue w i th  the i r  p roposed jo in t  

venture ,  dec ided not  to  inc lude Montana in  the  

dea l ings and p roceeded w i th  the  t ransfer  o f  

the  sub jec t  p roper t ies  on  h is  own accord  

w i thout  Montana. . . ”  

 Now is  tha t  co r rec t?  10 

MR MONTANA :    Wel l ,  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  know the  d i scuss ion  

be tween the  o ther  peop le .   So I  cannot  conf i rm or  re jec t  

bu t  I  am say ing  tha t  the  re la t ionsh ip  I  had between myse l f  

and R iaan was our  re la t ionsh ip .   I  th ink  he  is  cor rec t  

inso fa r  he  is  say ing  they do  not  know about  the  

re la t ionsh ip .   And we w i l l  see  in  the  many emai l s  tha t  I  am 

ta lk ing  about  tha t  there  was a  re la t ionsh ip ,  we are  wr i t ing  

–  and I  am was wr i t ing  on  my sys tem as the  PRASA CEO.  

They are  pub l i c l y  ava i lab le  Cha i r,  and I  th ink  i t  shou ld  be  

drawn to  conf i rm  tha t .   So the  o ther  conversa t ion  I  do  no t  20 

know.   I  do  no t  know what  was d iscussed  between Van der  

Wal t  and the  CFO and mis te r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Fe r re i ra .  

MR MONTANA :    . . .Fer re i ra  bu t  what  I  know i s  tha t  Cha i r  I  

have ente red  in to  a  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  R iaan van der  Wal t .   
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He had h is  own proper t ies .   I  had  my own p roper t i es .   We 

wanted to  go  in to  jo in t  ventures  on  th ings.   And where  he  

was not  invo lved  l i ke  LLM(?) ,  he  was not  invo lved  but  we  

asked h im to  be  –  what  i s  ca l led  the  conveyance s ide ,  tha t  

h is  law fa rm becomes the  conveyancers  in  l ine  w i th  the  

a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  André  Wagner.   So I  th ink  Cha i r,  I  know 

Riaan.   I  am say ing  i t  i s  common cause here .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  know h im,  I  have worked w i th  h im,  I  

t rus t  h im,  he  t rus ted  h im,  we were  do ing  proper t y  dea ls  10 

together.   That  we must  accept  Cha i r  and tha t  I  am 

conf i rm ing to  th is  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   And you th ink  tha t  s ta r ted  in  2012> 

MR MONTANA :    I  th ink  i t  d id  s ta r t  in  2012,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Bu t  i s  i t  a lso  cor rec t  –  so r ry,  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I s  i t  a lso  cor rec t  tha t  i t  was  

Mr  Fer re i ra  who  in t roduced you  to  Mr  Van der  Wal t?   20 

Because tha t  i s  the  a l legat ion  tha t  i s  made by  Mr  Dubek.  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  do  no t  th ink  so .   I  th ink  tha t  i t  i s  

poss ib le  bu t  I  th ink  what  –  I  remember  when I  met  –  a t  the  

–  th is  b ig  c lub .   A t  the  c lub  they had a  b ig  event ,  Cha i r,  

and I  th ink  tha t  a  lo t  o f  peop le  inc lud ing  f rom PRASA were  
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inv i ted  the re .   So I  th ink  tha t  –  I  cannot  reca l l  spec i f i ca l l y  

who i t  was but  I  met  h im a t  tha t  event ,  i f  I  remember  we l l ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    I t  was on a  Saturday a f te rnoon.   I t  was a  

b ig  event ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    And I  was in t roduced to  h im and then  

thereaf te r,  me and h im h i t  i t  o ff  and we went  to  work  on  

proper t ies .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.   I  wanted to  jus t  round  o f f  tha t  

i ssue about  emai l s  a t  Werksmans.   I f  the  Commiss ion  were  

to  ob ta in  them and there  are  too  many,  you w i l l  be  f ine  w i th  

hav ing  access to  them and look ing  fo r  those emai ls  tha t  

m ight  suppor t  what  you a re  say ing? 

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  th ink  the  Commiss ion  shou ld  have 

every th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    The po in t  I  am making  is  tha t  those 

commiss ions are  ava i lab le  –  these emai ls  a re  ava i lab le .   20 

They were  used in  spec i f i c  ins tances.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  I  know tha t  they have downloaded a l l  

those emai ls .   So  used o thers  and kept  o thers .   But  I  th ink  

in  the  in te res t  o f  what  th is  Commiss ion  i s  a l l  about ,  i t s  
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Terms o f  Reference,  I  th ink  tha t  Werksmans and  PRASA 

shou ld  f ind  i t  w i th in  the i r  good hear ts  to  hand them to  the  

Commiss ion .   And I  th ink  you w i l l  ana lyse  them,  Cha i r,  and 

say these are  the  in fe rences we are  drawing f rom there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    And I  th ink  they  w i l l  te l l  a  d i f fe ren t  s to ry  

to  the  no ise  tha t  we have been hear ing  in  the  med ia ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja-no,  what  I  am th ink ing .   I  mean,  I  do  

no t  know how many there  are  bu t  you know one cou ld  f ind  

a  mounta in  o f  emai ls .   I  am th ink ing  tha t  w i th  the  t ime  10 

const ra in t  tha t  the  Commiss ion  has,  you might  say :   Look,  I  

am qu i te  –  I  w i l l  ident i f y  them eas i l y.   There fore ,  I  am qu i te  

ava i lab le .   I f  the  Commiss ion  makes them ava i lab le  to  me,  

I  can look a t  them . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    No,  I  w i l l  ass i s t  the  Commiss ion  in  i t s  

work ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  my s tar t ing  po in t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA :    [ laughs]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    A l r igh t .   Mr  Son i ,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Mr  Montana,  i f  I  cou ld  now roundup  

tha t  i ssue.   You f i led  an  a f f idav i t  in  the  S iyangena  mat te r  

wh ich  was not  used by  the  cour t .   We have been th rough  

tha t .   I  see  you shake your  head.   That  means yes.  
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MR MONTANA :    Oh,  no  I . . .   Thank you,  Cha i r.   Sor ry,  

Cha i r.   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Now in  tha t  a f f idav i t ,  do  you dea l  

w i th  a l l  these mat te rs ,  your  dea l ing  w i th  Mr  Van de r  Wal t ,  

how you came to  know Mr  Van de r  Wal t ,  your  

communica t ions w i th  h im,  and a l l  your  dea l ings w i th  h im 

inc lud ing  any wr i t ten  agreements  you had w i th  h im? 

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  every th ing  is  there .   And I  th ink  

las t  week,  Cha i r,  you requested tha t  I  submi t  a  fu l l  

a f f idav i t .   I t  i s  par t  o f  the  annexures tha t  I  have p repared  10 

fo r  the  Commiss ion .   I  do ,  yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    A l r igh t .   So can I  make the  

suggest ion  then,  and I  make i t  th rough you Cha i r  th is .   I s  

to  say,  le t  us  look a t  tha t  a f f idav i t .   That  w i l l  te l l  us  the  

ambi t  o f  the  fu r ther  invest iga t ion  we need to . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .   No,  tha t  i s  t rue  because i t  w i l l  

te l l . . .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  a l l  p robab i l i t y  what  he  wou ld  be  

say ing  here  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . i s  what  he  -  has a l ready been  sa id  in  

the  a f f idav i t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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MR MONTANA :    Wel l ,  Cha i r,  I  am happy tha t  the  

Commiss ion  w i l l  do  i t s  own invest i ga t ion  and ta lk  to  me so  

tha t  I  do  no t  come here  and be conf ron ted w i th  repor ts  tha t  

were  wr i t ten  tha t  a re  fac tua l l y  incor rec t  l i ke  I  have been  

do ing  w i th  the  Oe l le rmann ’s  repor t .   So I  wou ld  be  more  

than happy Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  tha t  a ff idav i t ,  as  you speak,  you 

have a  copy in  your  car  o r  here?  10 

MR MONTANA :    Yes,  Cha i r.   Ac tua l l y,  I  p repared th ree  

f i les .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    They are  ava i lab le ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    We can. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    A f te r  the  break,  I  can br ing  them here ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

MR MONTANA :    And we can dea l  w i th  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Le t  us  do  tha t ,  Cha i rperson,  so  tha t  

a t  leas t  we know . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . .we have got  the  annexures re la t ing  

to  the  proper t ies  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . . tha t  Mr  Montana has re fer red  to .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And we have got  tha t  a f f idav i t  and 

then we know tha t  a lmost  every th ing  in  re la t ion  to  

proper t ies  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . . f rom Mr  Montana ’s  s ide  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . . i s  in  our  possess ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And whether  i t  i s  par t  o f  the  overa l l  

a f f idav i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . . i t  i s  i r re levant .   We jus t  look  a t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    That  par t i cu la r  one,  ja .  20 

MR MONTANA :    No,  tha t  I  pu t  separa te  w i th  the  

annexures.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    I  th ink  i t  w i l l  be  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay no,  tha t  i s  f ine .  
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MR MONTANA :    . . . to  p resent  w i t h  them dur ing  the  break,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  f ine .   We are  a t  quar te r  past  

th ree .   There  is  the  quest ion  o f  ob ta in ing  them.   There  is  

the  quest ion  o f  read ing  them.   What  i s  you r  suggest ion ,  

Mr  Son i?   We . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Cha i rperson,  can I  make the  

suggest ion?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    We are  par t l y  f in ished w i th  the  –  w i th  10 

Parkwood.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And can we make a  dec i s ion  a f te r  

tha t  as  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . .when we  shou ld ,  un less  you want  

to  dec ide  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  no .   Do you suggest  we have the  

break now . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    As  i t  p lease . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . to  ob ta in  tha t  and then  we w i l l  

resume?  How much b reak are  we ta lk ing  about?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Wel l ,  how long w i l l  i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe 20-minutes ,  15-minutes?  

MR MONTANA :    No,  Cha i r,  my car  i s  parked outs ide .    
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  can  get  i t  qu ick l y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay we w i l l  ad jou rn  and le t  us  say 15-

minutes  fo r  now.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    As  you p lease.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And i f  we –  i f  tha t  i s  no t  enough,  we w i l l  

take  i t  f rom there .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay we ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 10 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease,  Cha i rperson.   

Cha i rperson,  in  l igh t  o f  your  suggest ion ,  Mr  Montana has  

now brought  the  annexures to  the  document  tha t  we dea l t  

w i th  th is  morn ing ,  tha t  SS18B.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    There  are  about  15  or  20  o f  them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t  in  the  document  a re  there  

re ferences to  so  many?  I  thought  i t  was a  few in  the 20 

document .   In  the  document  i t se l f ,  the  re ferences to  

annexures.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  they a re  a l l  –  bu t ,  fo r  example ,  

what  we w i l l  f i rs t  do  is  one appear ing  165,  i t  i s  a ,  b ,  c ,  d ,  

e ,  f ,  g .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Or  maybe le t  me ask h im.   Mr  Montana,  I  

thought  i t  was on ly  a  few tha t  we re fer red  to  in  th is  

document .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  Cha i r,  indeed,  ja ,  tha t  i s  why i t  i s  

a  smal l  th ing  bu t  there  o thers  where  you may f ind  tha t  in  

one sub jec t  there  are  th ree  le t te rs .   Fo r  example ,  le t te rs  

f rom Ms Ursu la  Wi l l i s  f rom ABSA.   So those wou ld  be  put  

le t  us  say under  162,  bu t  you w i l l  see  tha t  –  I  w i l l  ind ica te  

tha t  there  are  about  th ree  documents  there .   But  these are  

mere ly  le t te rs  o r  documents  conf i rm ing –  showing a  bond.   10 

So i t  i s  no t  –  i t  i s  a  smal l  purchase,  i t  cor re la tes  exact ly  

w i th  the  annexures in  the  document  we admi t ted ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    As  long as  when one reads th is  and  

wants  to  f ind  the  annexure  tha t  we hear  one wou ld  f ind  

there .   That  i s  the  impor tan t  th ing .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    They are  marked.  

CHAIRPERSON :    They a re  marked .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  tha t  d i f f i cu l t y  i s  ou t  now.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  

MR MONTANA:    They a l l  cor re la te ,  Cha i r,  and I  th ink  th is  20 

is  based on the  gu idance f rom the  team.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    I  met  w i th  them,  we d id  them in  tha t  way.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

MR MONTANA:     So  each number  in  tha t  a re  a  copy o f  
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tha t  a f f idav i t ,  cor re la tes  to  the  annexure .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Cor responds w i th  tha t ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Cor responds,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  then maybe 

we shou ld  dea l  w i th  tha t  fo rmal i t y  and get  i t  ou t  o f  the  way.  

MR MONTANA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    O f  hav ing  them admi t ted .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  f ine ,  Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease,  Cha i rperson.   We wi l l  10 

hand th is  to  you and then we w i l l  make cop ies .   We do not  

have cop ies  obv ious ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   Wel l ,  I  am not  do ing  –  you do 

not  have cop ies  a t  the  moment  yourse l ves.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   But  you wou ld  need to  –  you may  

need to  ask  h im quest ions about  the  annexures,  i s  i t  no t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  you wou ld  on ly  know tha t  once you 

have …[ in te rvenes]  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Once we have looked a t  them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Then maybe there  is  no  –  we can  

have them handed up and then you can make cop ies  in  due 

course .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    In  due course ,  yes .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Le t  me say in  our  par t  o f  the  record .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  le t  us  ge t  the  fo rmal i t ies  ou t  o f  the 

way.   I  am th ink ing  tha t  the  proper  way to  do  i t  because 

th is  i s  no t  an  a f f idav i t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  to  admi t  them one by  one.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease to ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  to  say  re ference i s  made in  

parag raph so  and  so  to  annexure  whatever.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then le t  h im conf i rm tha t  tha t  i s  the  

annexure  tha t  i s  re fe r red  to  and we admi t  them one  by  one  

l i ke  tha t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Because the  o ther  i ssue,  and  we w i l l  

do  tha t  in  a  moment  bu t  I  jus t  wanted to  ge t  th rough the  

fo rmal i t ies .   The  o ther  i ssue you w i l l  remember  i s  the  

S iyangena,  Mr  Montana ’s  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    A f f idav i t ,  yes ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  i s  a  b ig  document  w i th  many 20 

annexures,  so  i t  is  th is  f i l e .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .   That  wou ld  need – ja ,  i t  wou ld  

need some read ing .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  we l l  why do we not  ge t  th is  
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ou t  o f  the  way and then ta lk  about  what  shou ld  happen w i th  

tha t ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Abso lu te ly,  yes .   Cha i rperson,  you 

w i l l  see  in  SS18B tha t  parag raph  1470 on page 312 a t  the  

bo t tom there  is  a  re ference to  annexure  TLM160.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  can see tha t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Pe rhaps I  shou ld  g ive  th is  p i le  to  Mr  

Montana.  

CHAIRPERSON :    To  Mr  Montana,  yes ,  yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And we can hand them up  one by  10 

one,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja ,  ja .   Oh,  because there  are  no 

cop ies .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Montana,  the  second page o f  your  

document ,  pa rag raph 1470,  TLM160 is  supposed to  be  a  

copy o f  an  emai l  f rom Mr  R iaan van der  Wal t  in t imat ing  the 

re la t ionsh ip  be tween the  two o f  you.   Have you got  tha t  

emai l?   Okay,  i s  i t  marked TLM160? 

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  I  th ink  tha t  we may have 

to  admi t  them,  Mr  Son i ,  as  EXHIBIT SS18B1,  B2,  B3 3 .so  i t  

i s  go ing  to  be  eas ier  tha t  way.   Th is  emai l  f rom Mr  R iaan 

van der  Wal t  to  Mr  Lucky Montana,  da ted  29 October  2015  

w i l l  be  admi t ted  and marked as  EXHIBIT SS18B1.   



10 MAY 2021 – DAY 391 
 

Page 130 of 179 
 

EMAIL FROM RIAAN VAN DER WALT TO LUCKY 

MONTANA DATED 29 OCTOBER 2015 HANDED IN AS 

EXHIBIT  SS18B1.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  a  document  tha t  has go t  two  pages.   

Okay and then?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then,  Cha i rpe rson,  a t  the  bo t tom o f  

page 314 and paragraph  1480 there  is  a  re ference to  

TLM161.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Have you got  tha t ,  Mr  Montana?  10 

MR MONTANA:    I  have got  tha t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  thank you.   Reg is t ra r,  you might  

have to  wa i t  here  and no go to  your  seat  un t i l  we a re  done 

w i th  th is  p rocess.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And tha t  w i l l  be  18B2.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   The s ta tement  by  Mr  Montana 

dated 8  February  2016,  wh ich  is  marked TLM – oh  you see  

there  is  TLM14 and TLM16 or  161,  tha t  w i l l  cause some 

confus ion .   Maybe I  th ink  I  shou ld  c ross  ou t  the  TLM14 fo r  

purposes o f  th is  one so  tha t  we use TLM161.   Mr  Montana? 20 

MR MONTANA:    I  can  hear  you,  I  am look ing  a t  1480.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  1480 says TLM161.  

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  have got  in  th is  document  tha t  I  have 

been g ive ,  I  have  got  TLM161,  tha t  i s  wr i t ten  in  the  m idd le  



10 MAY 2021 – DAY 391 
 

Page 131 of 179 
 

o f  the  page,  f i rs t  page.  

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  a t  the  corner  o f  the  same page,  top  

corne r,  i t  i s  wr i t ten  w i th  a  marker  TLM14 and S16 .   I  am 

say ing  the  two may cause confus ion  so  I  p ropose to  c ross  

ou t  the  one in  the  corne r.  

MR MONTANA:    Ja ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  so  tha t  there  i s  no  confus ion  bu t  

o therw ise ,  there fore ,  th is  s ta tement  o f  8  February  2016 by  

Mr  Montana on a l legat ions o f  co r rup t ion  leve l led  aga ins t  10 

h im by PRASA Mr  Popo Mole fe  w i l l  be  admi t ted  and marked  

as  EXHIBIT SS18B2.   Th is  s ta tement  has go t  –  I  t h ink  t he  

pages are  no t  pag ina ted but  I  th ink  I  w i l l  c ross  our  these  

numbers  wr i t ten  w i th  a  marker  so  tha t  they do  not  cause 

confus ion  on  a l l  the  pages,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    I  pu l led  them f rom another  a f f idav i t ,  

Cha i r ,  tha t  i s  why  I  have tha t  p rob lem.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  no ,  I  unders tand,  I  unders tand.   I  

jus t  want  to  make sure .   Okay,  tha t  i s  the  second 

document .  20 

STATEMENT BY LUCKY MONTANA DATED 8  FEBRUARY 

ON ALLEGATIONS OF CORRUPTION BY MR POPO 

MOLEFE HANDED IN AS EXHIBIT  SS18B2 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    There  is  a  re ference TLM162.   Mr  

Montana,  you are  hand ing  tha t  up  now,  162.  
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MR MONTANA:    162.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  tha t  i t  w i l l  be  necessary  jus t  to  say  

tha t  so  tha t  i t  goes in to  the  t ranscr ip t .   Mr  Montana,  so  tha t  

i t  goes in to  the  t ranscr ip t  tha t  you are  now hand ing  i t  up ,  

so  I  am say ing  tha t  w i l l  be  impor tan t .  

MR MONTANA:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay now? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    That  w i l l  be  SS18B3,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The le t te r  da ted  31 August  2009  

addressed to  Mr  T L Montana.   I  am look ing  fo r  the  end o f  10 

the  le t te r,  Mr  Montana.   The las t  page here  cannot  be  the  

las t  page because i t  ends “and” .  

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  162,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  TLM162,  i s  tha t  how i t  i s  

supposed to  be?  

MR MONTANA:    I t  shou ld  be ,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  the  b ig  i ssue 

there  i s  the  –  tha t  i s  the  ABSA Pr iva te  one,  Cha i r,  162,  i s  i t  

no t?    

CHAIRPERSON :    162.  

MR MONTANA:    Ja ,  i t  shou ld  be  a  fu l l  document ,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    You see,  a t  the  beg inn ing  i t  i s  l i ke  a  

le t te r,  i t  i s  addressed to  you and i t  says  “Dear  Mr  Montana” 

bu t  i t  looks  l i ke  qu i te  a  long le t te r  bu t  i t  i s  jus t  tha t  the  

pages are  no t  numbered a t  the  bo t tom but  i t  i s  no t  

comple ted ,  ends  w i th  12 .2 .3  a t  the  bo t tom,  tha t  i s  a  
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parag raph and w i th  the  number  tha t  appears  a t  the  top  

corne r  i s  509 but  I  do  no t  know where  i t  comes f rom,  who 

is  the  au thor.  

MR MONTANA:    No,  th is  comes f rom the  bank,  Cha i r,  tha t  

i s  a  le t te r  summar is ing  the  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    The te rms.  

MR MONTANA:    I f  you  look in  the  pa ragraph,  ja ,  tha t  i s  a  

le t te r  f rom the  bank.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    And tha t  i s  wha t  I  have,  Cha i r,  so  I  am 10 

not  su re  i f… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Wel l ,  I  do  no t  know i t  may be tha t  

whatever  we do not  have is  no t  mater ia l ,  we do not  know.   

But  I  wanted to  make su re  tha t… 

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  tha t  you unders tand tha t  the  pages… 

MR MONTANA:    The f i rs t  four,  f ive  pages summar ises the  

fac i l i t y  f rom the  bank,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    And I  th ink  tha t  is  what  i s  mater ia l  fo r  the 20 

Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   So tha t  le t te r  w i l l  be  

admi t ted  as  EXHIBIT SS18B3.   Ja ,  I  have got  tha t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And fo r  the  record ,  Mr  Montana,  you 

conf i rm tha t  the  le t te r  on  the  record  is  incomple te ,  i t  i s  jus t  
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fo r  …[ in te rvenes]  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  I  conf i rm tha t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja ,  okay.   Maybe I  can j us t  ment ion  

tha t  i t  i s  how many pages –  i t  is  7  pages.   Okay,  le t  us  

cont inue.  

LETTER FROM ABSA PRIVATE BANK DATED 31 AUGUST 

2009 (7  PAGES)  ADDRESSED TO MR.  T  L MONTANA 

HANDED IN AS EXHIBIT  SS18B3 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then on the  very  next  paragraph  

on the  same page,  paragraph 1483,  there  is  a  re fe rence to  10 

TLM163.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Th is  i s  an  emai l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Wi l l  you  hand tha t  in?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Have you got  tha t ,  Mr  Montana?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    That  i s  an  emai l  ca lcu la t ing  the  

payments  to  the  bank,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Th is  i s  emai l  f rom… 

MR MONTANA:    Ursu la  Wi l l i s .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ursu la  Wi l l i s  addressed to  Mr  Montana  

dated 13 August  2009 a t  4 .55  p .m .  and i t  w i l l  be  admi t ted  

as  EXHIBIT….  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    SS18B4,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    SS184B.  
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EMAIL FROM URSULA WILLIS TO MR.  MONTANA 

CALCULATING THE PAYMENTS TO THE BANK HANDED 

IN AS EXHIBIT  SS18B4 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   The next?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    The next  one,  Cha i rperson ,  on  the  

next  page a t  paragraph 1486 and tha t  i s  annexure  TLM4,  i s  

a  le t te r  f rom ABSA and you are  hand ing  tha t  up  as  TLM164,  

Mr  Montana and  Cha i rperson tha t  shou ld  be  adm i t ted  as 

SS18B5.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Th i s  i s  a  le t te r  f rom ABSA addressed to  

Mr  Montana and  is  da ted  19 December 2013,  i t  w i l l  be  

admi t ted  as  EXHIBIT SS18B5.  

LETTER FROM ABSA BANK DATED 19 DECEMBER 

ADDRESSED TO MR.  MONTANA HANDED IN AS EXHIBIT  

SS18B5 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A re  those  the  –  a l l  the  annexures 

now? 

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  Cha i r ,  I  th ink  we are  cont inu ing ,  20 

page –  to  cont inue the  proper  page,  we are  go ing  to  page  

321 o f  the  a f f idav i t  in  tha t  document ,  Cha i r ,  I  th ink  we a re  

ac tua l l y  the  next  page.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Oh,  sor ry ,  so r ry ,  sor ry .  

MR MONTANA:    Ja ,  page 322,  Cha i r .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    Paragraph 1518.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  so r ry .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    There ,  Mr  Montana,  you are  hand ing  

up a  jo in t  venture  agreement  be tween Mid townbrace and I  

take  i t  to  yourse l f  as  TLM165 (a)  to  (h )  

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r .  I  am jus t  remov ing  

the  d iv ider ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  10 

MR MONTANA:    I  am jus t  remov ing  the  d iv iders  qu i ck l y .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  you  are  hand ing  tha t  up  as  

TLM165 (a)  to  (h ) ,  Mr  Montana?  That  i s  co r rec t ,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  yes .   Sor ry ,  Mr  Son i ,  tha t  

i s  cor rec t .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rperson,  i f  th is  page  can be 

admi t ted  as  SS18B6.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  i t  i s  an  agreement  and I  see there  

are  le t te rs  bu t  they are  a l l  –  i t  i s  (a )  to  (h )  i n  te rms o f  20 

…[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    (a )  to  (h ) ,  Cha i r ,  they  are  a l l  under  tha t  

agreement  w i th  Mid townbrace fo r  the  Hur l ingham proper ty ,  

Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   So EXHIBIT SS18B6 wi l l  be  
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the  agreement  together  w i th  the  documents  a t tached to  i t ,  

i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   The memorandum of  agreement  

be tween Mid townbrace (P ty)  L td  and Tshepo  Lucky 

Montana w i l l  toge ther  w i th  the  documents  a t tached to  i t  be  

admi t ted  as  EXHIBIT SS18B6.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  does tha t  conc lude th is  par t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    That  conc ludes the  …[ in te rvenes]  

MR MONTANA:    On the  proper t ies ,  yes .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  on  the  p roper t ies .   Ja ,  okay.   No,  

tha t  i s  f ine .   I  wonder ,  Mr  Son i ,  whethe r  in  te rms  o f  the 

agreement ,  I  see  tha t  in  the  document  he  has go t  (a )  to  

(h ) ,  I  wonder  whether  we shou ld  say 6 .1 ,  6 .2  fo r  each 

document  so  tha t  –  so  the  memorandum of  agreement ,  I  am 

rev i s ing  what  I  sa id  ear l ie r  on  w i l l  be  EXHIBIT SS18B6.1 .  

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

MIDTOWNBRACE (PTY)  LTD AND TSHEPO LUCKY 

MONTANA TOGETHER WITH ATTACHED DOCUMENTS 

HANDED IN AS EXHIBIT  SS18B6.1  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then the  l e t te r  and annexures tha t  

come a f te r  the  ag reement  w i l l  be  EXHIBIT SS18B6.2 .  

LETTER AND ANNEXURES FOLLOWING THE 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT HANDED IN AS EXHIBIT  
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SS18.B6.2 .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja  and then the  document  tha t  comes  

a f te r  tha t  w i l l  be  EXHIBIT SS18B6.3 .    

DOCUMENT WHICH FOLLOWS HANDED IN  AS EXHIBIT  

SS18B6.3  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then the  le t te r  addressed to  Sa in t  

A t to rneys by  Loubser  Van der  Wa l t  Incorpora ted  w i l l  be  – 

wh ich  is  da ted  20 (?)  Apr i l  2018 w i l l  be  marked as  EXHIBIT  

SS18B6.4 ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?    10 

LETTER ADDRESSED TO SAINT ATTORNEYS BY 

LOUBSER VAN DER WALT INCORPORATED DATED 

APRIL 2018 HANDED IN AS EXHIBIT  SS18B6.4  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then the  memorandum of  

agreement ,  the  jo in t  venture  Er f  70  Hur l ingham Townsh ip ,  

Johannesburg ,  w i l l  be  marked as  EXHIBIT SS18.B6.5 .    

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT OF THE JOINT  

VENTURE FOR ERF 70 HURLINGHAM TOWNSHIP,  

JOHANNESBURG HANDED IN AS EXHIBIT  SS18B6.5  

CHAIRPERSON :     And then the  le t te r  f rom Sa in t  A t to rneys 20 

dated 9  March 2018 addressed to  Loubser  Van de Wal t  Inc  

w i l l  be  marked as  EXHIBIT SS18B6.6 .  

LETTER FROM SAINT ATTORNEYS DATED 9  MARCH 

2018 ADDRESSED TO LOUBSER VAN DER WALT INC 

HANDED IN AS EXHIBIT  SS18B6.6  
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CHAIRPERSON :    And then the  combined summons in  the 

case between Mid townbrace (P ty )  L td  v  Tshepo  Lucky 

Montana case 34349/19 w i l l  be  marked as  EXHIBIT 

SS18B6.7 .    

COMBINED SUMMONS IN  CASE 34349/2019  

MIDTOWNBRACE (PTY)  LTD V LUCKY MONTANA 

HANDED IN AS EXHIBIT  SS18B6.7  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  tha t  i s  done.   As  we l l  as  the  

proper t ies ,  we have got  a l l  o f  tha t ,  so  you w i l l  make  cop ies  

fo r  yourse lves and so  on .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  now we  need to  ta lk  about  the 

a f f idav i t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   D id  you reca l l  how long the  

a f f idav i t  on  i t s  on  is ,  Mr  Montana,  more  or  less?  

MR MONTANA:    I  w i l l  check i t  now,  Cha i r.   Sor ry,  Cha i r,  I  

cannot  reca l l ,  i t  was a  long a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    The a f f idav i t  i s  a round 49 pages.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Does tha t  sound r igh t  more  or  less ,  Mr  

Montana?  You cannot  remember?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  –  I  thought  tha t  the  

en t i re  f i le  was the  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Exc lud ing  annexures fo r  now.  
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MR MONTANA:    Annexures,  okay.   That  shou ld  be  cor rec t ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  shou ld  be  cor rec t ,  ja .   Okay,  I  

guess you cannot  dea l  w i th  tha t  w i thout  hav ing  read  i t  f i rs t .   

Ja .   So shou ld  we not  do  th is ,  tha t  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  there  

may be –  I  know tha t  p roper t ies  was your  las t  top ic ,  i s  tha t  

r igh t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   I t  seems to  me tha t  on  proper t ies  

you may have to  read tha t  f i rs t  be fore  you can p roceed in  10 

any e f fec t i ve  way.   I f  tha t  i s  cor rec t  i t  may be tha t  one,  you 

cannot  dea l  w i th  tha t  today.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   But ,  two,  i t  may be tha t  we  can do  

one o f  two th ings.   Mr  Montana,  dur ing  the  days tha t  you 

have been quest ioned,  I  go t  the  impress ion  somet imes tha t  

some o f  your  answers  m ight  no t  have been fu l l  because  

you in tended to  –  or  you were  hop ing  to  re fer  to  your  

a f f idav i t ,  I  am no t  sure .   What  I  am look ing  a t  i s ,  we a re  

t igh t  fo r  t ime in  te rms o f  f in ish ing  and I  was th ink ing  tha t  to  20 

the  ex ten t  tha t  there  may be some issues tha t  you have 

been asked abou t  where  you fe l t  your  answers  m ight  no t  

have been fu l l  you  wanted to  do  tha t ,  maybe we cou ld  use  

th is  oppor tun i ty  fo r  you to  do  tha t  because –  so  tha t  what  

wou ld  remain  i s  s imp ly  the  issue o f  p roper t ies .  
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 And on the  i ssue o f  p roper t ies ,  i f  i t  i s  poss ib le  to  be  

ready tomorrow,  we cou ld  proceed tomorrow.   We 

fo r tunate l y  can have t ime tomorrow.   In  my schedu le  o f  the  

hear ings I  remember  there  was  an issue o f  Ms Ngoye 

coming back and maybe Mr  Ho le le .   So the  idea was  tha t  i f  

you  were  to  f in ish  your  ev idence today,  depend ing  what  

t ime you f in ished ,  then Ms Ngoye and  Mr  Ho le le  cou ld  take  

the  w i tness s tand and dea l  w i th  some o f  the  issues you 

have ra ised,  i f  they  d idn ’ t  dea l  w i th  them today they cou ld  

dea l  w i th  them tomorrow,  I  th ink  they are  ava i lab le  f rom 10 

what  I  have been  to ld ,  bu t  so  –  bu t  i f  you  are  ab le  to  dea l  

w i th  whatever  you th ink  you haven ’ t  been heard  fu l l y  

because you –  f o r  whatever  reason,  you cou ld  dea l  w i th  

those and we f in ish  tha t  pa r t .   

 I f  you  cannot  do  tha t  now and  Ms Ngoye or  Mr  

Ho le le  o r  one o f  them is  ava i lab le  we cou ld  s lo t  them in  

th is  a f te rnoon and then tomorrow you cou ld  then dea l  w i th  

whatever  i s  le f t  p lus  the  proper t ies .    

 So I  don ’ t  know f rom your  s ide  Mr  Son i  have you 

got  an  par t i cu la r  p re fe rence?  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rperson as  I  unders tand i t ,  and i t  

may have been a  m isca lcu la t ion  on  our  par t ,  we ind ica ted  

to  Ms Ngoye and  Mr  Ho le le  based  on what  had happened  

jus t  be fore  lunch ,  tha t  we wou ld  be  busy w i th  Mr  Montana 

fo r  the  res t  o f  today and in  a  sense we have re leased them 
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. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  no .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    From the i r  commi tment  today.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay no tha t  i s  f ine ,  we l l  then i f  Mr 

Montana has some issues tha t  he  has been asked about  o r  

s ince  he s ta r ted  appear ing  where  he  wou ld  l i ke  to  

supp lement  h is  answers  he  can do  so ,  we can use th is  t ime 

fo r  h im to  do  so ,  bu t  then tomorrow we cont inue.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Then w i th  the  proper t ies  a f te r  you have  10 

had a  chance to  read and depend ing  what  t ime  we a re  

f in ished then Mr  –  Ms Ngoye and Mr  Ho le le  cou ld  a lso  

come.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Chai rperson may I  ask ,  and I  am 

ask ing  th is  in  -   dur ing  the  par t -hear ing ,  f rom Mr  Montana ’s  

ev idence today what  he  read out  th is  morn ing  i t  does not  

appear  when one  looks a t  the  map  –  the  documents  I  want  

to  show h im,  fo r  example  when one looks a t  the  payments  

tha t  Mr  van de r  Wal t  re fe rs  to ,  there  doesn ’ t  seem to  be  

much d ispute  about  tha t .  20 

 I f  I  cou ld  jus t  –  and I  am say ing  th i s  fo r  Mr  

Montana ’s  benef i t ,  bu t  a lso  fo r  your  gu idance,  and  ask ing  

fo r  you r  gu idance,  i f  Mr  Montana can look a t  the   

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    The Transact ions,  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    The,  the ,  we l l  a l l  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    The ac t ions.  

ADV VAS SONIC SC:    But  a l l  the  annexures  to  Mr  

Oe l le rmann ’s  a f f idav i t ,  he  needn ’ t  –  h is  repor t  needn ’ t  

concern  h imse l f  w i th  the  repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    For  example  i f  I  cou ld  jus t  say  w i th  

regard  to  the  Waterk loo f  Proper ty,  Ms Sa l ly  de  Beer  has an  

a f f idav i t  wh ich  is  annexed,  i f  he  can jus t  te l l  us  wh ich  par t s  

o f  the  a f f idav i t  he  d isagrees w i th ,  so  i t  w i l l  exped i te  the  10 

hear ing  i t se l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  then we can focus on  those  issues 

tha t  a re  i ssues.  

ADV VAS SONI:    So  I  don ’ t  have to  pu t  each  o f  the  

mat te rs  to  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And fo r  example  there  were  an  ex ten t  

in  regard  to  the  Sandhurs t  p roper ty,  there  was an exchange  

o f  emai ls  be tween h im and the  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  wh ich  is  

re fe r red  to ,  and there  are  agreements  in  regard  to  those 20 

proper t ies  wh ich  concerned Mr  Montana or  h is  t rus t  bu t  

wh ich  then fe l l  by  the  ways ide  and were  e f fec t i ve ly  taken  

over  by  Prec ise  Trade.  

 A l l  tha t  we want  f rom Mr  Mon tana is  yes  th is  

happened,  Prec ise  Trade took over  because o f  these  
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reasons,  tha t  i s  i f  he  agrees w i th  what  i s  conta ined in  the  

annexure .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  wou ld  ce r ta in ly  save t ime and we  

can move on.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  so  the re  are  two ways o f  do ing  i t  

Mr  Montana,  the  one tha t  Mr  Son i  i s  p ropos ing  is  tha t  i f  

you  a l ready have had t ime to  app ly  your  m ind to  a l l  o f  

those you might  be  ab le  to  say I  don ’ t  have any issues w i th  

th is  one,  tha t  one  and tha t  one,  th is  i s  where  I  have  issues 10 

on so  then we can focus on  tha t ,  tha t  i s  i f  you  have  not  had  

t ime to  app ly  your  m ind to  them,  the  o ther  –  we cou ld  have 

a  s i tua t ion  where  maybe when you come back tomorrow 

you have app l ied  your  m ind and you are  ab le  to  say these 

are  no t  –  there  a re  no  issues on these ones,  th is  i s  where  

the  issues are ,  as  fa r  as  I  am concerned.  

 What  do  you th ink  o f  tha t?   

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r  I  w i l l  take  the  –  aga in  Cha i r  I  

repeat  I  am here  to  ass i s t  the  Commiss ion  to  ga the r  

in fo rmat ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   And a lso  to  pu t  my vers ion  on  reco rd ,  so  I  

th ink  I  w i l l  be  w i l l i ng  to  take  the  rou te  tha t  Mr  Son i  had  

proposed and comment  on  bo th ,  because I  have looked a t  

them and . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay.  

MR MONTANA:   I  have looked a t  them Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh so  you wou ld  be  ab le  to  comment  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   No,  I  do  . . . [ in te rvenes –  speak ing  over  

one another ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  I  see,  exce l len t ,  exce l len t ,  then in  

tha t  event  we shou ld  a t  leas t  do  tha t  par t .  

MR MONTANA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then what  w i l l  remain  can then be  10 

dea l t  w i th  tomorrow,  bu t  tha t  par t  can be done.  

MR MONTANA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t ’s  do  tha t  then,  tha t ’s  f ine .    Mr  

Montana do you want  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:    Shou ld  I  p roceed Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   

MR MONTANA:    Thank you Cha i r,  the  –  le t  me s tar t  f i rs t  

w i th  how most  o f  these a f f idav i t s  o f  course  have come 

about  and a l l  o f  th is  Cha i r,  you reca l l  tha t  some o f  them 

are  in  a  way f i led  in  the  S iyangena  mat te r.    Le t  me jus t  pu t  20 

on  record  Cha i r  because I  d id  approach some o f  the  peop le  

and asked them on what  bas i s  d id  you f i le  th is  a ff idav i t ,  

wh i le  I  unders tand a t  the  Commiss ion ,  bu t  I  am re fer r ing  

be fore  they reach here  Cha i r ;  peop le  were  to ld  and they  

were  th rea tened Cha i r,  I  asked Mr  Lou is  Green can  you te l l  
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me about  you r  a f f idav i t ,  because I  want  to  take  you to 

Cour t  and he sa id  no  but  you  s igned cop ies  o f  the  

in te rac t ions,  o f  emai ls  tha t  were  there ,  tha t  i s  why I  am 

re fer r i ng  to  them Cha i r,  tha t  they shou ld  a l so  be  here  bu t  

they were  used  there  and peop le  were  to ld  by  Mr  

O ’Su l l i van  a t  tha t  t ime Cha i r  tha t  i t  i s  par t  o f   Hawkes and 

i f  they  do  not  f i l e  these a f f idav i t s  aga ins t  me they  w i l l  be  

ar res ted  Cha i r.  

 And so  peop le  were  th rea tened.    Now,  and tha t  i s  

why Cha i r  I  am emphas iz ing  tha t  the  Commiss ion  can work  10 

on the  bas i s  o f  someth ing  tha t  had been obta ined lega l l y  

bu t  I  am not  a f ra id  to  ge t  in to  the  i ssues Cha i r,  and le t  me 

dea l  w i th  the  th ree  a f f idav i t s ,  because in  essence  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:   . . . in  essence Cha i r  what  I  am say ing  to  

the  Commiss ion  a  b ig  i ssue I  am say ing  tha t  I  conf i rmed 

tha t  I  have had a  re la t ionsh ip  –  I  have had a  re la t ionsh ip  

w i th  Mr  R iaan van de r  Wal t ,  I  th ink  tha t  the  f i rs t  annexure  

tha t  you have taken,  in  fac t  he  ta lks  about  the  par tnersh ip  20 

between myse l f  and R iaan van der  Wal t ,  tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  

i ssue I  am mak ing  there .  

 The second i ssue  Cha i r  tha t  –  so  you can see in  the  

press  s ta tement  tha t  I  made in  2016,  I  made a  press  

s ta tement  to  say no  I  am work ing  w i th  th is  man,  there  is  no  
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i ssue there ,  and I  don ’ t  want  them to  do  tha t .    The second 

issue Cha i r  tha t  I  have a lways sa id ,  I  have a lways re jec ted  

o f  cou rse  the  re la t ionsh ip ,  I  th ink  tha t  they sa id  the re  must  

be  an  in fe rence,  can we d raw a  l ink ,  okay.   I  sa id  there  i s  

no  l ink ,  o the r  peop le  say there  is  a  l ink  and Cha i r  I  have  

seen not  the  Commiss ion  bu t  some o f  the  numbers  were  

sent  to  me a t  the  t ime when Mr  O ’Su l l i van  ra i sed,  pu t  the  –  

or  ra ther  lay  a  compla in t  a t  the  Brook lyn  Po l ice  S ta t ion .  

 Now the  numbers  they dea l  w i th  the  numbers  there ,  

bu t  I  must  check th is  th ing  because i t  doesn ’ t  dea l  w i th  me,  10 

i t  dea ls  w i th  the  re la t ionsh ip  l i ke  Rober t  Neeth l ing  has 

done between the i r  re la t ionsh ip  on  the  d i f fe ren t  p roper t ies ,  

and I  sa id  g i ve  me the  numbers  prec i se  and Lucky Montana  

had a  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Prec ise  Trad ing ,  and th is  

re la t ionsh ip  speaks to  the  deve lopment  o f  p roper t ies ,  i t  

has  go t  no th ing  to  do  w i th  anyth ing .  

 Cha i r  I  don ’ t  wan t  to  take  issues w i th  the  –  w i th  Ms  

de Beer,  bu t  I  th ink  she d idn ’ t  answer  –  she d idn ’ t  answer  

the  Commiss ion  Cha i r.   The reason why we had the  ups 

and downs about  how do you buy the  proper t ies ,  because I  20 

am the  f i rs t  one,  we had agreed a f te r  –  remember  Cha i r  we 

don ’ t  make an o f fe r  fo r  the  proper ty.   We rea l i se  tha t  the  

proper ty  has go t  bus iness r igh ts ,  in  fac t  I  th ink  tha t  the  

agent  who spoke  to  me,  to ld  me a t  length  about  some o f  

the  book ings fo r  example ,  I  th ink  he  ment ioned one  o f  them 
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bu t  somet imes we w i l l  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  th is ,  because  Ms de  

Beer  was not  l i v ing  in  the  house,  i t  was used  as  a  

guesthouse,  so  th is  was a  guesthouse,  i t  had bus iness 

r igh ts  loca ted and in  Waterk loo f  Cha i r  w i th  embass ies ,  you 

have bus iness a l l  the  way.   That  i s  our  in te res t  in  tha t  

bus iness.  

 Now the  f i r s t  t ime Cha i r  I  dea l t  w i th  th is  p roper t y  

was the  fac t  tha t  –  was the  fac t  tha t  in  Rose S t ree t ,  she  

wanted R11mi l l ion .   I  made an o f f e r  o f  R11mi l l ion  Cha i r,  o r  

R11.5 ,  there  was  no issue a t  tha t  t ime,  no t  to  her,  to  her  10 

agent ,  I  d idn ’ t  know her,  she d idn ’ t  know me Cha i r.    Some 

o f  the  th ings tha t  she spoke  about  he re  tha t  the  

Commiss ion  was lead ing  her  on  I  mean they are  so  pe t ty,  

they don ’ t  speak to  the  rea l  i ssue.     

 Why d idn ’ t  I  buy  the  proper ty  Cha i r,  jus t  one 

reason,  the  bank came back to  me and sa id  in  the 

eva lua t ion  o f  tha t  p roper t y  the  proper ty  i s  va lued a t  

R7mi l l ion ,  remember  I  wanted i t  fo r  bus iness,  okay,  and I  

sa id  I  w i l l  use  my –  there  is  a  what  i s  i t  ca l led ,  m inor  

p roper ty  t rus t ,  I  sa id  no  i t  i s  f ine ,  my par t i c ipa t ion  in  tha t  20 

pro jec t  w i l l  be  th rough my k ids ,  my  ch i ld ren ’s  t rus t .    I  see  

Cha i r  tha t  in  some o f  these they say I  pa id  R3mi l l ion ,  I  

never  pa id  any cent  in to  the  proper ty,  the  bank re jec ted  

and she doesn ’ t  te l l  i t ,  bu t  she sa id  the  proper ty  i s  very  

impor tan t ,  the  deve lopment  and the  oppor tun i t ies  tha t  i s  
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there  huge,  a t  the  end then we sa id  look R iaan can buy the  

proper ty  Cha i r  and we w i l l  ge t  tha t  th ing  so  i t  i s  no t  my 

proper ty.  

 She spoke here  about  I  saw Montana in  the  las t  

days tha t  he  come and fe tch  the  keys,  Cha i r  a l l  o f  those  

th ings happened,  there  is  no  issue there ,  the  issue is  tha t  

she says,  she says and Mr  Oe l le rmann in  h is  a f f idav i t  in  

h is  tes t imony she says I  go t  the  impress ion  –  an  

impress ion  Cha i r,  somet imes . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  Cha i r  and you 

get  your  own impress ion ,  she get  tha t  impress ion  tha t  i t  i s  10 

Montana ’s  p roper ty  and she has got  the  r igh t  to  say  tha t ,  

bu t  she doesn ’ t  know the  fac tua l  bas is  there ,  the re  is  no  

fac tua l  bas is  bu t  I  have seen Mr  Montana,  she wasn ’ t  there  

by  the  way when  I  went  w i th  Mr  R iaan van der  Wal t  to  her  

own proper ty,  because I  have been there  tw ice  o r  th r ice  

be fore  even –  jus t  to  look  a t ,  to  ge t  the  de ta i l s  about  the  

proper ty  and wha t  oppor tun i t ies ,  wh ich  embass ies  book in  

there  and a l l  o f  those th ings Cha i r,  okay.  

 So i t  was bus iness,  I  was do ing  bus iness Cha i r.   

But  when the  bank sa id  to  me we  cannot  f inance i t  Ms de 20 

Beer  was angry  okay,  and tha t  i s  why R iaan and I  had to  

d iscuss even i f  –  even i f  the  bank  doesn ’ t  want ,  so  fo r  me 

o f  cou rse  I  am us ing  a  fac i l i t y,  for  her  she is  invo lved in  

o ther  th ings,  she  says no  i t  i s  f ind ,  I  w i l l  take  the  proper ty  

and I  w i l l  ra ise  the  money fo r  th is  par t i cu la r  p roper ty,  so  
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. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  Cha i r  one o f  the  key  th ings tha t  I  th ink  were  

never  exp lored Mr  Son i  in  g rea t  length  i s  the  par tner  to  Mr  

van der  Wal t ,  h is  tes t imony.  

 You see  i t  i s  very  impor tan t  tha t  we know what  i s  i t  

tha t  we want  to  take  f rom an a f f idav i t ,  what  message i s  

coming out  o f  there .    What  –  he  was say ing  two th ings 

f rom what  I  can gathe r,  and I  l i s tened to  h is  tes t imony and  

I  have read h is  a f f idav i t .   Two th ings are  very  c lear  Cha i r,  

the  f i rs t  one is  c lear  tha t  they were  unhappy w i th  the  fac t  

tha t  Mr  van der  Wal t  had –  and he sa id  i t  ac tua l l y  very  10 

c lea r ly  –  he  had  o ther  bus iness in te res ts  ou ts ide  o f  the 

f i rm wh ich  d idn ’ t  agree w i th  them as par tners ,  and they  

on ly  lea rn t  fo r  example  when he was t ransfer r ing  some o f  

the  proper t ies  to  then use the  law f i rm,  even though the 

re la t ionsh ip  was not  –  so  they had  a  prob lem wi th  tha t  and  

the  prob lem ar i ses  f rom quest ions asked by  the  med ia ,  tha t  

i s  why they are  ask ing  tha t  quest ion .  

 But  the  second issue,  the  second  po in t  he  makes  

wh ich  i s  very  impor tan t ,  when I  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  Cha i r  in  the  

way tha t  I  l i ke  the  –  Andre  Wagner ’s  a f f idav i t  Mr  Son i .    He 20 

is  bas i ca l l y  say ing  tha t  in  Prec ise  Trade Mr  van der  Wal t ,  

Mr  van der  Wal t  had o ther  pa r tne rs  or  investors  i n to  tha t  

bus iness,  okay.   The a l legat ion  Cha i r  tha t  say  no  these are  

Montana ’s  p roper t ies ,  I  have conf i rmed in  b lack  and wh i te ,  

I  p layed a  par t  in  us  ident i f y ing  those oppor tun i ty,  i t  does  
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no t  make those my proper t ies .   The proper t ies  tha t  a re  my 

proper t ies  are  reg is te red in  my name.  

 For  example  i f  you  look a t  the  proper t y  in  

Hur l ingham reg is te red in  my name,  the  bu lk  o f  the  money  

d idn ’ t  even come f rom me Cha i r,  because I  had to  f ind  an  

investor  and tha t  i s  why Mr  Lou is  Green in  h is  tes t imony  

here ,  he  sa id  someth ing  ve ry  impor tan t ,  and I  th ink  you 

and  Mr  Son i  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  bu t  he  made  a  fundamenta l  po in t  

wh ich  I  want  to  ra ise  and I  was so  happy because I  th ink  i t  

was courageous Cha i r,  you t r ied  to  p robe th i s  th ing  and he  10 

made an impor tan t  –  i t  i s  no t  unusua l ,  he  made tha t  po in t  

Cha i r,  i t  i s  no t  unusua l  tha t  Montana can a r r i ve ,  ident i f y  a  

p roper ty  and when we reg i s te r,  because i t  has  to  do  w i th  

where  the  money is  and how do you f ind  the  money,  in  Pedi  

say  Cha i r  these peop le  who d idn ’ t  invest iga te  because they 

were  ta rge t ing  me [speak ing  in  vernacu lar ]  so  they jus t  

Cha i r  wanted to  make sure  tha t  no  he  is  gu i l t y  as  charged  

and not  look ing  a t  the  de ta i l s .  

 Now Cha i r  one o f  the  two th ings the  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  o f  

S ta te  Capture  you know I  love  them Cha i r  these peop le ,  20 

they say you must  fo l low the  money.   Cha i r  bu t  Mr  

Oe l le rmann sa id  he  went  to  the  proper ty  in  Sandhurs t  and 

i t  seems the re  are  peop le  there ,  a f te r  hear ing  tha t  he 

ca l led  and sa id  who l i ves  there ,  and the  proper ty  had been 

ren ted out  to  somebody by  Mr  van de r  Wal t ,  okay.   The 
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most  next  log ica l  s tep  is  tha t  th is  ren ta l  income where  

does i t  go  to ,  because i t  w i l l  te l l  you  who is  the  rea l  owner  

o f  the  proper ty.   They don ’ t  do  tha t ,  they  jump tha t  po in t ,  

okay,  they jump tha t  po in t  Cha i r  because i t  doesn ’ t  ass i s t  

what  they are  t ry ing  to  ge t  to ,  tha t  he  is  gu i l t y  as  charged.  

 I f  you  look a t  i t  Cha i r  go ing  back to  the  Rose 

Waterk loo f ,  Wate rk loo f  p roper ty.   Then she was angry  and 

she says te rm ina te  th is  re la t ionsh ip .    Ms de Beer  when I  

th ink  there  was a  guy,  i f  I  remember  very  we l l ,  h is  name 

was Dan ie l ,  the  agent ,  Dan ie l  went  back to  her  and sa id  no  10 

he went ,  he  took my o f fe r,  no t  R iaan ’s  o f fe r,  my o f fe r,  I  say  

no  look le t  me put  an  o f fe r  and I  go  to  the  bank,  the  bank 

sent  a  team for  va lua t ion  they say  no  tha t  p roper ty,  bu t  o f  

course  the  bank was wrong,  she was r i gh t  to  be  angry,  no t  

o f  course  she shou ldn ’ t  have been angry  w i th  me,  bu t  w i th  

the  bank because the  bank they were  look ing  a t  th is  

bu i ld ing ,  bu t  they were  no t  look ing  a t  the  income 

genera t ion  in  tha t  par t i cu la r  bu i ld ing  so  they underva lued  

the  proper ty.   She was angry  because the  t ime share  tha t  I  

f i rs t  made contac t  w i th  her,  and we  agreed w i th  R iaan and i  20 

sa id  no  le t ’s  f ind  a  way,  le t ’s  ge t  money fo r  me to  ge t  the  

bank ’s  amount  o r  ra ther  va lua t ion ,  and get  an  add i t iona l  

R3.5 ,  and I  sa id  to  R iaan w i l l  you  then lend me the  R3.5  so  

I  can then say to  the  bank don ’ t  g ive  me fo r  R11mi l l ion ,  

jus t  g ive  me fo r  R7mi l l ion  in  l ine  w i th  your  va lua t ion  and 
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then I  w i l l  pu t  the  add i t iona l  money  in  there  Cha i r.  

 Of  course   I  rea l i sed i t  w i l l  no t  work ,  I  th ink  the  

bank d id  no t  have  an appet i te  fo r  tha t ,  and then tha t  i s  why  

we sa id  look th i s  p resents  a  lo t  o f  oppor tun i t ies ,  i t ’s  in  

Waterk loo f ,  Embass ies  are  keen on do ing  tha t ,  and i t  has  

go t  bus iness r igh ts  a l ready,  tha t  i s  what  i t  i s .  

 Now Ms de Beer  as  I  sa id  Cha i r  she ta lks  about  in  

her  a f f idav i t  ve ry  smal l  th ings,  she doesn ’ t  know the  

re la t ionsh ip  be tween Lucky Montana and Mr  R iaan van de r  

Wal t .   She doesn ’ t  know how these th ings are  funded,  so  I  10 

am surpr ised tha t  the  Commiss ion  wou ld  b r ing  Ms de Beer  

here  who ac tua l l y  doesn ’ t  add va lue  to  th is  Commiss ion  

and leave out  Mr  Andre  Wagener,  I  know Cha i r  you have 

exp la ined the  th ing ,  I  am not  open ing  tha t ,  I  am jus t  s imp ly  

say ing  tha t  she doesn ’ t  know Cha i r,  ye t  she ta lks  about  

someth ing  she doesn ’ t  know,  she doesn ’ t  know – she 

knows noth ing  bout  the  mat te r,  how the  na ture  o f  the 

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  R iaan and tha t  i s  why R iaan then sa id  no  

I  w i l l  dea l  w i th  tha t  and I  w i l l  ra ise  money and I  w i l l  take  i t  

under  Prec i se  Trade so  tha t  tha t  oppor tun i ty  i s  no t  los t  20 

Cha i r.  

 That  i s  the  most  impor tan t  th ing ,  t ha t  i s  how we a re  

invo l ved in  bus iness we do Cha i r,  s t ra tegy,  ve ry  s t ra teg i c  

f rom where  i t  i s  in  Waterk loo f ,  and Cha i r  when the  f i rs t  

peop le  to  b reak tha t  house,  to  s ta r t  the  work  R iaan  asked 
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me and I  went  to  fe tch  peop le  f rom Mamelod i  and say no  

break th i s  p roper ty.   So the  th ings the  de ta i l s  t ha t  a re 

de f ined are  de ta i led  there .   They a re  t rue ,  bu t  they are  no t  

te l l ing  the  Commiss ion  the  s to ry  because  she doesn ’ t  

know,  she is  incapab le  o f  do ing  tha t  and tha t  is  why when  

peop le  beat  up  drums,  they wan t  to  fe tch  the  keys and  

every th ing  bu t  how i s  the  proper ty  f inanced,  because tha t  

i s  what  i t  te l l s  us .   I f  you  say Santez ,  yes  Cha i r  even the  

Santez  proper ty  I  was p lay ing  a  major  ro le ,  so  I  don ’ t  –  

whatever  they say doesn ’ t  te l l  the  Commiss ion  any th ing ,  i t  10 

is  a  s to ry  what  you must  te l l ,  te l l  us  about  the  money,  you  

w i l l  ac tua l l y  see tha t  Montana i s  no t  invo lved in  tha t ,  you 

can ac tua l l y  see f rom my f i rs t  annexure  I  say  R iaan is  –  he  

came here ,  and we met  I  say  1 .3 ,  I  say  no ,  no  bu t  i f  we 

ca l cu la te  in  fac t  I  shou ld  be  get t ing  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  because 

par tners  do  tha t  a l l  the  t ime Cha i r.  

 I f  you  look a t  Hur l ingham p roper t y  they i ssued Cha i r  

–  what  i s  i t  ca l led  –  Mid town Brace.   R iaan was not  

invo l ved except  tha t  Cha i r  as  a  lawyer  we asked h im to  pu t  

a  dea l  fo r  us ,  fo r  me and Mr  Andre  Wagner.    I  pu t ,  I  asked 20 

h im to  pu t  the  money the re  fo r  me,  Mr  Wagner  b rought  in  

the  o ther  money,  the  o ther  d i f fe rence was money fo r  

deve lopment  Cha i r.  

 Now the  deve lopment  d idn ’ t  happen and i t  d idn ’ t  

happen because then I  cou ldn ’ t  b r ing  the  o the r  R9.5mi l l ion  
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fo r  deve lopment ,  the  R10mi l l ion  tha t  I  spoke about  f rom 

FNB tha t  I  sa id  tha t  I  went  to  app ly  and they to ld  me they  

are  po l i t i ca l l y  exposed,  they are  no t  go ing  to  cons ider  

ex tend ing  any fac i l i t y  to  you.   I t  is  FNB.   I  thought  I  wou ld  

go  in  because the  lady who was –  as  I  exp la ined  ear l ie r,  

who d id  my proper t ies  a t  ABSA f rom Tygerva l ley  i n  Cape  

Town she had moved here  and she  to ld  me I  sa id  I  want  to  

do  bus iness w i th  you,  tha t  i s  the  proper ty  tha t  I  went  f i rs t  

to  her.    I  ac tua l l y  asked he r  f rom the  bank can you g ive  

me my app l i ca t ion  so  tha t  I  can a t tach  i t  here ,  10 

un for tunate l y  they sa id  no ,  we d idn ’ t  –  i t  was dec l ined,  one  

cred i t  d idn ’ t  accept  i t  we are  no t  keep ing  those documents  

because we are  no t  hav ing  in  tha t  respect .  

 They took  me to  cour t  Cha i r  and you w i l l  see  the  

le t te rs  I  have a t tached,  there  has been to  and f ro ,  un t i l  

they  issued summonses aga ins t  me,  Mid town  Brace.   

. . . [ Ind is t inc t ]  we then agreed in  response to  le t ’s  se l l  the  

proper ty  and tha t  you get  what  you  get  and I  ge t  someth ing 

ou t  o f  tha t  because we both  pu t  money in to  th is  p roper ty.  

 We then took the  –  and tha t  i s  why Cha i r  you w i l l  20 

see one o f  the  th ings I  touch is  what  you ca l l  the  Power  o f  

A t to rney,  I  then had to  s ign  a  Power  o f  A t to rney to  Mid town  

Brace so  tha t  they run  an  auct ion ,  they ran  an  auct ion  

Cha i r  and the  pr i ces  were  r i d icu lous and you w i l l  see  there  

we sa id  no  le t ’s  no t  even accept  i t ,  okay.   
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 Now my document  Cha i r  conf i rm the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  

Andre  Wagner,  he  is  d i rec t l y  invo l ved,  he  pu t  h is  own 

money in to  th is  th ing  so  he  knows the  s to ry,  bu t  when you  

compare  to  Ms de Beer  I  th ink  Cha i r  she wanted to  –  I  was  

i r r i ta ted  w i th  he r,  no t  angry,  i r r i ta ted ,  because,  and you 

cou ld  see tha t  she wanted to  ta lk  about  what  car  Mr  

Montana drove and eve ry th ing  to  convey a  p ic tu re  o f  a  

cor rup t  man,  okay,  what  I  came out  there ,  she  is  no t  

focus ing  on  the  issue tha t  I  want  to  buy a  p roper t y  because  

we want  to  do  bus iness there  Cha i r,  so  her  a f f idav i t  we can  10 

go,  my v iew is  tha t  I  am not  even  deny ing  anyth ing ,  there  

is  no th ing  to  de f ine ,  to  de fe r,  to  deny,  the  a f f idav i t  te l l s  the  

Commiss ion  no th ing  about  the  na ture  o f  the  dea l ,  i t  says  I  

saw Mr  Montana,  he  was wear ing  th is ,  th is ,  he  was  dr iv ing  

th is  ca r,  bu t  Ms de Beer  on ly  saw me Cha i r  towards the  

end,  a f te r  a l l  o f  those th ings and  tha t  she can see Cha i r  

w i th  the  par tner  to  Mr  R iaan van der  Wal t .   I t  i s  bas i ca l l y  

te l l ing  th is  Commiss ion  tha t  in  fac t  P rec i se  was R iaan was 

the  so le  owner  and d i rec to r.    

 In  a l l  these dea l i ngs i t  had investors ,  wh ich  means 20 

peop le  tha t  he  was bo r rowing money f rom to  f inance a l l  the 

d i f fe ren t  –  and  tha t  i s  why Cha i r  I  th ink  f rom the  

in fo rmat ion  I  p icked up . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  the  l iqu ida t ion  o f  

Swi fambo,  the  l i qu ida tors  o f  Swi fambo here ,  le t ’s  ge t  the  

l iqu ida to rs  the re  and see who d id  they speak to  as  the  
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peop le  who lend money there ,  you w i l l  ac tua l l y  be  

surpr i sed Cha i r,  these are  no t  the  peop le  tha t  a re  

ment ioned in  the  newspapers ,  because peop le  know they 

are  no t  in te res ted  in  the  t ru th  Cha i r,  so  the  long and shor t  

o f  i t  Cha i r  when  you ta lk  about  Ms de Beer  she was –  I  

don ’ t  know whether,  I  th ink  a t  tha t  t ime Cha i r  she has been  

probab ly  to ld  and  pr imed on what  to  say or  i t  was j us t  an  

abso lu te  show o f  rac ism,  I  am not  say ing  bu t  perhaps  

Cha i r,  fasc ina ted  by th is  b lack  man who wants  to  buy a  

proper ty  o f  R11mi l l ion ,  who i s  d r i v ing  th is  k ind  o f  a  car  and 10 

a l l  o f  those th ings.  

 Cha i r  the re  is  no th ing ,  there  was noth ing  un lawfu l  

o r  i r regu lar  and  peop le  are  tak ing  th is  th ing  too  fa r,  

because they are  t ry ing  to  say R iaan –  i f  R iaan  was the  

owner  o r  shareho lder  o f  S iyangena I  wou ld  unders tand,  he  

is  there ,  he  has  go t  no th ing  to  do  w i th  . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  

d ropp ing  vo ice ] ,  h is  mentors  was now i f  the  –  the  

a l legat ion  was tha t  no  and as  I  th ink  Mr  Oe l le rmann  in  fac t  

sa id  i t  dur ing  h is  tes t imony,  he  sa id  Cha i r  the  owners  f rom 

which  these proper t ies  were  bought  had an unders tand ing  20 

tha t  the  proper t ies  were  bought  by  Mr  Montana,  the re  was 

a  p lan  to  a l l  o f  those th ings,  bu t  the  fac t  tha t  I  u l t imate ly  

d idn ’ t  buy the  proper ty  te l l s  you there  is  a  s to ry,  so  I  was 

not  us ing  R iaan to  buy proper t ies .  

 Then i f  the  proper ty  i s  owned by  Prec i se  are  my  
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p roper t ies  what  i s  the  s ta tus  o f  the  lenders  to  Prec ise  or  to  

R iaan,  I  don ’ t  even know them Cha i r,  I  was say ing  –  I  saw 

the i r  names fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime when th is  a f f idav i t  was  

deposed there .     

 Wou ld  they take  a  r i sk  o f  pu t t ing  money in to  Prec ise  

to  somebody tha t  they don ’ t  know,  and I  th ink  Cha i r  tha t  

you can see tha t  what  Ms de Beer  was say ing ,  o f  course  i t  

i s  up  to  the  Commiss ion  to  eva lua te  ev idence,  bu t  d id  he  

te l l  you  about  the  na ture  o f  Mr  Montana ’s  p roper ty  

dea l ings,  no  she can on ly  descr ibe  ce r ta in  pa r ts  when she 10 

saw me and to  want  to  p resent ,  so  what  does i t  mat te r  tha t  

I  am wear ing  a  p ink  sh i r t ,  te l l  us  to  say no  I  th ink  i f  you  

be l ieve  tha t  Mr  Montana is  invo l ved in  cor rup t  ac t i v i t ies  

and is  buy ing  p roper t ies .     

 She doesn ’ t  say  Cha i r  I  mean f rom 2016 I  have 

been very  c lear,  I  have worked w i th  R iaan,  he  is  a  good  

bus inessman Cha i r.     

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:   Chai r  le t  me make the  las t  one w i th  

regard  to  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

MR MONTANA:  Because tha t  i s  a lso  a t tached.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

MR MONTANA:   Or ra ther  two shor t  po in ts  Cha i r,  because  

I  want  to  f in ish  w i th  the  f inanc ia l s  here .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  because I  wanted to  say  to  you 

what  you have been te l l ing  me i t  i s  f ine  and i t  i s  impor tan t  

in  te rms o f  i t  be ing  par t  o f  your  answer  to  the  a l legat ions,  

bu t  I  th ink  Mr  Son i  had in  m ind tha t  you cou ld  c lea r  up  in  

te rms o f  say ing  –  in  te rms o f  these  bank s ta tements  and so  

on  I  have got  no  issues w i th  every th ing ,  these are  the  on ly 

th ings you have issues w i th ,  so  tha t  we get  tha t  ou t  o f  the 

way,  bu t  in  te rms  o f  what  you –  f in ish ing  your  pa r t  o f  the 

s to ry  tha t  i s  f ine ,  sub jec t  to  the  unders tand ing  tha t  on 

proper t ies  we w i l l  s t i l l  dea l  w i th  th is  aspect  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR MONTANA:   No,  no ,  no  Cha i r  I  am more  than  happy.    

I  w i l l  s tay  a t  th is  Commiss ion  fo r  as  long as  you want  me to 

answer  these quest ions,  i f  the  Commiss ion  ge t  o ther  

in fo rmat ion  and say Montana tomorrow wake up and come 

here  I  w i l l  be  here .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  you w i l l  come here .  

MR MONTANA:   I  w i l l  be  here  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:   That  I  g ive  you my assurance,  because I  

have got  no th ing  to  h ide  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:  Chai r  Mr  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    You sa id  you want  to  make two po in ts  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   Two po in ts .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    We can then have c la r i t y  on  the  bank  

s ta tements .  

MR MONTANA:   Yes,  no  I  want  to  make one and then dea l  

w i th  the  bank s ta tements .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .    

MR MONTANA:   Mr Lou is  Green,  I  th ink  Cha i r  the  –  Mr  

Louis Green,  Mr  Andre Wagner they are the i r  s ta tements 

and I  th ink that  they are good.   Because Mr Louis  Green 

said you are asking a speci f ic  quest ion and he sa id when 

you ask h im why d id he – when R iaan Van Der Wal t  wrote 10 

an emai l  and sa id do not  get  invo lved there – do not  copy 

Mr Montana and Mr Van Der Wal t  Chai r  and rather  Mr Louis 

Green unl i ke Ms De Beer she says look Mr Montana came,  

he was coming to  look at  the proper ty.    

He was not  looking at  that  00:00:42 you get  d i f ferent  

proper ty.   And he sa id someth ing very important  a t  the end 

– He was assis t ing the commission about  what  they do as  

estate agents.   The k ind of  t ransact ions they get  involved 

in .   And he sa id  one important  po int .   I  do not  know the  

nature – or  he sa id I  d id  not  know – because she asked me 20 

why d id you respond in  that  way;  why d id you accept?  And 

he says because I  d id  not  know the nature of  the  

re la t ionship between Mr Montana and Mr Van Der Wal t .   

Now that  is  an honourable man Chai r.   He does not  descr ibe 

th ings that  he does not  know.    
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And I  th ink Chai r  that  i s  why there  has been a lo t  o f  

speculat ions but  there are people  who have dr iven th is  –  

th is  what  is  i t  ca l led – th is  p roper ty  s tory.   Now peop le who 

are conf l i c ted Chai r.   I  have descr ibed some of  them in the 

morning and I  th ink Chai r  i f  you look at  my statement  a lso 

put  as par t  o f  the annexure – my statement  in  response.  

Because the f i rs t  t ime I  had th ing by the way was when Mr  

Molefe had f i led – he deposed to an aff idavi t  Chai r  on the  

S iyangena mat te r  and one of  the journal i s ts  I  th ink wrote 

about  i t  –  I  th ink  i t  was P ieter  Louis  Myburgh and I  got  a  10 

ca l l  that  d id  you see that  you are involved.   

And I  sa id I  look at  her  and I  had a  press conference 

and I  deal t  wi th  those issues.   I  sa id there is  no bas is to  a l l  

o f  these th ings.   And I  thought  by that  press conference 

Chai r  I  would have done enough to  d ispel  the th ings.   I t  was 

wel l  covered in  the SABC but  when the mat te r  cont inued 

Popo Molefe,  then cont inued making th is  so – so I  decided 

that  I  want  to  come in to the S iyangena mat te r  because I  

was upset  that  my name was being ment ioned but  I  was not  

–  I  was not  c i ted as a – as a respondent .    20 

So – so I  am being brushed then and then le f t  as ide .   

So my statement  deal t  wi th  i t  a t  length Chai r  and then my 

fu l l  record – my fu l l  th ing is  captured Chai r  in  the statement  

that  I  have just  – that  we have put  in  that  you sa id we wi l l  

on ly  admi t  i t  as soon as – once i t  has been read – I  have 
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accepted that .    

So le t  us deal  wi th  the –  wi th  the monies.   You know 

the f low of  –  they say fo l low the money but  i t  is  fo l low the 

money where i t  su i ts  us – where i t  does not  su i t  us we – we 

then abandon that .    

 You see Chai r  when Riaan – when Riaan and I  th ink  

I  want  to  l ink th is  to  the f i rs t  annexure that  I  submi t ted on 

proper t ies and you th ink there  is  a  s l ight  d is juncture 

between what  he  sa id to  h is  par tners and my d iscussions 

wi th  h im.    Because i f  you look a t  those amounts he says 10 

you owe me R1.3 mi l l ion – he says that .   I t  is  in  that  

annexure.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You ta lk ing about  Exhib i t  SS18(b)1.  

MR MONTANA:   Yes that  emai l  Cha i r  that  is  cor rect .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  emai l .   The le t te r  that  was 

terminat ing the re la t ionship,  is  that  r ight?  

MR MONTANA:   Indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   He then ment ioned that  amount  and my 

understanding … 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  that  le t ter  says:  

“ I  have noted the contents of  your  mai l  be low 

and conf i rm the fo l lowing as – as the Di rector  

and Shareholder  of  Precise  Trade and 

Investment :  
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1 .  I  am prepared to  agree that  the loan of  R1.3  

mi l l ion p lus in terest  must  be repaid by no la te r  

than 31 December 2015 or  even at  1  January  

2016. ”  

That  is  the R1.3 you ta lk ing about?  

MR MONTANA:   That  i s  what  I  am referr ing to  Chai r  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MONTANA:   Now you have seen that  loan –  in  that  

Chai r  he is  re fer r ing to  R1.3 now there is  an issue about  the 

re la t ionship between the numbers that  a re ment ioned here.  10 

 You remember here Chai r  we are  deal ing wi th  two 

th ings.   We are not  deal ing wi th  money that  came to me.   

We are deal ing w i th  – i t  is  qu i te  c lear  to  me that  what  Van 

Der – Mr Van Der  Wal t  was doing wi th  a l l  the people who he 

was involved wi th  he was – i t  was l i ke some k ind of  a  

rotat ing  fund which  he g ives to  Montana here,  he g ives to  

Zondo – he got  Zondo to pay th is  and a l l  o f  those th ings.  

 His notes say that  and I  have conf i rmed that  wi th  

h im Chai r.   Now I  have asked that  can we deal  wi th  

Montana ’s – what  is  i t  ca l led – statement  especia l l y  the f low 20 

of  money between Precise Trade and Montana.    

 What  I  have been presented here Chai r  we are  

deal ing wi th  what  Robert  deals  wi th  the  re la t ionship in  

respect .   He does not  deal  wi th  Precise Trade.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay I  want  to  s top you there.   Mr Soni  I  
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th ink i t  is  go ing to  be bet te r  to  do i t  the – in  the usua l  way.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   I  th ink i t  is  go ing to  be bet te r  for  Mr 

Soni  to  take you through the t ransact ions.  

MR MONTANA:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So that  fo r  purposes of  s imply saying I  

have no issue wi th  th is  t ransact ion  yes I  have no issue wi th  

the fact  that  so  much appeared to  have gone f rom that  

account  to  that  account  or  maybe that  i t  was in  connect ion  

wi th  that  par t i cu lar  p roper ty  or  whatever  you want  to  say 10 

and then when we deal  wi th  the  – when we –  when we have 

read your  aff idav i t  and S iyangena then whatever  e lse you 

want  to  say to  complete the p ic ture in  re la t ion to  proper t ies  

you can then dea l  wi th .   But  we can put  as ide and have a 

c lear  p ic tu re on where the issues are on the payments.  

MR MONTANA:   I  have… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink one of  the points you are making is  

–  is  that  a  lo t  o f  the payments maybe you say a l l  o f  them 

but  a lo t  o f  the  payments that  are deal t  wi th  were not  

payments that  were coming to  you.   I  th ink that  is  one of  the  20 

points you make,  is  that  r ight?  

MR MONTANA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   But  the b igger  i ssue I  am saying.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  
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MR MONTANA:   We are deal ing wi th  Mr Riaan’s account .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Not  my account .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes ja .  

MR MONTANA:   Now – now the on ly th ing I  can do.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   And that  is  why I  sa id ear l ie r  on to  Mr Soni .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   A three way match is  go ing to  be very 

important .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   We are star t ing to  do – I  am supposed to 

conf i rm statements which have – have even a whole  range 

of  o ther  t ransact ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   So I  can only note Chai r  –  I  can only note  

and that  is  why I  am asking the commission.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Let  us ask ABSA to g ive us my statement 

for  the per iod then we can compare Chai r  because – and 20 

you can see Chai r  you have got  a  statement  that  says 

Montana.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   And then below i t  says R400 – i t  says TLM.  

So i f  somebody is  us ing Montana as h is  reference why 
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would he use TLM – and I  thought  I  am the only one Chai r  

but  who uses the reference TLM to just  to  cover  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   And you can see even in  how I  have 

marked my documents.   So Chai r  in  rea l  t imes I  can note  

but  I  cannot  ass is t  the commission speci f ica l ly  on those.   

The only person who can assis t  that  commission is  not  even 

Robert  i t  is  Mr Van Der Wal t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Because he can say te l l  us what  the – what  10 

do  you mean there?  The –  or  e lse  a l l  o f  us are le f t  in  the  

realm of  –  of  what  is  i t  ca l led – speculat ion.   And Chai r  I  

can only note them.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   But  I  cannot  – I  cannot .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You cannot  – yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Unless i f  the commission says in  your  bank 

statement  Mr Montana.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You … 

MR MONTANA:   We see R400 000.00 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   I t  came f rom there  can you conf i rm that?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Now then we are  happy.   But  I  am being 

asked about  somebody and th is  can you see Chai r  the ups 
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and downs in  that  account .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   I t  is  not  my account .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   He is  the one – he –  they say he gave – he  

has wr i t ten notes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   And I  see for  example Chai r  that  when 

PRASA went  to  cour t  one of  the th ings they were t ry ing to 

see they were t ry ing to  take the notes and sa id these notes  10 

means the money came f rom TLM and I  asked R iaan d id 

they come f rom TLM – he says no.   I t  te l ls  me how I  am 

using the money to that .    

And Chai r  when I  looked at  the aff idavi t  o f  

S iyangena by the  way inc lud ing the aff idavi t  that  I  th ink has 

been read – I  am refer r ing to  the aff idavi t  that  has been 

read ear l ie r  by the CFO.  That  – they are very c lear  in  that  

–  in  that  th ing that  they are not  even involved.  They have 

never  even t ransfer red a cent  f rom Siyangena to – what  i s  i t  

ca l led – to  Precise Trade.   20 

They say we do not  have a re la t ionship wi th  Precise  

Trade.   So – so Chai r  you can see that  I  am being asked 

about  th ings – ask me about  my re lat ionship wi th  how we 

bought  these proper t ies wi th  Riaan Van Der Wal t .   They are 

proper t ies that  I  bought  for  development .   There are  
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proper t ies that  we bought  and we had the b igger  p ic ture  

about  what  we wanted to  develop and Chai r  so these are.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   So I  cannot  answer – people specu lat ing or  

drawing in ferences f rom somebody e lse ’ s tatement  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja I  th ink Mr Soni  maybe the best  way 

might  be th is  because you would  – you probably have an 

idea that  the var ious bank statements ref lect  1 ,2,3,4 ,5 such 

as on such and such a date there was a payment  f rom 

Precise Trade to  whoever or  f rom somebody to Precise 10 

Trade.   I f  you put  those ser ies of  proposi t ions based on 

what  is  re f lected on the bank statements Mr – maybe even 

wi thout  go ing th rough each one Mr Montana can say wel l  I  

have no problem wi th a l l  o f  those proposi t ions because my 

point  is  s imply th is .   Then maybe i t  might  be faster.    

ADV SONI SC:   Yes 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am just  th ink ing you might  have a  

d i f ferent  way I  am easy I  just  want  to  see how we can move 

expedi t iously.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   And Chai rperson I  do not  want  us to  20 

run in to d i f f icu l t ies.   What  we have is  a statement  or  a  le t te r  

f rom Mr Van Der Wal t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes 

ADV SONI SC:   Who is  asked te l l  us about  the Parkwood 

property.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   And he says i t  was bought  for  R6.8 mi l l ion  

and these are the  payments I  made.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now he does not  say  he made the payments 

to  Mr Montana.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   What  he  says is  here is  the bank statement 

and in  the bank statement  you see a corre lat ion between 

what  he says in  h is  le t ter  and what  is  re f lected in  the bank 10 

statement  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now the d i f f i cu l t y  we have is  that  when he 

says TLM or  Mr Montana reading i t  w i th  the le t te r  o f  the 30 

– 28 t h  o f  January  2016 we say tha t  that  is  a  payment  made 

in  respect  o f  h is  indebtedness to  Montana.  I t  does not  mean 

that  he paid i t  d i rect l y  to  Mr Montana.    

 Now of  course we are  now in  th is  d i f f icu l t  s i tuat ion  

because Mr Montana’s point  is  wel l  I  do not  know about  

those i t  may have my name but  I  cannot  conf i rm th is .  20 

 Now in  a sense Chai rperson we are running around 

in  c i rc les because instead of  Mr Montana saying because – 

and th is  i s  an issue and I  am going to  put  to  Mr Montana in  

a moment .    

 I  buy someth ing f rom wel l  Mr Van Der Wal t  buys a  
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proper ty  worth R6.8 mi l l ion f rom Mr Montana.   He says I  

made these payments.   Now that  i s  Mr Montana ’s p roper ty  

he must  know i f  those payments were  made or  not .   

Whether  i t  was made to h im or  to  somebody e lse because 

they are payments due in  te rms of  the agreement  which we 

have a l ready looked at .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.    

ADV SONI SC:   So – but  that  is  the proposi t ion I  am going  

to  put  and that  is  as far  as we can take i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no that  is  f ine .   I  th ink you deal  wi th  i t  10 

the way you – you are happy wi th  i t .   From your  s ide Mr 

Montana when he puts any proposi t ion or  quest ion i f  you  

are able to  answer because you do have knowledge you 

answer.   I f  you say I  do not  know because i t  i s  somebody 

e lse ’ account  tha t  you say you do not  know and you can – 

we can move on.  

MR MONTANA:   Chai r  can I  say.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  

MR MONTANA:   Can I  say someth ing?  I  do not  th ink we are 

far  apar t  Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no I  a lso do not  th ink so.  

MR MONTANA:   I  th ink – I  th ink we are in  agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Remember when I  came to – in  the morning  

when I  came here Chai r  I  wanted to  demonst rate one 
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fundamenta l  th ing.   The story that  S iyangena or  Van Der 

Wal t  bought  proper t ies f rom me is  fa lse.   And Chai r  I  went  

through each proper t ies and showed how much money I  

have.   That  is  the  f i rs t  th ing I  wanted to  say.  

 Secondly Chai r  I  am conf i rming – I  a lso conf i rmed to 

the commission Mr Soni  that  mysel f  and Riaan had – were  

par tners so I  am not  saying Chai r  that  I  am denying even 

the fact  that  I  may – I  may have sa id t ransfer red 

R100 000.000 to pay somebody or  – that  is  not  what  I  am 

saying.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   I  am s imply saying Chai r  you are  put t ing 

me in  a d i f f icu l ty  because you are not  deal ing wi th  my 

statements.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   You are deal ing wi th  a statement  of  

somebody involved – where I  say for  example I  sa id  on the 

2.2 mi l l ion that  Mr Van Der Wal t  pa id.   I  sa id I  th ink – I  sa id 

that  –  I  th ink he may have been e i ther  set t l ing the bond.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The bond.  20 

MR MONTANA:   Faci l i ty  o r  he may have been paying the  

proper ty  note – for  the proper ty  note in  o rder  to  –  on my 

behal f .   That  I  accept  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   But  I  am saying the d i f f i cu l ty  I  have is  that  



10 MAY 2021 – DAY 391 
 

Page 172 of 179 
 

we are going to  see R300 mi l l ion he does not  want  to  say i t  

is  Montana he say th is  i s  h is  re ference.   And another  one 

says TLM.  I t  is  not  my – I  do not  know because I  d id  not  

know how Riaan for  example was mobi l is ing h is  own money 

to be involved wi th  me and even other  people Chai r  that  is  

the issue.   And so – and so I  am saying that  i t  is  becoming 

unfa i r  but  I  th ink … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   I  th ink to  be fa i r  to  the commission.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  10 

MR MONTANA:   Let  us go through that  p rocess Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   And i f  I  do  not  know (speaking in  

vernacular) .  But  i f  the commission cannot  ho ld that  against  

me and say because i f  the commission wants to  hold i t  

against  me they say now Mr  Montana here  is  your  

s tatements Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   R iaan and I  had a re la t ionship i t  invo lved 

money – i t  invo lved proper t ies Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   But  th is  had noth ing to  do – the issue here 

is  that  I  sa id – they sa id in  th is  repor t  and many other  

a l legat ions Montana d id  not  even have a cent  they – we 

bought  the – S iyangena bought  p roper t ies fo r  h im Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   And that  is  my –  I  am here to  ta lk  about  

that  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no.  

MR MONTANA:   And to demonst rate  that  i t  is  so fa lse .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is  f ine.  

MR MONTANA:   I t  does not  have 00:17:01 and secondly 

that  I  have never  h idden my re lat ionship because Riaan has 

got  noth ing to  do  wi th  S iyangena or  tenders at  PRASA.   He 

is  a lawyer on the s ide and I  do not  want  to  be persecuted 10 

on the basis of  –  of  associat ion wi th  h im because he 

happened to know so and so Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Now f ina l l y  on th is   

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is  f ine.  

MR MONTANA:   On these statements Chai r  I  th ink Mr Soni  

should take me th rough.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   But  he cannot  expect  me to know another  

man’s account  Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja no,  no where he – where he has issues 

wi th  you saying you do not  know because he th inks you 

know he wi l l  –  he wi l l  put  that  to  you.  

MR MONTANA:   No,  no Chai r  I  am more than happy.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  
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MR MONTANA:   I  th ink le t  us do that  ja  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r ight .    

ADV SONI SC:   I f  I  recal l  we were at  2 .2.4 at  page 198.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry Mr Soni  I  see we are at  f ive to  

f ive.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink we – we should just  take an 

adjournment  ten minutes adjournment .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink  10 

ADV SONI SC:   Chai rperson there is  – whi le  p roceedings 

were going  on there is  someth ing  that  occurred to  me that  i f  

we go on la te in to the evening today i t  is  go ing  to  be 

impossib le for  be ing meaningfu l ly  to  deal  wi th  these 

mat te rs.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no I  –  I  agree.   I  d id  not  rea l ise that  

we are a l ready c lose to  f i ve.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  thought  we were  st i l l  c lose to  four.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  was th ink ing tha t  maybe we should go up 

to  s ix  but  i t  may wel l  be I  th ink I  can be guided by you 

because that  may be a lo t  o f  reading to  do.   I t  may be that  

we should stop so that  there is  enough t ime to read.   I t  may 

be that  we should go maybe up to  s ix .   What  is  your  sense 
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because there is  the reading as wel l?  

ADV SONI SC:   Chai rperson there  – there may be th ings in  

the aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   And I  have not  seen the annexures yet .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   So i t  is  go ing to  be  another  i ssue.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   That  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe i t  is  bet te r  we adjourn.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   And I  just  do not  know how to –  

because we need to make copies as  wel l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   So maybe i t  is  convenient  that  we 

should adjourn or  –  and then tomorrow star t  a t  a  l i t t le 

ear l ie r  ha l f  past  n ine I  do not  –  what  is  your  sense? 

ADV SONI SC:   No,  no the  – the problem though 

Chai rperson has that  we would have to  make cop ies th is  

evening so that  we are able to  deal  meaningfu l l y  w i th  what  

is  conta ined in  these aff idavi t s .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no what  I  mean is  in  te rms of  20 

whether  we adjourn now or  la te r.  

ADV SONI SC:   I  th ink we should adjourn now Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Because th is  i s  –  and i t  w i l l  i n to… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Mr Montana you – you have g iven us 
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a  lo t  o f  –  a lo t  o f  paperwork that  must  be read.  

MR MONTANA:   Wel l  Chai r  I  was wi l l ing to  go unt i l  ten.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Unt i l  twelve midnight .  

MR MONTANA:   They say the minute – the meet ing  wi th  the 

President  unt i l  two am.   So I  am – no Chai r  i t  is  f ine I  th ink I  

wi l l  –  I  wi l l  be here tomorrow that  is  f ine Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay yes.   Yes should we star t  –  should  

we st ick to  ten or  how – do hal f  past  n ine but  somet imes we 

star t  a t  ha l f  past  n ine l ike we d id  I  th ink on Fr iday but  I  

ended up needing to  have a longer lunch because there  10 

were some th ings that  needed my a t tent ion.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.      

CHAIRPERSON:   What  i s  your  sense.  

ADV SONI SC:   In  v iew of  the reading we have as much 

t ime that  we have to prepare would  be appreciated.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  Then le t  us sta r t  a t  normal  t ime ten 

o ’c lock.   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Are you star t ing wi th  me or  wi th  the PRASA 

people and then I  come af ternoon Chai r?  

CHAIRPERSON:   My sense is  that  we should star t  w i th  you.   20 

I  do not  know.   Mr Soni  –  ja  le t  us star t  wi th  you we 

cont inue and t ry  and f in ish wi th  you.   We- I  would l i ke  to  – 

to  f in ish wi th  your  ev idence.  

MR MONTANA:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Tomorrow i f  we can.  
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MR MONTANA:   That  i s  in  respect  o f  proper t ies Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  in  respect  o f  everyth ing.   But  i f  –  i f  

we do not  achieve that  despi te  our  best  e ffor ts  we wi l l  take 

i t  f rom there to  see what  can be done.   As I  say I  do have –  

my schedule of  hear ings and wi tnesses up to  end of  May i t  

is  a lmost  fu l l  you know – actual ly  i t  is  fu l l .   But  le t  us see 

how far  we can go and we do our  best  e ffo r ts  but  i f  we come 

to the end of  –  of  –  and I  do have an evening session  

tomorrow.   So i f  we come to f ive o ’c lock we see tha t  we are 

not  done and we have done the best  we can we wi l l  take i t  10 

f rom there.  

MR MONTANA:   No Chai r  I  am happy wi th  that  except  that  

they kept  on reminding the team. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Tomorrow i t  wi l l  be my s ix th day Chai r  

here.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   And in  a l l  o f  them I  have been responding 

to  a l legat ions made.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  20 

MR MONTANA:   Against  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   ja .  

MR MONTANA:   And I  have been asking the team when wi l l  

I  have the t ime to  ta l l  my own story.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  
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MR MONTANA:   Because I  have been reply ing Chai r  –  I  

have been responding.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   So as long as the  commission takes that  – 

keeps that  a t  the back of  i ts  mind.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Ja  

MR MONTANA:   I  have to  te l l  my own story and my aff idavi t  

Chai r  I  am more than happy.  

CHAIRPERSON:  No,  no that  is  f ine.   You wi l l  –  you wi l l  

remember that  ear l ier  th is  af ternoon I  sa id i f  we park the  10 

proper t ies issue I  could g ive you a  chance to – to  deal  wi th  

whatever  issues that  you have been asked that  you – you 

have not  g iven a fu l l  answer or  –  so  – so … 

MR MONTANA:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  take that  in to account .  

MR MONTANA:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay le t  us adjourn for  the day.   

There wi l l  be no  evening session  th is  evening.   We wi l l  

resume at  ten tomorrow morning.   We adjourn.  

ADV SONI SC:   Thank you Chai r.  20 

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 11 MAY 2021 
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